
 

 
Telephone Enquiries: Rachael Calvert, Democratic Services (01254) 380136 
Email:  susan.gardner@hyndburnbc.gov.uk 
Published on Friday, 18 November 2022 

Page 1 of 3  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Audit Committee 
 
Monday, 28 November 2022 at 5.00 pm, 
Scaitcliffe House, Ormerod Street, Accrington 
 
Membership 
 
Chair: Councillor Dominik Allen 
Vice-Chair:  Councillor Peter Edwards 
 
Councillors Noordad Aziz, Bernard Dawson, Carole Haythornthwaite and June Harrison 
 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence, Declarations of Interest, Dispensations and Substitutions   
 
 

2.   Minutes of the Last Meeting  (Pages 5 - 16) 
 

To approve the Minutes of the last Meeting held on the 18th July 2022. 
 
 

3.   Risk Management Monitoring Report  (Pages 17 - 30) 
 

To inform Audit Committee of the outcome of the Strategic, Generic and 
Operational Risk Registers review.  
 
Recommended – That the report be noted for informational purposes. 
 
 
 

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2022-2023 

Public Document Pack



 

Page 2 of 3 

 

4.   Internal Audit Plan 2022/23 Progress Report  (Pages 31 - 36) 
 

To inform the Audit Committee of the Audit Reports issued during the period July 
2022 –October 2022 and bring to the attention of the Committee what the key 
issues were. 

 
Recommended – That the report be noted for informational purposes. 
 

5.   Audit Committee Self-Assessment 2022  (Pages 37 - 44) 
 

To inform Audit Committee of the results of the self-assessment process that 
Members of the Committee have carried out and for the Audit Committee to 
determine what the next steps, if any, should be. 

 
Recommended – That the report is noted for informational purposes. 
 

- That the Committee will determine the next steps to take 
to ensure on-going self-development and learning and to 
ensure it follows the best practice guidance set out in the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy’s 
(CIPFA) publication “Audit Committees – Practical 
Guidance for Local Authorities and Police 2018 Edition”. 

 
 

6.   External Review of Internal Audit   
 
To provide a verbal update to the Audit Committee. (M.Beard) 
 

7.   Statement of Accounts  (Pages 45 - 162) 
 

To inform the Audit Committee on the production of the Annual Accounts and 
their External Audit and deal with issues arising from this work. 

 
Recommended – That the Committee note the audit findings report which is   
found separately on the agenda. 

 
- That the Committee delegate approval to the Chair of 

Audit Committee to sign the Council’s Statement of 
Accounts for 2020/21 (Appendix A) following completion 
of external audit work.  

 
- That the Committee delegate approval to the Chair of the 

Audit Committee to approve and sign the letter of 
representation in Appendix B.  

 
 



 

Page 3 of 3 

 

8.   External Audit Completion Report - Year Ended 31st March 2021  (Pages 163 - 204) 
 

To present to Audit Committee the Audit Completion Report for the year ended 
31st March 2021.  
 

Recommended – That the report to be noted for informational purposes.  
 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
1 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

 
Monday, 18th July, 2022 

 
Present:  Councillor Dominik Allen (in the Chair), Councillors Noordad Aziz, 

Bernard Dawson, Peter Edwards (Vice Chair) and Carole Haythornthwaite 
 

  

 
67 Apologies for Absence 

 
There were no apologies for absence submitted. 
 

68 Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
 
There were no Declarations of Interest or Dispensations notified. 
 

69 Minutes of the Last Meeting 
 
The minutes of the last meeting of the Audit Committee held on the 7th March 2022 were 
submitted for approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved - That the minutes be received and approved as a 

correct record. 
 

70 Annual Internal Audit Report and Audit Opinion 2021/22 
 

Mark Beard, Head of Audit & Investigations provided a report to inform and update the 

Committee on the Annual Internal Audit Report and Audit Opinion for 2021/22 and to give 
details on the performance of the Internal Audit Team and final outturn position for 2021/22. 
 
The production of an Annual Internal Audit Report & Audit Opinion was a requirement of the 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) which were jointly published by the 
Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors (CIIA) and the Chartered Institute of Public Finance 
and Accountancy (CIPFA).  The Annual Internal Audit Report & Audit Opinion was also an 
aid to those charged with governance in their consideration of the Annual Governance 
Statement in support of the Council’s Financial Statements.  The report also enabled those 
charged with governance to gain an independent viewpoint on the Council’s Control 
Environment. 
 
The Annual Internal Audit Report & Audit Opinion was a supporting piece of evidence and 
did not replace or prevent the Council’s requirement to produce the Annual Governance 
Statement. 
 
A copy of the Annual Internal Audit Report & Audit Opinion 2021/22 was provided as an 
appendix to the report and included the following sections: 
 

 Executive Summary; 

 Audit Opinion; 

 Purpose and Boundaries; 

 Review of Internal Control; 

 Significant Issues Arising; 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2.



 
 
 

 

 
2 

 Audit Performance; and 

 Analysis of Audit Time – 2021/22. 
 

The key information arising from the report was as follows: 
 

 The Head of Audit & Investigations was able to issue a positive opinion on the 
systems of Internal Control based on the work carried out in 2021/22.  The opinion 
score had very slightly dropped from 1.36 in 2020/21 to 1.40 in 2021/22.  The 
number of recommendations had increased from 8 in 2020/21 to 13 in 2021/22. 

 

 Internal Audit had not identified any issues in 2021/22 during the course of their 
audit work that would have had a material effect on the Council’s Financial 
Statements. 

 

 Internal Audit had achieved audit plan coverage of 97.21% in 2021/22.  This was 
0.79% below the annual target of 98%. 

 

 Production and publication of the report was a requirement of the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards.  The report satisfied the requirements for those charged 
with governance and formed a supplementary piece of evidence to the Annual 
Governance Statement. 

 
Mr Beard highlighted trends from the information contained within the Tables set out in the 
report. 
 
The Chair asked about Project Management in Table 6 (Block 2 on p.20) and whether this 
was expected to overrun further.  Mr Beard indicated that the work had been paused 
because key individuals were not available.  Some areas had had to be covered again with 
new staff and in some areas the remit had been extended.  
 
The Chair asked about the 8 audit engagements that had not been completed mentioned at 
a Paragraph 4.4 and when these would be ready.  Mr Beard reported that detail should start 
to come through at the next meeting and that Project Management was, in fact, already 
mentioned in the Appendix 1 of the report at Agenda Item 5.  There were some 16 
engagements currently being progressed. 
 
Councillor Dawson asked about staff numbers within the internal audit team.  Mr Beard 
responded that there were 2 staff plus himself.  He also reported that a significant 
proportion of his time was spent on wider Council responsibilities, not audit, including anti-
money laundering, safety, anti-fraud & corruption and data protection roles. 
 
Councillor Carole Haythornthwaite enquired about the Ad Hoc Work and Investigations in 
Table 6 (Block 3 on p.20), particularly with regard to Discretionary Business Support Grants 
and Financial Controls work.  Mr Beard commented that both of these engagements had 
been deferred.  The latter was a niche piece of work requested by the Deputy Chief 
Executive which had been deferred due to a change of personnel, namely the Head of 
Accountancy.  Regarding Discretionary Business Support Grants, a significant amount of 
time had been spent by the Audit Team discussing this with the Revenues Manager, but the 
nature of the engagement had been to dip in and out and to provide on-going monitoring.  
Therefore, the time spent had been recorded elsewhere under Audit Advice. 
 
The Chair commented that he was pleased to see that 97.21% of the Audit Plan work had 
been achieved, against a target of 98%.  Mr Beard added that Hyndburn was one of only a 
small number of Lancashire authorities to get close to its target.  However, it was 

Page 6



 
 
 

 

 
3 

understood that some of the larger authorities, unitary authorities and county council had 
seconded staff to Track and Trace during the pandemic. 
 
Resolved - That the Committee notes the content of this report 

for informational purposes 
 

71 Audit Reports and Key Issues - Progress Report for the Period February 2022 - July 
2022 
 
Mark Beard, Head of Audit & Investigations presented a routine report to inform Members 
of the Audit Reports issued during the period February 2022 – July 2022 and to bring to the 
attention of the Committee what the key issues were. 
 
The report included a list of the audits carried out and any key issues, a summary of which 
is provided below: 
 

Service/Topic Audit 
Assurance 
Opinion 
Issued 

Comments 

Creditors Substantial 
assurance 

 The audit found that the authorised signature list 
could be updated to fully reflect changes in staffing 
which had occurred. Management agreed to 
update the list. 

 

 The audit found that a control sheet was not 
consistently being fully completed with all the 
required information, this varied from some sheets 
not being signed to others having some missing 
information which was particularly where cheques 
had been used. It should be noted that the 
majority of payments are electronically made via 
BACS.  

 

Safeguarding Substantial 
assurance 

 The audit found that whilst the majority of staff (13 
out of 14 who responded) knew their 
responsibilities regarding Safeguarding all stated 
that they would welcome refresher training. It 
should be pointed out that all new starters have 
Safeguarding Training as part of their induction 
and there are number of modules for Safeguarding 
Training on internal online training platform. 
Management agreed to facilitate some refresher 
training during the course of 2022 

Project 
Management 

Comprehensive 
assurance 

No issues arising 

 
 
Members were reminded that the number of audit reports that were issued between each 
Committee meeting was subject to variation dependent on the size of the audit and any 
non-routine audit work, such as investigations, that the Team might become involved in.  
Therefore, for the purpose of reporting, only the audit reports fully completed, issued and 
agreed would be included. 
 

Page 7



 
 
 

 

 
4 

Any investigations that might be carried out would not be included as a matter of routine in 
the report, particularly if they related to a specific individual or individuals. 
 
There was a target of 98% of the audit plan to be completed by the end of the 2021/22 
financial year in terms of audit days completed. 
 

Position as at end of March 2022 =  97.21% of the plan completed 
 
The position at the end of March 2022 could be broken down as follows:- 
 

Month % of the Plan Completed that Month 

April 2021 7.54% 

May 2021 6.35% 

June 2021 6.44% 

July 2021 10.09% 

August 2021 7.89% 

September 2021 6.83% 

October 2021 8.72% 

November 2021 8.46% 

December 2021 5.69% 

January 2022 10.72% 

February 2022 9.77% 

March 2022 8.71% 

 
Completion rates fluctuated from month to month as staff leave was factored in.  Despite 
the impacts caused by the pandemic, the Internal Audit Team was 0.79% from achieving 
the planned target for the year. 
 
With regards to 2022/23 there was a target of 98% of the Audit Plan to be completed by the 
end of the current financial year in terms of audit days completed.  As the Audit Team 
completed timesheets which then fed into the audit plan, it was possible to state the 
progress to date and the projected end of year position if that date was extrapolated out. 
Therefore:- 
 

Position as at end of June 2022  =  19.75% of the plan completed 
Projected out-turn position for 2022/23 =  78.99% of the plan completed 

 
The position at the end of June 2022 could be broken down as follows:- 
 

Month % of the Plan Completed that Month 

April 2022 7.09% 

May 2022 7.25% 

June 2022 5.41% 

 
The final out-turn position for 2022/23 was likely to be higher than 78.99% as some months 
would be more productive than others.  The Chair asked if the final figure could be 
estimated yet.  Mr Beard indicated that it was too early to give an accurate picture and this 
could be impacted by external factors, such as a resurgence in the pandemic. 
 
Resolved - That the Committee notes the content of this report 

for informational purposes. 
 

72 Audit Follow-Ups Report for the Period March 2022 to June 2022 
 

Page 8



 
 
 

 

 
5 

Mark Beard, Head of Audit & Investigations presented a report to inform Members of the 
outcome of routine follow-ups following the previously agreed action plans for completed 
Audit Reports. 
 
The report covered the period March 2022 – June 2022.  Details of the follow-ups carried 
out and actions implemented were provided as Appendix 1 and, at the meeting, Mr Beard 
outlined the actions carried out.  A list of the topics/service areas covered is as shown 
below:- 
 

 Creditors; and 

 Facilities. 
 
Following the agreement of the recommendations between Management and Internal Audit 
following the completion of the audit assignment, the area was revisited by Internal Audit 
and the recommendations were reviewed to ensure they had been implemented as agreed.  
This process was known as the ‘Follow-Up’. 
 
Internal Audit assessed the current position against what had been agreed at the end of the 
audit.  Where no action had been taken by the Service Area, then Internal Audit would 
question why and issue a revised Action Plan.  Part of the control within this process was 
consideration by Audit Committee of any issues that arose.  The Committee had the ability 
to ask questions of Management in the relative service areas why they had not acted upon 
the agreed Action Plan.  The Committee could also express what its expectations would be 
with regard to such a problem occurring. 
 
Internal Audit aimed to carry out a Follow Up for each completed audit area within 6 months 
of completion.  However there were a number of exceptions to that aim:- 
 
i.) Follow-Up in 6 months would be pointless if the recommendations were a low enough 

priority to allow a longer time frame. 
ii.) Work of the Audit Team did not allow the Follow-Up to be carried out.  Although Follow 

Ups were an important part of the process the Head of Audit & Investigations would 
always have to weigh this against the need for achieving the Audit Plan and auditing 
the risks the Council faced. 

iii.) There were no recommendations arising from the original audit. 
 
The Chair asked whether partially completed items would continue to be reported.  Mr 
Beard responded that the partial implementation would be noted and picked up again at the 
next audit.  Councillor Dawson asked about the Facilities Service Desk role.  Mr Beard 
responded that it logged the calls for repairs for the Council’s estate, which could include 
anything from a leaky tap, to broken windows, fire safety or structural issues.  Health and 
safety issues would be given priority.  Some repairs could be carried out by the Council’s 
handyman, but others required external contractors. 
 
Resolved - That the Committee notes the content of this report 

for informational purposes. 
 

73 Internal Audit Charter 
 
Mark Beard, Head of Audit & Investigations presented a report on the revised Internal Audit 
Charter which had been updated to reflect both good working practices and also to ensure 
it remained aligned with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). 
 
Mr Beard outlined that the Charter set out the rules and ethos within which Internal Audit 
operated and how it interacted with the Corporate Management Team and the Audit 

Page 9



 
 
 

 

 
6 

Committee.  It had originally been planned to update this Charter around 18 months ago, 
but the work had been put on hold due to other priorities.  The PSIAS were based on 
international standards which could be applied equally to the private sector.  The ‘governing 
board’ in the context of a local authority was generally the Audit Committee.  The Charter 
would be taken into consideration when the Internal Audit function was externally inspected. 
 
The report indicated that the PSIAS were the standards within which Internal Audit worked 
and had to comply with and stated that an Internal Audit function must have in Internal Audit 
Charter. 
 
The Internal Audit Charter established the framework within which Hyndburn Borough 
Council’s Internal Audit Service operated to best serve the Council and to meet its 
professional obligations under the PSIAS. 
 
The previous version of the Internal Audit Charter had been adopted in 2017.  The 2022 
Charter replaced the earlier version and had been updated to reflect current working 
practices by the Internal Audit Service and also ensured that it remained aligned to the 
requirements of the PSIAS. 
 
The Internal Audit Charter covered:- 
 

 Relevant Regulations and Interpretation; 

 Definitions; 

 Mission & Core Principles; 

 Responsibilities; 

 Independence, Objectivity and Integrity; 

 Reporting Lines and Relationships; 

 Access to Information; 

 Internal Audit Resources; 

 Competency; 

 Quality Assurance and Improvement; 

 Investigations and Counter-Fraud; 

 Engagement Planning; 

 Performing the Engagement; 

 Communicating Results; 

 Monitoring Progress of Actions Agreed; and 

 Responsibilities in relation to the Internal Audit Service. 
 
The areas contained within the Internal Audit Charter linked back into the PSIAS 
requirements. 
 
Councillor Carole Haythornthwaite enquired if there was a requirement to submit the 
Hyndburn Charter to the overseeing body for the PSIAS.  Mr Beard indicated that each 
authority would produce its own bespoke Charter and there was no requirement to submit 
the document to any other body.  However, it would be subject to scrutiny during the 
external review of Internal Audit and would be mentioned if there were any issues.  
Hyndburn’s Charter included all of the mandatory elements and some other standards 
which were considered to be important locally. 
 
Resolved - That the Committee notes the content of the report 

for informational purposes.  
 

74 Public Sector Internal Audit Standards Self-Assessment and Quality Assurance and 
Improvement Programme 

Page 10



 
 
 

 

 
7 

 
Mark Beard, Head of Audit & Investigations presented a report to inform members of the 
updated self-assessment of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) which he 
had carried out and also the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP) which 
set out how the Council managed any standards that were not compliant, thus ensuring 
conformance with the PSIAs overall. 
 
Mr Beard highlighted that a report was provided on this matter to the Committee each year, 
which might be a short report or a longer format, depending on the circumstances.  
Because of the new Members on the Committee in 2022/23, the longer format report had 
been produced this year.  The authority needed to explain where it did not comply with 
standards, otherwise it would need to state that it did not comply on every piece of audit 
work carried out.  For Hyndburn, there were only a small number of ‘partiality conforms’ and 
‘this has not occurred’/‘not applicable’ entries on the pro forma.  The self-assessment then 
led to the Quality Assurance & Improvement Programme, which was an Action Plan and 
living document, which explained how any issues were being addressed.  That document 
provided that evidence of conformity required by the external inspectors of Internal Audit.  
The inspections were due to take place every 5 years and the next one was due to 
commence in November 2022. 
 
The report informed Members that the PSIAS was the framework that Internal Audit had to 
work within and comply with. 
 
In addition to the PSIAS, Internal Audit had to have a Quality Assurance & Improvement 
Programme (QAIP).  The QAIP detailed any standards which were not met or were partially 
in conformance together with any other key issues linked to the PSIAS.  The QAIP included 
what steps were being taken to progress such issues and should be viewed as an ongoing 
improvement programme. 
 
The Head of Audit reviewed the PSIAS annually to ensure that the Internal Audit Service 
conformed to the PSIAS, highlighting if there had been any changes and ensuring that any 
such changes were reflected in the QAIP. 
 
The 2022 self-assessment of the PSIAS and the 2022 updated QAIP were provided as 
appendices to the report. 
 
The Chair enquired whether partial conformity with the PSIAS was a major concern and 
whether the Council should conform.  Mr Beard said that not all standards needed to 
conform, because most of the standards had a high degree of conformity.  The Internal 
Audit Team maintained good, inclusive relationships with Corporate Management Team 
and individual Heads of Service.  He provided an example of partial conformity in 
connection with Standard 2050 (Coordination) and explained the reason for this 
assessment. 
 
Resolved - That the Committee notes the updated PSIAS Self-

Assessment and the updated QAIP. 
 

75 Public Sector Internal Audit Standards - External Peer Review of Internal Audit 
 
Mark Beard, Head of Audit & Investigations presented a report to inform and update the 
Committee about the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) external peer review 
process, which would ensure that Hyndburn Borough Council met the requirement under 
PSIAS that the Internal Audit Service was externally assessed once every 5 years. 
 

Page 11



 
 
 

 

 
8 

The PSIAS stated that a local authority internal audit function must be subject to an external 
inspection against the PSIAS once every 5 years.  The last external inspection of 
Hyndburn’s Internal Audit Service had taken place in February 2018.  The next external 
inspection of Hyndburn’s Internal Audit Service against the PSIAS was provisionally 
timetabled for November 2022. 
 
There were 8 Lancashire Councils including Hyndburn taking part in a Lancashire Peer 
Review process.  Of the remaining Lancashire Councils which were not part of this scheme, 
two Councils had chosen to buy-in their external review from an outside provider.  Four 
Councils had internal audit provided by Mersey Internal Audit Agency.  One Council was 
part of the Northwest Chief Audit Executives Group and they also supplied internal audit to 
another Council. 
 
There was a sub-group of the Lancashire District Councils’ Audit Group consisting of the 
Heads of Audit from Burnley, Blackpool, Chorley / South Ribble (one head of Audit covered 
both Councils), Hyndburn and Wyre.  This sub-group had reviewed and updated the 
methodology for the Lancashire Peer Review process that was based on the one 
developed previously by the North West Chief Audit Executives Group. 
 
A Memorandum of Understanding (MofU) had been produced that set out the key aspects 
of the process including: 
 

 The participating Councils; 

 Duration of the MofU; 

 Confidentiality; 

 Governance; 

 Moderation and Quality Control; 

 Cost; and 

 Methodology. 
 

A copy of the MofU was included as an appendix to the report. 
 
The peer reviews had been split into grouped areas to perform the inspections.  These 
groupings were as follows: 
 

 Burnley, Blackburn with Darwen, Chorley / South Ribble; 

 Blackpool, Hyndburn, Wyre; and 

 Preston 
 

Preston was originally in a triad with 2 other authorities both of whom had now outsourced 
their internal audit provision to an external provider.  As a result, the external review of 
Preston City Council’s internal audit service had been carried out using a shared approach 
by a number of the other Heads of Audit participating in this process.  Mr Beard indicated 
that it was possible that Ribble Valley might join the Lancashire Peer Review group in the 
future. 
 
The timetable for carrying out all 8 external reviews was between June 2021 and March 
2023.  The external reviews of the internal audit service for Blackburn, Blackpool and 
Preston had already taken place with the rest still being outstanding. 
 
Hyndburn Borough Council’s external inspection of Internal Audit was scheduled to take 
place during November 2022 with the exact dates still to be set.  As part of this process the 
external assessors would interview key personnel as defined within the PSIAS.  This would 
include: 

Page 12



 
 
 

 

 
9 

 

 Chief Executive; 

 Director of Finance s151; 

 Monitoring Officer; 

 Chair of Audit Committee; and 

 Head of Audit 
 

These 5 post-holders were essential to the process, but in addition the external assessors 
would choose to interview at least one member of the audit team and would interview one 
or more auditees which were usually the Head of Service. 
 
In order to both facilitate the required interviews and to gather information a pre-inspection 
questionnaire would be issued to all the key people.  The answers to this questionnaire 
would then be used to target areas to explore further in the subsequent interview.  This was 
likely to be sent out to recipients at some point during October 2022. 
 
The Head of Audit & Investigation would provide the external assessors with evidence to 
demonstrate why Internal Audit did comply with the PSIAS.  Internal Audit would be 
externally assessed by the Head of Audit & Risk from Blackpool Borough Council and the 
Head of Governance and Business Support (former Head of Audit) at Wyre Borough 
Council. 
 
Following completion of the inspection process a report would be produced.  The 
judgement of whether an internal audit service conformed to the PSIAS would be based on 
3 areas of focus: 
 

 Purpose and positioning; 

 Structure and resources; and 

 Audit execution. 
 
The judgement would be that Internal Audit Service conformed, partially conformed or did 
not conform.  The external assessment team might make recommendations for an authority 
to either achieve full conformity, if it had not achieved that, or improvements on service 
delivery, if improvements could be made even if overall the Internal Audit Service 
conformed to the PSIAS.  Mr Beard commented that the authority would need to pass at 
least 2 of the 3 areas of focus above. 
 
Once the final report had been issued to the Council it would be presented to both 
Corporate Management Team and the Audit Committee.  The external assessment team 
was prepared to attend either or both of these meetings if required to answer any questions 
that might arise. 
 
As different authorities would have different external assessors there was a Moderation / 
Quality Control process that took place at a number of points until the end of review 
process in March 2023.  The first Moderation / Quality Control meeting had taken place on 
8th October 2021 with future meetings due to take place during 2022 and 2023.  The 
purpose of these meetings was to look at the reviews carried out and ensure that there was 
consistency of approach around logical findings and any recommendations made.  The 
Head of Audit & Investigation was a member of the Moderation / Quality Control Panel but 
would clearly have no involvement when Hyndburn Borough Council’s Internal Audit 
assessment was moderated. 
 
The Head of Audit & Investigation was reviewing key documents that were part of the 
internal audit process in preparation for the external assessment.  The Head of Audit & 

Page 13



 
 
 

 

 
10 

Investigation had begun the process of evidencing the self-assessment of the PSIAS.  The 
self-assessment was carried out annually and reported with the Annual Internal Audit 
Report & Audit Opinion. 
 
The Chair asked about the cost of the Peer review process.  Mr Beard responded that the 
cost to the Council of being involved in the Lancashire Peer Review process was staff time 
as opposed to direct costs.  The preparation time undertaken by the Head of Audit & 
Investigation was accounted for in the Annual Audit Plan and historical information could be 
obtained if necessary.  The Peer Review process had the added advantage of enabling 
best practice to be shared across all participating authorities. 
 
Councillor Dawson asked if all authorities had to undergo an inspection and whether peer 
review was the best method.  Mr Beard commented that this method represented the best 
value of money.  An external provider could be used, but there were fewer firms operating 
in this market at present and prices had risen to around £15k. 
 
Resolved - That the Committee notes the content of this report. 
 

76 Future Training Requirements 
 
Martin Dyson, Head of Accountancy outlined proposals for Member development in relation 
to the role and responsibilities of Audit Committee members. 
 
It was acknowledged that for 2022/23 the Committee included several Members who had 
not served on this body before.  Therefore, it would be useful for training to be provided on 
roles and responsibilities and the processes undertaken or overseen by the Committee.  It 
would be useful for the Committee to participate in an evaluation of its own effectiveness.  
This could be achieved by undertaking a self-assessment.  A self-assessment had not 
taken place in Hyndburn for a number of years. 
 
Members were asked to consider whether they wanted refresher style training, or training 
on the basics, which could be delivered in house by officers.  It was suggested that the 
Chair should undertake additional training.  The self-assessment should be timed to take 
place before the Review of Internal Audit. 
 
Mr Beard highlighted the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) 
document Audit Committees: Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police (2018 
Edition), which could be used for learning and development and contained a self-
assessment tool at Appendix D.  Mr Beard undertook to circulate the document after the 
meeting.  It was suggested that a phased approach to the self-assessment be carried out 
as follows: 
 

 STAGE 1 – each councillor to read the guidance document. 
 

 STAGE 2 – each councillor to complete the self-assessment questionnaire to be 
achieved in time for the November 2022 Audit Committee meeting (further guidance 
would be provided on this process). 

 

 STAGE 3 – Mr Beard to collate the self-assessment questionnaires and produce a 
report to the November Audit Committee.  This would highlight any knowledge / 
skills gaps too. 

 
Mr Dyson also reported that an additional meeting of the committee would be required 
before November to provide the updated position on the Annual Statement of Accounts 
2020/21.  The signing off process had been delayed by approximately 1 year.  The authority 

Page 14



 
 
 

 

 
11 

was working closely with the new auditors, Mazars, to finalise the accounts.  Mazars 
representatives had been unable to attend the Committee today due to other commitments 
and sickness.  
 
Councillor Noordad Aziz enquired bout he reason for the change of external auditors from 
Grant Thornton, as he believed that all Lancashire authorities were part of the same cohort 
audited by this company.  Mr Beard indicated that the change had been undertaken by 
agreement with Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) and Grant Thornton to enable 
the auditors to better manage capacity and client relationships.  Councillor Aziz asked if any 
other Lancashire authorities used Mazars, as it would be useful to share experience.  Mr 
Beard confirmed that Rossendale Borough Council had engaged Mazars.  Councillor Aziz 
commented that the disestablishment of the Audit Commission in 2015 had not worked 
well, given that the change had been intended to drive forward efficiencies. 
 
Mr Dyson indicated that delays to the completion of the Annual Statement of Accounts for 
2020/21 were largely outside of the authority’s control.  The external audit process was 
likely to be completed over a three week period commencing on 1st August 2022.  It should 
be possible to bring the final accounts to the Audit Committee before 30th September 2022.  
The 2021/22 Statement of Account should then follow at the November 2022 meeting. 
 
Councillor Aziz asked if there had been any breach of statutory duty regarding the 
deadlines for approving the accounts, or if COVID Regulations had relaxed the timetable.  
Mr Dyson responded that there had been an extension to the relevant deadlines, but 
external auditors had struggled to meet those deadlines.  A high proportion of local 
authorities had been unable to comply with the Regulations, and the practical deadlines for 
completion had therefore shifted.  However, the 2021/22 accounts should be on time.  
Councillor Aziz enquired if the Mazars were starting from scratch on the accounts.  Mr 
Dyson indicated that most of the preparatory work had been carried out by Grant Thronton, 
so Mazars should be in a position to finish of this work in August.  The Accountancy Service 
recognised the risks around completion of the accounts and were focused on getting up to 
date.  Much of the current situation was due to circumstances beyond its control.  A number 
of Lancashire authorities had accounts from earlier years that remained outstanding, so this 
was not specifically a Hyndburn issue.  Mr Dyson undertook, in consultation with the Deputy 
Chief Executive, to provide the Members of the Committee with written update of the 
position on the outstanding Statements of Accounts. 
 
Councillor Aziz proposed a cross party motion to the Government to indicate that the 
external audit situation was not acceptable.  He expressed concern that if something had 
been awry, the Council and public would not have been made aware of this in a timely 
manner.  Councillor Haythornthwaite considered that the current difficulties might be due to 
other factors, rather than the demise of the Audit Commission.  Mr Dyson responded that 
the exact reasons were unclear and the situation had generated a lot of debate nationally.  
Hyndburn, was currently working well with Mazars and building a good relationship, as 
evidenced by the current year’s accounts, which were on target.  This was important, as the 
deadline for the 2022/23 accounts would revert to the normal pre-COVID timetable with the 
Statement of Accounts published in May 2023 and signed off by September 2023 following 
external audit.  Councillor Aziz acknowledged that there was a shortage of auditors within 
the profession and that firms might prefer to miss a deadline, rather than to publish 
incorrect findings. 
 
The Chair advised Members to contact Mr Dyson or Mr Beard if they wished to discuss any 
specific training and development needs. 
 
Resolved - That the Committee: 
 

Page 15



 
 
 

 

 
12 

(1) notes the proposed arrangements for training 
and development outlined above, including the 
self-assessment process; and 

 
(2) notes that an additional meeting may be 

required in September 2022 to consider the final 
(audited) Statement of Accounts 2020/21. 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 16



 
Page 1 of 14 

  

REPORT TO: Audit Committee 

DATE: 28th November 2022 

REPORT AUTHOR: Stuart Sambrook (Policy Manager) 

TITLE OF REPORT: Risk Management Monitoring Report 

 
 

1. Purpose of Report 
 

To inform Audit Committee of: 

 the outcome of the Strategic, Generic and Operational Risk Registers review;  
 

2. Recommendation 
 

That Audit Committee: 

 Notes the content of the report. 
 

3. Background 
 

Report Background: 

 The protocol for updating the current risks have been followed and the information gathered 
forms the basis of this report ensuring that the risks already identified are monitored and 
action plans are in place to mitigate against these risks and any new risks wherever possible. 

 A separate report was presented to the Council’s Management Team on November 9th 2022. 

 

Current Risk Definition: 

Risk Likelihood Impact 

High Regularly occurs daily 
or weekly 

May result in: 

A fatality; Financial Loss in excess of £2 million; Non-
delivery of service for more than 3 weeks and/or 
adverse international media coverage 

Medium Likely to happen over 
next 1 to 2 years 

May result in: 

Serious disabling injury/ill health; Financial Loss 
between £500,000 and £2,000,000; Significant 
disruption to provision of service exceeding 1 week 
and/or adverse national media coverage 

Low Rarely or never 
happened before 

May result in: 

Minor injury/ill health financial loss of up to £500,000, 
less than1 week service disruption and/or adverse 
local media coverage 

 

4. Reasons for Recommendations 
 

To enable Audit Committee to: 
 

 review the amendments to the Strategic, Generic and Operational Risk Registers since the 
submission of the last risk management report; 

Page 17

Agenda Item 3.



 
Page 2 of 14 

 
5. Changes to the Strategic Risk Register 

There has been one major change but no minor changes made to the Strategic Risk Register 
Appendix 1 (Page 4). 

 

Area Change Risk Rating 
With Controls 

NEW RISK 

Financial 

 

(Page 4) 

Risk 
Financial Overreach :--The Council is embarking on a range of major 
investments supported by significant amounts of External Funding.  Overspends 
or failure to deliver on these Projects could lead to significant additional costs 
falling on the Council, in terms of extra borrowing costs stemming from meeting 
additional project costs or the repayment of external funds. (URN:2037) 
Risk Owner 
Deputy Chief Executive 

Medium 

 

6. Changes to the Generic Risk Register 

There have been no major change made to the Generic Risk Register but 4 minor changes 
as detailed in Appendix 2 (Page 5). 

 
7. Changes to the Operational Risk Register 

There have been one major changes to the Operational Risk Register and a number of minor 
changes (34) that have been made to the Operational Risk Register. The amended risks are 
shown in Appendix 3 (Page 6). 
 

Area Change Risk Rating 
With Controls 

NEW RISK 

Reputational 

 

(Page 5) 

Risk 
Failure to meet statutory timescales for delivery of planning decisions 
(URN:2038) 
Risk Owner 
Head of Planning & Transportation 

Medium 

 
 
8. Summary Risk Register 

A summary list of all risks contained in the Generic, Operational and Strategic Risk Registers 
is given in Appendix 4 (Page 11). 

 
 
9. High Risks 

No changes to Risk Ratings. 

We have one Generic risk with a rating classed as “High” – Failure to conserve energy and 
reduce emissions thus resulting in excess costs to the Council and a negative impact on the 
environment (URN: 2016). 

Two Operational risks have a rating classed as “High” - Failing to recruit and retain suitably 
qualified staff (URN: 2001); Theft or damage to vehicles and equipment (URN: 60). 

Two Strategic risk classed as “High” - Failure to deliver on Council’s Climate Declaration 
pledge and achieve Council operations Carbon Zero by 2030 (URN:2035); The acquisition of 
key town centre buildings and delivery of £22 million regeneration project within Accrington 
Town Centre. Page 18



 
Page 3 of 14 

 

10. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 

Not applicable  
 
 
11. Consultations 

Consultation with the Council’s Management Teams and Heads of Service has taken place. 
 
 
12. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 

. 

Legal and human rights 
implications 

 

Assessment of risk n/a 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  

n/a 

 
13. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
 Strategic Risk Register 

Generic Risk Register 
Operational Risk Register 

 
14. Freedom of Information 
 

The report does not contain exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972, 
Schedule 12A and all information can be disclosed under the Freedom of Information Act 
2000. 

 
15. Exempt Report 
 

The report does not contain exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972 
Schedule 12A 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 19

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


 
Page 4 of 14 

Appendix 1 – Amendments to Strategic Risk Register 
CHANGES TO Strategic RISK REGISTER 

 

KEY 

New or amended text 

Deleted text 

 
 
Risk Owner: Deputy Chief Executive 
 
FINANCIAL RISK 2037 

Financial Overreach :--The Council is embarking on a range of major investments supported by significant amounts of 
External Funding.  Overspends or failure to deliver on these Projects could lead to significant additional costs falling on 
the Council, in terms of extra borrowing costs stemming from meeting additional project costs or the repayment of 
external funds. As these are significant sums they could have a major detriment to the Council’s overall financial 
position by increasing borrowing costs leading to the need to reduce service and staffing levels. 

Associated Risk Officers: Management Team 

Risk Rating 
Likelihood Impact Priority 
Rarely or never happened before Fatality, financial loss in excess of  Medium 
  £2,000,000, non-delivery of service  
 exceeding 3 week  and/or  
 adverse international media coverage 
 
Fatality, financial loss in excess of £2,000,000, non-delivery of service exceeding 3 weeks and/or adverse international 
media coverage 

 

Controls - Measures Currently in Place to Manage Risk 
 All Projects & Programmes have clear Budgets that are effectively managed. 

 Independent reports from Accountancy Service on progress on spend. 

 Project Managers report regularly to CMT on project progress against deliverable and outcomes. 

 Projects Identify Risk within their individual area 

 Project & Programme Managers aware of the key deliverables from the Projects and Claw Back Conditions. 

 CMT can institute remedial action if overspends or clawback conditions are threatening to become a reality. 

 Accessing additional finance or cost cutting measures can be activated. 

 Ultimately the Council could borrow to finance the overspend or clawback but this would place a significant 
additional burden on the organisation and likely lead to service cuts and job reductions. 

  

Page 20



 
Page 5 of 14 

Appendix 2 – Amendments to Generic Risk Register 
CHANGES TO Generic RISK REGISTER 

 

KEY 

New or amended text 

Deleted text 

 
 
Risk Owner: All Service Managers 
 
INFORMATION RISK 2017 
Failure to ensure that personal data is kept securely in accordance with Data Protection Act, GDPR and Freedom of 

Information Act 2000 

Associated Risk Officers: Management Team 

Risk Rating 
Likelihood Impact Priority 
Rarely or never happened before Serious disabling injury/ill health, financial loss  Low 
 between £500,000 and £2,000,000, significant  
 disruption to service exceeding 1 week  and/or  
 adverse national media coverage 

Controls - Measures Currently in Place to Manage Risk 

 Staff Training 

 Personal Data kept securely with access restricted 

 Data Protection Officer & Registration 

 Freedom of Information Act Procedures 

 Appropriate staff aware of responsibilities 
 Legal staff available to advise about requirements for disclosure of some third party information under Freedom 

of Information Act 2000 

 Regular training sessions on DPA, GDPR and FOI for staff in training plan 
 
 

Risk Owner: All Service Managers 

LEGAL RISK 2021 
Failure to comply with CDM Regulations 

Associated Risk Officers: Management Team 

Risk Rating 
Likelihood Impact Priority 
Rarely or never happened before Fatality, financial loss in excess of £2,000,000,  Medium 
 non-delivery of service exceeding 3 weeks and/or  
 adverse international media coverage 

Controls - Measures Currently in Place to Manage Risk 

 CDM staff user group established 

 Written corporate guidance and documentation to be prepared by external CDM Specialist Consultant 

 CDM Training provided to relevant officers in 2018 

 External consultant undertaken review and audit in 2022 
 

 
 
  

Page 21



 
Page 6 of 14 

Appendix 3 – Amendments to Operational Risk Register 
CHANGES TO Operational RISK REGISTER 

 

KEY 

New or amended text 

Deleted text 

 
 
Risk Owner: Business and Marketing Coordinator 

TECHNOLOGICAL RISK 102 
Failure/breakdown of CCTV system 

Associated Risk Officers: 

Risk Rating 
Likelihood Impact Priority 
Rarely or never happened before Fatality, financial loss in excess of £2,000,000, non-delivery of 

service exceeding 3 weeks and/or adverse international media 
coverage 

 

Medium 

Controls - Measures Currently in Place to Manage  

 The system is monitored in real-time by the newly installed Viewscape control room operating system 

 White Dove Data Centre in Blackburn backs up the system  

 If power fails, generator at the White Dove Centre starts within 11 milliseconds 

 Ongoing Maintenance and engineer survey to upgrade cameras as and when they become irreparable 

 New SLA with BwD approved by Cabinet 2016 

 2 dedicated engineers covering the partnership area 

 BS7958 awarded 

 ISO9001 Quality management Stage 1 compliant 
 

Risk Owner: Executive Director (Environment) 

FINANCIAL RISK 122 
Market Hall loss of income due to low take up of market hall stalls 

Associated Risk Officers: Market Manager 

Risk Rating 
Likelihood Impact Priority 
Likely to happen over next 1 to 2 
years 

Minor injury/ill health, financial loss up to £500,000, less than 1 
week service disruption and/or adverse local media coverage 

High 

Controls - Measures Currently in Place to Manage  

 Due to levelling up plans advised not to promote 

 Advertising strategy for permeant stalls has halted  

 Advertising strategy is forced on casual and pop up going forward  

 Measures in place to retain existing stall holders 

 Consider options for redevelopment of indoor Market Hall – with levelling up fund plans  

 Leases to be renewed to existing stall holders so tenants can be decanted if/when works commence (LUF) 
 

  

Page 22



 
Page 7 of 14 

 

PHYSICAL RISK 36 
Risk of assault whilst collecting, counting and banking Market Rents 

Associated Risk Officers: Markets Manager 

Risk Rating 
Likelihood Impact Priority 
Rarely or never happened before Serious disabling injury/ill health, financial loss between £500,000 

and £2,000,000, significant disruption to service exceeding 1 week  
and/or adverse national media coverage 

Low 

Controls - Measures Currently in Place to Manage  

 Cash collections by external company G4S – no staff walking to bank to deposit money 

 Doors are kept locked and cash counted in rear of office 

 Health & Safety Policy and Procedures 

 All lease/licence traders have to make payments by Direct Debit 

 Increased office security to be reviewed for 2021 
 New safe and door access codes allocated  

 Additional CCTV cameras installed in office areas 

 On-line payments to be progressed in 2021 for all other traders not required to pay by Direct Debit 
 Limited cash collected traders encouraged to pay card 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL RISK 77 
Pollution of canal or local environment resulting in suspension of waste transfer at CVMU/Willows Lane 

Associated Risk Officers: Transport Manager, Waste Services Officers and Vehicle Coordinator 

Risk Rating 
Likelihood Impact Priority 
Rarely or never happened before Minor injury/ill health, financial loss up to £500,000, less than 1 

week service disruption and/or adverse local media coverage 
Low 

Controls - Measures Currently in Place to Manage  
 Regular inspections, maintenance/repairs around waste transfer bays/depot infrastructure to prevent pollution 

 Continue existing arrangements 

 EA inspections and site licence compliance checks 

 Trained competent staff  

 Comprehensive maintenance regimes 

 On-site Management & Supervision of operational staff 

 Low risk materials on site 

 Arrangement with CJ Jetz to empty drainage gullies 
 Executive Director (Environment) holds a certificate of technical competence to operate the waste transfer 

facilities as required by the site licence issued by the Environment Agency. Second member of staff, within 
Waste Services, undertaking training. 

 

TECHNOLOGICAL RISK 72 
Breakdown of equipment or vehicles 

Associated Risk Officers: Transport Manager, Foreman Mechanic 

Risk Rating 
Likelihood Impact Priority 
Likely to happen over next 1 to 2 
years 

Minor injury/ill health, financial loss up to £500,000, less than 1 
week service disruption and/or adverse local media coverage 

Low 

Controls - Measures Currently in Place to Manage  

 Robust Vehicle Replacement Programme in place 

 Hire in vehicle if repair cannot be promptly undertaken. 

 Regular maintenance regimes. Service vehicles in accordance with schedules to reduce vehicle downtime. 

 Trained maintenance staff 

 Working foreman to prioritise vehicle repairs in order to reduce impact on service users. 
Page 23



 
Page 8 of 14 

 Drivers daily pre-use check, greasing and cleaning procedures in place 

 Reduced in-life operating period of waste collection vehicles 4 years. 

 Vehicle chassis / under body wash equipment installed 

 4 years vehicle warrantee taken out 

 Comprehensive/regular maintenance and calibration regimes on all test equipment by external specialist 

 A fully operational back-up test lane in the event of the main test lane being inoperative  

 Trained competent staff with MOT tester qualifications including mandatory annual training/assessment exam 

 On-site Management & Supervision of operational staff 

 Regular visits/compliance checks by VOSA Officers 

 Transport Manager and Executive Director (Environment) both hold MOT Test Station Manager qualification 
 
 
 
Risk Owner: Head of Environmental Health 
 
LEGAL RISK            2032 
Failure to complete food programme in 2021/22 due to Covid-19 

Associated Risk Officers: Food Safety Manager 

Risk Rating 
Likelihood Impact Priority 
Likely to happen over next 1 to 2 
years 

Minor injury/ill health, financial loss up to £500,000, less than 1 
week service disruption and/or adverse local media coverage 

Low 

Controls - Measures Currently in Place to Manage  

 There is a backlog of inspections from 20/21 due to the pandemic and the closure of some business sectors for 
periods of time 

 Staff resource is being utilised to manage the pandemic response 

 Infection rates are fluctuating and this requires staff to be pulled back from visits both from a safety perspective 
but also to ensure the Covid response is effective.  

 Risk based approach to inspections is undertaken in line with FSA guidelines  

 Funding is available to employ further resource to assist with the backlog at the appropriate time in the future  

 

 
 
Risk Owner: Head of Benefits, Revenues and Customer Contact 

FINANCIAL RISK 5 
Failure to initiate prompt recovery action 

Associated Risk Officers: Revenues Manager 

Risk Rating 
Likelihood Impact Priority 
Rarely or never happened before Minor injury/ill health, financial loss up to £500,000, less than 1 

week service disruption and/or adverse local media coverage 
Low 

Controls - Measures Currently in Place to Manage  

 Clear documented timetable for collection and recovery processes. 
 Automated reminder system within set parameters 

 System automated reminder based on set parameters. 

 Timetable updated annually for billing and recovery process. 

 Annual liaison with local Magistrates Clerk to set and agree timetable for Ctax/NNDR Liability courts  

 Continue to review and monitor debts outstanding and ensure all avenues of recovery are exhausted. 

 Quarterly reports to CMT on collection rates performance. 

 Text reminders issued 4 days prior to payment date and again if payment missed. 

 Targeted proactive contact with customers who fail to pay their Council Tax/Business Rates 

 Monthly meetings with Deputy Chief Executive to track collection rates and income. 
 Review of Revenues structure to consider most effective split of resources for collection and recovery purposes. 

 Increase of proactive measures to aid collection rates in conjunction with the Revenues Team and the Contact 
Centre Team. Page 24



 
Page 9 of 14 

 Clear documented timetable for direct debit transmissions. 

 Annual review of policies that aid the collection and recovery of Council Tax and Business rates. 
 Annual review of Code of Conduct and SLA agreements between the Council and Enforcement Agents who act 

on behalf of the Council in the recovery of Council Tax, Business Rates and Housing Benefit Overpayments. 

 Business Continuity plan updated regularly throughout 2022/2023 as working provisions changed for the 
department. 

 CMT/Members are aware of the final outturn figures for 2021/2022 with reduction in collection rates due to 
covid-19, as magistrates’ courts were closed partially during 2020 and therefore unable to carry out statutory 
recovery programme. 

 Magistrates’ courts now operating via – virtual hearings.  Recovery timetable reinstated for 2022/2023 for 
Council Tax and Business Rates debts.  All avenues of recovery now planned for the current financial year. 

 
 
Risk Owner: Head of ICT 
 

TECHNOLOGICAL RISK 131 
There is a risk that ICT Systems may fail and affect front line services e.g. Academy, Paris, Microsoft Dynamics, 
resulting in council staff being unable to carry out their normal working activities impacting on the quality of 
service delivered to the citizens of Hyndburn. Causes include intentional modification of software, hardware or 
it's environment; unintentional modification of software, hardware or it's environment such as a heatwave; 
unauthorised modification of software, hardware or it's environment; malicious modification of software, 
hardware or it's environment. 

Associated Risk Officers: All Service Managers 

Risk Rating 
Likelihood Impact Priority 
Likely to happen over next 1 to 2 
years 

Minor injury/ill health, financial loss up to £500,000, less than 1 
week service disruption and/or adverse local media coverage 

Low 

Controls - Measures Currently in Place to Manage  

 Daily system and data backups 

 Regular maintenance of ICT Business Continuity Plan 

 Trained, professional ICT staff 

 Documented policies and procedures surrounding backups 

 Individual service area Business Continuity Plans 

 Regular software updates and patches applied when released 

 Continued user education regarding Cyber Security attacks 

 Current end point security to prevent/block attack via email 

 Current Firewalls to monitor network traffic 
 ICT policies in place to prevent access to unauthorised and unmonitored access to web-based file sharing sites 

 Maintenance of air-conditioning units by Facilities team; 

 Stand-by portable air-conditioning units in situ; 

 Temperature of Server Room monitored 24/7 and ICT team alerted by SMS if servers start to shut-down; 

 All ICT officers are key-holders and are able to access the building 24/7 if required. 

 
 
 
TECHNOLOGICAL RISK 132 
There is a risk that ICT systems and the network could fail due to insufficient infrastructure capacity or 
accidental damage, resulting in the degradation or loss of ICT Services on one or more sites. Causes include 
potential blackout/power outages to the building as per current information from energy providers, insufficient 
bandwidth on network links to handle data and / or voice traffic; insufficient storage space to save data on 
servers; equipment incapable of carrying out its required function effectively; services being affected due to 
insufficient licences; accidental damage by 3rd parties 

Associated Risk Officers: All Service Managers 

Risk Rating 
Likelihood Impact Priority 
Likely to happen over next 1 to 2 
years 

Serious disabling injury/ill health, financial loss between £500,000 
and £2,000,000, significant disruption to service exceeding 1 week  
and/or adverse national media coverage 

Medium 

Page 25



 
Page 10 of 14 

Controls - Measures Currently in Place to Manage  

 Trained, ICT professional staff 

 Regular software updates and patches applied when released 

 Daily system and data backups 

 Regular maintenance of ICT Business Continuity Plan 

 Documented policies and procedures surrounding backups 

 Individual service area Business Continuity Plans 

 Regular internal audit or ICT systems 

 All dark infrastructure secured in locked server cabinets and server room with restricted access 

 All network cables linking council sites located in trenches with service access points 
 Choice of 2 3rd party network engineers available if/when required to make repairs to network cable if damaged 

 UPS units installed in server room to maintain services, ensure connection to Cloud for backups and maintain 
internet connection for 2 hours in event of power loss. 

 Investigation into hire/purchase generator for overnight outages of more than 4 hours to maintain server room, 
ensure connection to Cloud for essential backups, and maintain internet connection 

 
 
Risk Owner: Head of Planning & Transportation 
 

REPUTATIONAL RISK 2038 

Failure to meet statutory timescales for delivery of planning decisions  

Associated Risk Officers:  

Risk Rating 
Likelihood Impact Priority 
Likely to happen over next 1 to 2 
years 

Minor injury/ill health, financial loss up to £500,000, less than 1 
week service disruption and/or adverse local media coverage 

Medium 

Controls - Measures Currently in Place to Manage  
 Recruitment of suitably qualified planning locums 
 Recruitment of temporary staff 

 Ongoing efforts at recruitment to permanent posts 

 Re-organisation of admin team to enable more efficient operation 

 Action being taken to improve IT systems 

 Action being taken to create deputy head of planning role 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 26



 
Page 11 of 14 

Appendix 4 – Summary Risk Registers 
 

Generic 
 

 

ID Risk Ratings 
with 
controls 

1 Failure to conserve energy and reduce emissions thus resulting in excess costs to the 
Council and a negative impact on the environment (URN: 2016) 

High 

2 There is a risk that personal, sensitive, or bulk information is released into the public 
domain resulting in a likely GDPR fine, and a possible financial loss to the citizen. Causes 
include unauthorised penetration of ICT systems (external hacking); internal misuse of 
information (internal hacking); careless disposal of waste; loss of equipment/theft of 
equipment; data quality; process adherence; e-mail sent to incorrect recipient. (URN:2024) 

Medium 

3 Failure to insure Council buildings for rebuild value in the event of fire or other incident 
(URN: 2006) 

Medium 

4 Failure to comply with CDM Regulations (URN: 2021) Medium 

5 Failure to ensure health and safety of employees and members of the public and comply 
with Health & Safety Legislation both in, around and outside the workplace. (URN: 2008) 

Medium 

6 Unexpected system failures impacting onto the delivery of services (URN: 2014) Low 

7 Failure to manage projects effectively and ensure contracts are VFM (URN: 2004) Low 

8 Risk of litigation arising from poor advice or work carried out by Officers or non-
compliance with legislation (URN: 2007) 

Low 

9 Financial loss arising from historic claims for industrial injury (URN: 2020) Low 

10 Failure to ensure that personal data is kept securely in accordance with Data Protection 
Act and Freedom of Information Act 2000 (URN: 2017) 

Low 

11 Risk of failure to comply with our duty under the Finance Act 2017 to ensure any 
contractors we take on are complying with “IR35” legislation (off-payroll working 
arrangements) (URN: 2025) 

Low 

12 Failure to deliver critical services due unavailability  of  a key building  or facilities, lack of 
utilities, ICT failure or high levels of staff absenteeism resulting from infectious disease, flu 
pandemic or other serious incident  (URN: 2013) 

Low 

13 Risk of poor procurement practice resulting in breach of procurement regulations, standing 
orders or inefficient use of resources. (URN: 45) 

Low 

14 Failure to monitor and ensure spending is within budgetary limitations (URN: 2003) Low 

15 Failure to adequately protect against IT abuse (e.g. virus infection, hacking, sabotage, 
accessing unsuitable material, unlicensed software, misuse of personal data, breach of 
law, theft, fraud) (URN: 2015) 

Low 

16 Council staff at risk of attack of lone working outside core hours and / or attending out of 
hours call outs (URN: 2022) 

Low 

17 There is a risk that ICT hardware, e.g. laptops, smart phone or tablet, could be lost or 
stolen, exposing confidential information. (URN: 2023) 

Low 

Operational 

 
ID Risk Ratings 

with 
controls 

18 Failing to recruit and retain suitably qualified staff (URN: 2001) High 

19 Theft or damage to vehicles and equipment (URN: 60) High 

20 Failure to meet statutory timescales for delivery of planning decisions (URN:2038) Medium 

21 
Non-availability on-site of ICT Officers due to illness and/or self-isolation during 
pandemic (URN: 2031) Medium 

22 

Project Phoenix 1D – Site Preparation Works Grant Homes England default funding 
event resulting in grant clawback for not achieving completion milestones and State aid 
compliance (URN: 2033) Medium 

Page 27



 
Page 12 of 14 

23 Failure to complete food programme in 2020/21 due to Covid-19 (URN:2032) Medium 

24 

There is a risk that ICT systems and the network could fail due to insufficient 
infrastructure capacity or accidental damage, resulting in the degradation or loss of ICT 
Services on one or more sites. Causes include insufficient bandwidth on network links to 
handle data and / or voice traffic; insufficient storage space to save data on servers; 
equipment incapable of carrying out its required function effectively; services being 
affected due to insufficient licences; accidental damage by 3rd parties (URN: 132) Medium 

25 
Forward funding of projects. Risk of not drawing down Action Plan allocations due to 
lack of forward funding (URN: 97) Medium 

26 
Errors in Creditor Payment processes resulting in e.g. duplicate payments, non-
payment, overpayment, reduction in credit limits with firms (URN: 2) Medium 

27 Liability for injury to health caused by asbestos in council owned buildings. (URN: 15) Medium 

28 Loss of local land charges records e.g. fire (URN: 28) Medium 

29 Failure/breakdown of CCTV system (URN: 102) Medium 

30 Inadequate Treasury Management Arrangements (URN: 7) Medium 

31 
Risk of injury to the public due to the headstones and other memorials in the Borough’s 
cemeteries being in an unsafe condition (URN: 125) Medium 

32 Theft of works of art. (URN: 50) Medium 

33 
Risk of injury to the public due to the council’s tree stock being unsafe, diseased or 
dying. (URN: 61) Medium 

34 Risk of flooding from watercourses as a result of lack of maintenance (URN: 58) Medium 

35 
Risks due to inadequate maintenance of car parks, bus shelters, HBC highways and 
lighting including Christmas Lights (URN: 59) Medium 

36 Market Hall loss of income due to low take up of market hall stalls (URN: 122) Medium 

37 
Accidental or malicious deletion of data from the HBC network (including e-mail) (URN: 
2026) Medium 

38 

Failure to produce final accounts on time to appropriate legal & professional standards 
e.g. current Accounts & Audit Regulations, IFRS (International Financial Reporting 
Standards) (URN: 23) Medium 

39 
Access and availability to HBC data stored in the Cloud, should contractual obligations 
change or not be renewed. (URN: 2030) Low 

40 

Failure to comply with external funding regimes and programmes, notional loss and/or 
recovery of significant regeneration funding depending on specific arrangements. (URN: 
81) Low 

41 
Empty dwellings at risk of vandalism / fire damage presenting a danger to third parties 
(URN: 120) Low 

42 
Failure to manage and control expenditure within private sector housing capital 
programme (URN: 82) Low 

43 
Failure to protect customer’s personal banking information when making payments over 
the internet (URN: 41) Low 

44 Failure to maintain the Council’s non-housing assets due to lack of funding. (URN: 37) Low 

45 
Adequately controlling temperatures of the Council’s operational buildings to provide 
suitable working conditions for staff and prevent disruption to services (URN: 114) Low 

46 
Non-delivery of statutory requirements in connection with the Equality Act and age 
discrimination in respect of building compliance (URN: 26) Low 

47 
ICT systems failure affecting service provision due to loss of Academy / Anite / Paris 
(URN: 39) Low 

48 Failure to follow election procedures (URN: 19) Low 

49 Failure to meet necessary legal requirements leading to claims being made (URN: 20) Low 

50 
Risk of injury to the public, especially children and young people, due to the council’s 
play areas and young people’s facilities being in an unsafe condition.  (URN: 62) Low 

51 
Impact on residents arising from flash flooding, sewer surcharge, infrastructure damage, 
rehousing, power outages etc as a result of adverse / extreme weather (URN: 113) Low 

52 Breakdown of equipment or vehicles (URN: 72) Low 

53 Ignition of flammable liquids in vehicle workshop (URN: 56) Low 

54 Cost implications of introducing Selective Landlord Licensing (URN: 121) Low 

55 Failure to meet statutory deadline for issue of Council Tax Bills at year end (URN: 21) Low 

56 Suspension of the Council’s vehicle operator's licence (URN: 53) Low 

57 Loss of planning application and permission records through fire or flood (URN: 65) Low 

Page 28



 
Page 13 of 14 

58 Failure to generate forecast income from the Council’s investment property (URN: 11) Low 

59 
Liability for costs on appeal against unreasonable refusal of planning application (URN: 
55) Low 

60 Errors in Debtors Administration e.g. Incorrect posting of payments (URN: 3) Low 

61 Errors in Cashiering i.e. posting monies to the wrong account (URN: 4) Low 

62 Failure to react to changes in Benefit Legislation (URN: 18) Low 

63 Risk of assault whilst collecting, counting and banking Market Rents (URN: 36) Low 

64 

There is a risk that ICT Systems may fail and affect front line services e.g. Academy, 
Paris, Microsoft Dynamics, resulting in council staff being unable to carry out their 
normal working activities impacting on the quality of service delivered to the citizens of 
Hyndburn. Causes include intentional modification of software, hardware or it's 
environment; unintentional modification of software, hardware or it's environment; 
unauthorised modification of software, hardware or it's environment; malicious 
modification of software, hardware or it's environment. (URN: 131) Low 

65 

There is a risk that a computer virus / malware could infect the HBC network due to a 
failure of protection mechanisms to identify and treat a virus, and the failure of Council 
staff to observer ICT policies and recommended working practices. (URN: 130) Low 

66 
Abuse of children or adults at risk by member of staff or volunteer or failure to respond 
properly to safeguarding concerns (URN: 52) Low 

67 
Risk of claims arising from owners of houses following contracts for group repairs and 
home improvements supervised by Regeneration and Development Team (URN: 68) Low 

68 
Failure to complete audit plan and associated work to give sufficient assurance to 
External Audit in their Final Accounts Audit (URN: 1) Low 

69 
Pollution or adverse effect on public health due to failure of refuse collection service 
(URN: 78) Low 

70 

Drivers not holding a valid driver’s licence / the appropriate licence category / vocational 
licence (Driver CPC) and not carrying Driver CPC card with them when driving. (URN: 
129) Low 

71 
Theft of Mayoral Chains and car whilst attending official mayoral engagement with 
associated risk of assault on mayoral party. (URN: 127) Low 

72 
Failure to manage cremator operations in accordance with authorisation leading to 
excessive emissions (URN: 74) Low 

73 Failure to initiate prompt recovery action (URN: 5) Low 

74 
Failure to meet contractual obligations under vehicle service level and contract hire 
agreements (URN: 67) Low 

75 
Service or business needs not met due to failure of IT system, failure of network 
services or other reason (URN: 40) Low 

76 Risk of Damage to the Tiffany glass and paintings whilst moving/cleaning. (URN: 49) Low 

77 Gallery staff at risk of attack on attending out of hours call outs (URN: 64) Low 

78 Unacceptable vehicle emissions (URN: 76) Low 

79 
Pollution of canal or local environment resulting in suspension of waste transfer at 
CVMU/Willows Lane (URN: 77) Low 

80 
Failure to achieve and statutory housing responsibilities in terms of homelessness and 
housing need (URN: 98) Low 

81 Failure to complete statutory returns e.g. VAT (URN: 6) Low 

82 Loss of title deeds or contract documents e.g. fire (URN: 119) Low 

83 
Failure to complete Woodnook regeneration project leaving the council with property 
ownership liabilities for up to 60 empty dwellings (URN: 128) Low 

84 
Risk of claims against the Council for unfair dismissal or other employment issues. 
(URN: 116) Low 

85 
Failure of both primary and secondary Air Conditioning units in the Server Room, first 
floor Scaitcliffe House. (URN: 133) Low 

 
Strategic 

 

86 
Failure to deliver on Council’s Climate Declaration pledge and achieve Council 
operations Carbon Zero by 2030 (URN:2035) High 

87 
The acquisition of key town centre buildings and delivery of a £22 million regeneration 
project within Accrington Town Centre (URN:2036) High 

88 

Financial Overreach :--The Council is embarking on a range of major investments 
supported by significant amounts of External Funding.  Overspends or failure to deliver 
on these Projects could lead to significant additional costs falling on the Council, in Medium 

Page 29



 
Page 14 of 14 

terms of extra borrowing costs stemming from meeting additional project costs or the 
repayment of external funds. (URN:2037) 

89 
Pandemic can cause harm to the health and wellbeing of the local Hyndburn 
community (URN: 2027) Medium 

90 
Pandemic effect on Council’s financial services, staffing arrangements and service 
delivery (URN: 2028) Medium 

91 
Pandemic impact on local democracy, decision making process, accountable 
procedures, transparency and local elections (URN: 2029) Medium 

92 Substantial reduction in grant from Government (URN: 1027) Medium 

93 
Loss of considerable amount of cash due to deposits within banking sector that are 
subject to major turbulence. (URN: 1025) Medium 

94 
Warranted environmental / asbestos problems in land / properties following the 2006 
LSVT (URN: 1018) Medium 

95 Failure to ensure Financial Integrity (URN: 1004) Medium 

96 
Failure to have due regard to the need to prevent people from being drawn into 
terrorism as laid out in the Statutory Prevent Duty. Medium 

97 
Failure to address unacceptable exposure from Strategic Partnerships & Joint Working 
(URN: 1006) Low 

98 Failure to follow correct procurement process (URN: 1015) Low 

99 
Failure to safeguard and promote the welfare of children and vulnerable adults (URN: 
1023) Low 

100 
Failure to address citizens needs in the event of a major incident, including civil 
disobedience, affecting residents or infrastructure of the Borough. (URN: 1022) Low 

101 
Failure to uphold high ethical standards of conduct and consequent reputational 
damage to the Council (URN: 1001) Low 

102 

That the Councils leisure service provider Leisure in Hyndburn cease trading (resulting 
in the Council becoming responsible for some of their liabilities, eg. Pension deficit) or 
that they fail to repay debts to the Council. (URN: 1030) Low 

103 
Loss of income from unpaid invoices more than 6 months old impacting on General 
Fund revenue Balances. (URN: 1029) Low 

104 Failure to deliver objectives set out in the Corporate Strategy (URN: 1026) Low 

105 

Financial liability arising from legal claim by Rossendale BC to recover losses incurred 
on Pennine Lancashire Empty Homes Programme as a result of Rossendale BCs sub-
contractor, AAAW, going in to administration. (URN: 1032) Low 

106 

Risk of Council acting unlawfully and failure to meet requirements of new and amended 
legislation (New legislation imposing significant new burdens will be dealt with as a 
separate risk if appropriate) (URN: 1014) Low 

 

Page 30



REPORT TO: Audit Committee 

DATE: 28 November 2022 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Joyce Plummer - Resources 

REPORT AUTHOR: Mark Beard – Head of Audit & Investigations 

TITLE OF REPORT: AUDIT REPORTS & KEY ISSUES – PROGRESS 
REPORT FOR THE PERIOD JULY 2022 – 
OCTOBER 2022 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

Options Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: Options If yes, date of publication: n/a 

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To inform members of the Audit Reports issued during the period July 2022 – October 

2022 and bring to the attention of the Committee what the key issues were. 
 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 I recommend that Audit Committee: 

 Notes the content of this report for informational purposes. 
 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 This report crosses financial years and covers the period of July 2022 to October 2022. 

The audit areas and any key issues detailed at Appendix 1. 
 
3.2 Members should be aware that the number of audit reports that are issued between 

each Committee meeting is subject to variation dependent on the size of the audit and 
any non-routine audit work, such as investigations, that the Team may be involved in. 
Therefore, for the purpose of reporting, only the audit reports fully completed, issued 
and agreed will be included. 

 
3.3 Any investigations that may be carried out will not be included as a matter of routine in 

this report, particularly if they relate to a specific individual or individuals. 
 
3.4 There is a target of 98% of the audit plan to be completed by the end of 2022/23 

financial year in terms of audit days completed.  

Page 31

Agenda Item 4.



  Position as at end of October 2022 =  51.55% of the plan completed 
  Projected out-turn position for 2022/23 =  88.37% of the plan completed 
 
3.5 The position at the end of June 2022 can be broken down as follows:- 
 

Month % of the Plan Completed that Month 

April 2022 7.09% 

May 2022 7.25% 

June 2022 5.41% 

July 2022 7.86% 

August 2022 9.50% 

September 2022 6.47% 

October 2022 7.97% 

 
3.6 The projected out-turn position for the year is based on the 7 month period April 2022 

to October 2022 and assumes that the output remains at the same constant for the 
remainder of 2022/23. 

 
 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Not applicable as the report is for informational purposes only 
 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 No consultations required as this report is based on data and information held by the 

audit team based on the work completed 
 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

There are no financial implications arising 
from this report 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

There are no legal or human rights 
implications arising from this report. 

Assessment of risk 
 

Risks are taken into consideration during the 
audit process itself, there is no direct risk 
implication from this report. 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

This report is produced for information 
awareness of the progress of the Audit Team 
against the annual Internal Audit Plan. The 
Audit Planning process has had an equality 
impact assessment which remains valid and it 
is not necessary to update this with a 

Page 32

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


Customer First Analysis at this time. The 
individual audit assignments may, in some 
cases, feed into the needs of equality and 
diversity issues within individual service areas 
of the Council 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
7.1 No background papers were necessary for the preparation of this report.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 33



APPENDIX 1 
 
AUDIT COMMITTEE – 28th November 2022 
 
Summary of the main issues arising from audits carried out 
July 2022 – October 2022 
 
 
Civil Contingencies:- 
 
Audit Assurance Opinion Issued:- Substantial assurance 
The work undertaken showed there is generally a sound system of internal control designed 
to meet service objectives, and controls are generally being applied consistently. However, 
some weaknesses in the design and / or inconsistent application of controls put the 
achievement of particular objectives at risk. 
 
 The audit found, as a result of test calls carried out both during and outside normal 

working hours that the process was not followed correctly and none of the 3 nominated 
Emergency Planning Officers was alerted to the test incident. 
 

 The audit agreed with the Emergency Planning Officer that the process would be 
reviewed and consideration would be given to have a rota in place for Emergency 
Planning Officers both inside and outside of working hours. There are 3 Officers on the 
list so consideration needs to be made to increase the number of Officers on the list to 
cover leave and sickness. It was agreed that Switchboard staff need to be briefed on 
current processes for when a civil contingency related call is received during working 
hours. 

 
 
Engineers:- 
 
Audit Assurance Opinion Issued:- Comprehensive assurance 
The work undertaken showed a sound system of internal control which is designed to meet 
the service objectives, in addition the work carried out showed controls are consistently being 
applied. 
 
 No issues arising. 
 
 
Disabled Facilities Grants (Better Care Fund):- 
 
Audit Assurance Opinion Issued:- Substantial assurance 
The work undertaken showed there is generally a sound system of internal control designed 
to meet service objectives, and controls are generally being applied consistently. However, 
some weaknesses in the design and / or inconsistent application of controls put the 
achievement of particular objectives at risk. 
 
 The audit found that an agreement in place between Hyndburn Borough Council and 

an external organisation requires renewing as reduced fees had been negotiated due 

Page 34



to budget pressures but the new lower fees were not reflected in the agreement 
between the Council and the external organisation. 
 

 Management agreed a new agreement will be put in place to reflect the changes. 
 
 
Council Tax Write Backs:- 
 
Audit Assurance Opinion Issued:- Comprehensive assurance 
The work undertaken showed a sound system of internal control which is designed to meet 
the service objectives, in addition the work carried out showed controls are consistently being 
applied. 
 
 No issues arising. 
 
 
Mobile Telephony:- 
 
Audit Assurance Opinion Issued:- Substantial assurance 
The work undertaken showed there is generally a sound system of internal control designed 
to meet service objectives, and controls are generally being applied consistently. However, 
some weaknesses in the design and / or inconsistent application of controls put the 
achievement of particular objectives at risk. 
 
 The audit could not ascertain from the sample of mobile phone users chosen that all 

were aware of the Communications Policy. It was agreed with Management that all 
employees issued with a Council mobile phone are aware of the Communications 
Policy. 

 
 
Markets:- 
 
Audit Assurance Opinion Issued:- Substantial assurance 
The work undertaken showed there is generally a sound system of internal control designed 
to meet service objectives, and controls are generally being applied consistently. However, 
some weaknesses in the design and / or inconsistent application of controls put the 
achievement of particular objectives at risk. 
 
 Management agreed that consideration would be given to the installation of a 

networked device in the Porters Office to enable them to access training, internal 
communications, email etc. as they currently use an Officer’s PC and that Officer’s log-
in which breaches internal policies. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 35



Waste Collection and Recycling:- 
 
Audit Assurance Opinion Issued:- Comprehensive assurance 
The work undertaken showed a sound system of internal control which is designed to meet 
the service objectives, in addition the work carried out showed controls are consistently being 
applied. 
 
 No issues arising. 
 
 
 

Page 36



REPORT TO: Audit Committee 

DATE: 28 November 2022 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Joyce Plummer - Resources 

REPORT AUTHOR: Mark Beard – Head of Audit & Investigations 

TITLE OF REPORT: AUDIT COMMITTEE – SELF-ASSESSMENT OF 
GOOD PRACTICE 2022 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

Options Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: Options If yes, date of publication: n/a 

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To inform members of the results of the self-assessment process that Members of the 

Committee have carried out and for the Audit Committee to determine what the next 
steps, if any, should be. 

 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 I recommend that Audit Committee: 

 Notes the content of this report for informational purposes; and 
 Determines the next steps that the Committee will take to ensure on-going self-

development and learning and to ensure it follows the best practice guidance 
set out in the Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy’s (CIPFA) 
publication “Audit Committees – Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and 
Police 2018 Edition”. 

 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 Whilst this report refers to and has been based upon the CIPFA publication “Audit 

Committees – Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police 2018 Edition”, the 
Head of Audit & Investigations is aware that CIPFA have just published a 2022 revision 
of this publication which the Head of Audit and Investigations has just purchased. The 
Head of Audit & Investigations will looking and considering the amendments and 
additions within this publication. However, for the purpose of this self-assessment the 
Committee will continue in accordance with the 2018 edition of the publication and best 
practice. 

 

Page 37

Agenda Item 5.



3.2 All 6 members of the Audit Committee completed a Self-Assessment of Good Practice 
based on the questions set within the CIPFA publication. The results have been 
amalgamated thus anonymising who said what and is shown as Appendix 1. 

 
3.3 None of the Audit Committee members answered ‘No’ to any question with all answers 

given being ‘Yes’ or ‘Partly’. 
 
3.4 With regards to the answers to Questions 9, 10, 13 and 19 only 5 of the Committee 

members answered those questions.  
 
3.5 In respect of the answers to Questions 6, 9, 13, 16, and 19 one person gave the 

answer as ‘?’ in the yes column suggesting that they believed the answer to be ‘yes’ 
but were not completely sure. 

 
3.6 The Head of Audit & Investigations has highlighted where there were differences of 

opinion in the table below and has added comment for the Committee to consider: 
 

Good Practice Question Yes Partly Comments 
2. Does the audit committee report 
directly to full council? 

5 1 The Committee’s Terms of 
Reference are re-approved annually 
as part of the Constitution 
documents at the AGM of Full 
Council. In addition, the minutes of 
every Audit Committee meeting are 
submitted to Full Council. 

4. Is the role and purpose of the audit 
committee understood and accepted 
across the authority? 

4 2 As a third of the committee only 
thinks this is being partially 
achieved, then the committee needs 
to decide what steps it could take to 
improve this across the Authority. 

6. Are the arrangements to hold the 
committee to account for its 
performance operating satisfactorily? 

4 + ? 1 If the Committee was failing to meet 
its statutory obligations or some 
other performance issue was 
occurring, this would be flagged 
both by Council Management and 
External Audit. 

9. Has the audit committee considered 
the wider areas identified in CIPFA’s 
Position Statement and whether it would 
be appropriate for the committee to 
undertake them? 

4 + ?  Chapter 5 of CIPFA’s publication 
Audit Committees Practical 
Guidance for Local Authorities and 
Police 2018 edition is entitled 
“Possible wider functions of an 
Audit Committee”. This gives 
suggested additional areas which 
the Committee can become involved 
in. The Committee has encroached 
into some of these areas at times in 
the past in pursuit of responses to 
issues it has been considering at 
that time. Some of the areas 
described in Chapter 5 sit within 
their own process structures in the 
Council currently. These are issues 
for the Committee to consider if or 
how it would want to have additional 
involvement. 

Page 38



10. Where coverage of core areas has 
been found to be limited, are plans in 
place to address this? 

5  In the event this occurred the 
Committee would seek both 
explanations, make representations 
and may make recommendations to 
ensure that this is addressed 

12. Has an effective audit committee 
structure and composition of the 
committee been selected? 
This should include: 

 Separation from the executive 

 An appropriate mix of 
knowledge and skills among the 
membership 

 A size of committee that is not 
unwieldy 

 Consideration has been given 
to at least one independent 
member (where this is not 
already a statutory requirement) 

4 2 The Committee does not have any 
members of the Executive within its 
membership. 
Whilst skills and knowledge can 
vary, the political group leaders do 
try and maintain continuity within 
the membership to allow knowledge 
and skills to grow and has seen ex-
members of the Committee return 
too. 
The Committee size is not unwieldy. 
There is currently no independent 
non-Councillor on the Committee. 
This is currently not mandatory 
although it may become mandatory 
and the Council will address this at 
this point. 

13. Have independent members 
appointed to the committee been 
recruited in an open and transparent 
way and approved by the full council? 

4 + ?  This is currently not mandatory 
although it may become mandatory 
and the Council will address this at 
this point. 

14. Does the chair of audit committee 
have appropriate knowledge and skills? 

3 3 Each new Chair of Audit Committee 
gets the opportunity to attend 
training run by CIPFA’s Better 
Governance Forum including the 
current Chair. 
As 50% of the Committee answered 
‘partly’ the Committee needs to 
determine what training and skills 
would assist that roll. 

15. Are arrangements in place to 
support the committee with briefings 
and training? 

4 2 Officers brief the Chair of the 
Committee as and when required. 
This self-assessment process is 
part of the training needs 
identification process. 

16. Has the membership of the 
committee been assessed against the 
core knowledge and skills framework 
and found to be satisfactory? 

3 + ? 2 Appendix C of CIPFA’s publication 
Audit Committees Practical 
Guidance for Local Authorities and 
Police 2018 edition is entitled “Audit 
Committee Members – Knowledge 
and Skills Framework” covers these 
issues. The Committee could review 
itself against this to aid in 
identifying if there are any 
knowledge gaps or training 
requirements 

17. Does the committee have good 
working relations with key people and 
organisations, including external audit, 
internal audit and the Chief Financial 
Officer? 

5 1 The Committee has the s151, Head 
of Audit & Investigations and 
External Audit at each of its 
meetings. The Officer responsible 
for Risk Management periodically 
attends Committee too. 
The Committee is able to request 

Page 39



the attendance of any officer within 
the Council to satisfy its 
responsibilities and seek answers to 
any issues or queries it has. 
The Committee should determine if 
it believes there is anything else it 
needs to do with regards to this. 

19. Has the audit committee obtained 
feedback on its performance from those 
interacting with the committee or relying 
on its work? 

4 + ?  Whilst specific feedback has not 
been sought, clearly if the 
Committee was failing to meet its 
statutory obligations this would be 
flagged both by Council 
Management and External Audit. 

21. Does the committee engage with a 
wide range of leaders and managers, 
including discussion of audit findings, 
risks and action plans with responsible 
officers? 

5 1 The Head of Audit & Investigations 
reports to the Committee at each 
meeting regarding the findings and 
risks arising from audit 
engagements. 
External Audit explain the work they 
are carrying out and the issues 
facing the Council. 
The Head of Accountancy presents 
information on the Financial 
Statements for the Council and also 
any wider financial issues. 
Risk Management issues are 
reported to Committee too. 
The Committee can seek further 
explanation from any Officer within 
the Council to satisfy itself on any 
given issue. 
Therefore, the Committee should 
determine if it believes there is 
anything else it could or should do 
to enhance this further. 

23. Has the committee evaluated 
whether and how it is adding value to 
the organisation? 

4 2 The Committee is carrying out its 
core statutory functions that are 
expected of the Audit Committee. 
The Committee could consider if 
there is anything it believes it could 
or should do to enhance the value 
added to the organisation. 

 
 
3.7 Whilst the Head of Audit & Investigations has added narrative to each of the questions 

where the Committee did not all answer ‘yes’, it must be remembered that this 
narrative is designed to highlight key facts and act as a discussion point for the 
Committee to determine what steps it could or should take and also what training 
issues there might be which would assist either the Committee as a whole or individual 
members of the Committee. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 40



 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Not applicable as the report is the Committee agreed to undertake the self-assessment 

process against CIPFA’s publication “Audit Committees – Practical Guidance for Local 
Authorities and Police 2018 Edition”. 

 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 No consultations required as this report is based on data and information submitted by 

each of the Audit Committee members as part of the self-assessment process 
 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

There are no financial implications arising 
from this report unless some training needs 
are identified which result in a direct cost. 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

There are no legal or human rights 
implications arising from this report. 

Assessment of risk 
 

There is no direct risk implication from this 
report and consideration of risk is a core 
function of the Committee and that still 
applies when considering the self-
assessment of against best practice 
guidance. 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

This report is produced both for information 
awareness and to act as a tool to aid the 
development of the Audit Committee and its 
members. A Customer First Analysis has not 
been prepared as the purpose of this report is 
the standing and development of the 
Committee to achieve its aims and core 
functions. 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
7.1 No background papers were necessary for the preparation of this report.  
 
 
 

Page 41

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
Self-Assessment of Good Practice – Results 2022 

 

 

Audit Committee Collective Response 2022 – the numbers represent how many of 

the 6 committee members chose each answer. Where it does not add up to 6 then 

someone did not answer that question and any with ‘?’ have been shown in the 

column where that was given as an answer. 

 

Good practice questions Yes Partly No 

 

Audit committee purpose and governance 

1   Does the authority have a dedicated audit committee? 6   
2   Does the audit committee report directly to full council? 5 1  
3   Do the terms of reference clearly set out the purpose of the committee in 

accordance with CIPFA’s Position Statement? 
6   

4   Is the role and purpose of the audit committee understood and accepted 

across the authority? 
4 2  

5   Does the audit committee provide support to the authority in meeting the 

requirements of good governance? 
6   

6   Are the arrangements to hold the committee to account for its 

performance operating satisfactorily? 
4+? 1  

 

Functions of the committee 

7   Do the committee’s terms of reference explicitly address all the core areas 

identified in CIPFA’s Position Statement? 
   

 Good governance 6   
 Assurance framework, including partnerships and collaboration 

arrangements 
6   

 Internal audit 6   
 External audit 6   
 Financial reporting 6   
 Risk management 6   
 Value for money or best value 6   
 Counter fraud and corruption 6   
 Supporting the ethical framework 6   

8   Is an annual evaluation undertaken to assess whether the committee is 

fulfilling its terms of reference and that adequate consideration has been 
given to all core areas? 

6   

9   Has the audit committee considered the wider areas identified in CIPFA’s 

Position Statement and whether it would be appropriate for the committee to 
undertake them? 

4+?   

10   Where coverage of core areas has been found to be limited, are plans in 

place to address this? 
5   

11   Has the committee maintained its advisory role by not taking on any 6   

Page 43



decision-making powers that are not in line with its core purpose? 
 

Membership and support 

12   Has an effective audit committee structure and composition of the 

committee been selected? 
This should include: 

 Separation from the executive 
 An appropriate mix of knowledge and skills among the membership 
 A size of committee that is not unwieldy 
 Consideration has been given to at least one independent member 

(where it is not already a mandatory requirement) 

4 2  

13   Have independent members appointed to the committee been recruited 

in an open and transparent way and approved by the full council? 
4+?   

14   Does the chair of audit committee have appropriate knowledge and 

skills? 
3 3  

15   Are arrangements in place to support the committee with briefings and 

training? 
4 2  

16   Has the membership of the committee been assessed against the core 

knowledge and skills framework and found to be satisfactory? 
3+? 2  

17   Does the committee have good working relations with key people and 

organisations, including external audit, internal audit and the Chief Financial 
Officer? 

5 1  

18   Is adequate secretariat and administrative support to the committee 

provided? 
6   

 

Effectiveness of the committee 

19   Has the audit committee obtained feedback on its performance from 

those interacting with the committee or relying on its work? 
4+?   

20   Are meetings effective with good level of discussion and engagement 

from all the members? 
6   

21   Does the committee engage with a wide range of leaders and managers, 

including discussion of audit findings, risks and action plans with the 
responsible officers? 

5 1  

22   Does the committee make recommendations for the improvement of 

governance, risk and control and are these acted on? 
6   

23   Has the committee evaluated whether and how it is adding value to the 

organisation? 
4 2  

24   Does the committee have an action plan to improve and areas of 

weakness? 
6   

25   Does the committee publish an annual report to account for its 

performance and explain its work? 
6   

 

 

Self-Assessment Questions based on the best practice guidance published by the 

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy in their publication “Audit 

Committees – Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police 2018 Edition”. 

Page 44



 

 

REPORT TO: AUDIT COMMITTEE 

DATE: 28 November 2022 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Joyce Plummer - Resources 

REPORT AUTHOR: Martin Dyson, Head of Accountancy 

TITLE OF REPORT: Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

No Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 The report is to inform the Committee on the production of the Annual Accounts and 

their External Audit and deal with issues arising from this work. 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 The Audit Committee is recommended to: 
 

 Note the audit findings report which is found separately on the agenda. 

 Delegate approval to the Chair of Audit Committee to sign the Council’s 
Statement of Accounts for 2020/21 (Appendix A) following completion of 
external audit work.  

 Approval to the Chair of the Audit Committee to approve and sign the letter 
of representation in Appendix B.  

 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 To ensure that the Council complies with its statutory duty to submit the audited 

accounts for 2020/21 and places a copy of the accounts and notice of completion of 
the audit on the Council website. 

 
3.2 The draft accounts were completed and published on the Council’s website in July 

2020. Subsequently, Mazars, our external auditors, have undertaken their on-site 
audit of the accounts and work is close to completion. 

 
3.3 The committee should note that Mazars will be unable to produce the ‘Notice of 

Conclusion of Audit’ immediately after this meeting due to a national issue relating 
to infrastructure assets.  It is therefore recommended that the final approval and 
sign off the Statement of Accounts for 2020/21 is delegated to the Chair of the Audit 
Committee.  

 
3.4 The formal audit findings are presented in a separate report from Mazars on this 

agenda. 

Page 45

Agenda Item 7.



 

 

 
3.5  The period of public inspection of the accounts has been completed. The Accounts 

and Audit regulations 2015 say the Council must, following the conclusion of the 
right of public inspection: 

 Consider the statement of accounts by way of committee (this committee) or 
by the members as a whole 

 Approve the statement of accounts by resolution of that committee, 

 Ensure that the statement of accounts is signed and dated by the person 
presiding at the committee at which their approval is given.  

 
3.6 Subject to the Committee’s approval and receipt of the auditor’s opinion, the 

accounts will be published on the Council’s website.  
 
3.7 Once confirmation has been received from Mazars that the audit is complete, a 

‘Notice of Conclusion of Audit’ will be published. It will explain that the audit of the 
Council’s accounts has finished and state where the accounts and auditor’s report 
can be inspected. 

 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 There are no alternative options. 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 None 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 

As described in the Statement of Accounts. 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 
require the Council to approve and publish 
its audited Statement of Accounts. 
Councillors’ approval at this meeting will 
satisfy the requirement. 

Assessment of risk 
 

None. 

Equality and diversity 
implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  

None. 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
7.1 None.  

Page 46

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


1 
 

APPENDIX A 
 

HYNDBURN  
BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
 

Draft Statement of Accounts 
 
 

 
Year Ended 31st March, 2021 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

  

Page 47



2 
 

CONTENTS 
           Page 

 

Narrative Report            3 

 

Annual Governance Statement        20 

 

Independent Auditor’s Report (to follow on completion of the audit)  27 

 

Statement of Responsibilities        30 

 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement    32 

 

Movement in Reserves Statement       34 

 

Balance Sheet          36 

 

Cash Flow Statement         38 

 

Notes to the Accounts         40 

 

Collection Fund and Notes                 105 

  

Page 48



3 
 

Narrative Report 
 

An Introduction to Hyndburn 

 

An Introduction to Hyndburn  
 

Locality 

 

The Borough of Hyndburn is situated within 

Lancashire, a county made up of twelve district 

councils and two Unitary Council’s located within 

the North West region of England.  

 

Along with the neighbouring boroughs of 

Blackburn-with Darwen, Burnley, Pendle, Ribble 

Valley and Rossendale it forms part of the 

Pennine Lancashire sub-region.  

 

Hyndburn Borough Council was formed in 1974 

and the Borough now covers an area of seventy 

three square kilometres, is made up of sixteen 

wards and is home to a population of 81,043 

(ONS 2019 mid-year estimate) and is the second 

highest densely populated area at 1,110 per 

sq.km across Lancashire. 

 

The Borough is well connected to other Lancashire towns and service centres via the M65 motorway 

running east to west across the County, and the A56/M66 provides access to Greater Manchester 

which lies 20 miles south of the Borough. The Northern Rail network running through the Borough 

creates direct rail links westwards to Preston and Blackpool, eastwards into Yorkshire and 

southwards into Manchester.  

 

Settlements in the Borough range from a single home, often a farm in the rural area, to the large 

urban concentrations of housing and other land uses. The main urban areas in Hyndburn includes 

Accrington, Huncoat, Oswaldtwistle, Church, Clayton le Moors, Rishton and Great Harwood and rural 

settlements such as Belthorn and Altham. 

 

Population 

 

There are over 81,043 residents (ONS 2019 mid-year estimate) in Hyndburn with the majority being 

female (50.8%), in comparison to 49.2% being male.  

 

Hyndburn has experienced 0.6% of population growth between 2011 and 2019, the second lowest 

amount across Lancashire. The Birth rate within Hyndburn is significantly higher than the death rate, 

however due to a higher outflow of internal migration Hyndburn experiences only small levels of 

population growth. 

Page 49



4 
 
 

The highest proportion of 

people in Hyndburn by age band 

is within the 30 to 44 age group 

with 19%, followed by the 45 to 

59 age band, 0 to 14 age band, 

15 to 29 age band, 60 to 74 age 

band, and the 75 to 89 age 

group and 90+ the lowest 

proportions. The average age for 

a person is Hyndburn is 39.8, 

slightly below the national 

average. 

 

Hyndburn has a slightly lower proportion of 

people of working age (16 to 64) with 60.7%, in 

comparison to the North West with 62.1% and 

Great Britain at 62.5%. 

Hyndburn’s ethnic makeup is based on the 2011 

census and is shown in the adjacent chart. The 

White British population makes up 87.6% of 

Hyndburn’s population in comparison to 12.4% 

from an ethnic minority community. This 

information will be updated after the findings 

from 2021 Census has been compiled.  

 

 

Economic Profile 

Hyndburn has a slightly lower rate (60.7%) of working age people (16-64) compared to the North 

West (62.1%) and National average (62.5%) due to a high proportion of younger people (under 16’s) 

living in the Borough. The district also has a lower economic activity rate of 74.2% (at a district level 

these figures can fluctuate) compared to 77.6% across the North West and 79.1% nationally and a 

lower proportion of people in employment (73.2%), compared with 74.2% across the North West and 

75.4% nationally. Hyndburn also has a higher rate of people who are classed as self-employed in 

comparison with 

the rest of the 

region and 

nationally (all 

figures taken from 

NOMIS Labour 

Supply data Jan 

2020-Dec 2020). 

Earnings for 

residents is 

slightly lower than 

place of work 
Page 50



5 
 
across Hyndburn, and significantly below regional and national averages. The 2020 median gross 

weekly earnings for full time workers by residence in Hyndburn was £471. This is lower than both the 

regional figure (£560) and national figure of £587. However, Hyndburn’s earning has improved over 

the past ten years at the same rate as regionally and nationally. 

In 2020, there were only 2,305 active enterprises in Hyndburn, the lowest figure of all 14 Lancashire 

authorities. 

The employment structure of Hyndburn has gradually changed as the manufacturing sector has lost 

jobs whilst the service sector has grown to become the more dominant employment sector. 

However, the manufacturing sector provides direct, highly visible and reasonably well-paid jobs, and 

is an important generator of employment in the rest of the economy with a number of world class 

manufacturing and global export companies such as What More, Senator and Simon Jersey Group 

and advanced engineering firms like Emerson & Renwick and RLC Callender within the aerospace and 

motor industry who help with the growth of the Borough. 

Five companies in Hyndburn have won recent Queen's Award for Enterprise. FPW Axles 

Limited and Premier Tooling Systems Limited, both based in Accrington were winners in 2020.  

Universal Smart Cards Limited, makers of smart cards and related smart card products and also 

based in Accrington won the Queen's Award for International Trade for Outstanding Short Term 

Growth in overseas sales in 2019. BMP Europe Ltd, also located in Accrington, are manufacturers of 

an extensive range of engineered textile & polyurethane elastomer products.  

 

Information about the Council 

 

Hyndburn is a district council, working alongside Lancashire County Council as part of a two-tier local 

government system. 

 

Hyndburn has 16 wards and the Council consists of 35 councillors, which following the local elections 

of 6 May 2021, comprises 22 Labour, 12 Conservative members and 1 independent member.  

  

The Council has adopted the Leader and Cabinet model as its political management structure arising 

from the Local Government Act 2000. The Leader of the Council has responsibility for the 

appointment of Members of the Cabinet, the allocation of Portfolios and the delegation of Executive 

functions. Cabinet Members are held to account by a system of scrutiny which is set out in the 

Constitution. 

The Council Management Structure - The Council has a senior management team of four and an 

additional twelve Heads of Service as detailed in the chart below.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Chief Executive 

Deputy Chief Executive 

Head of Accountancy Services 

Head of Benefits Revs & Cust 

Head of I.C.T. 

Head of Audit & Investigations 

Executive Director (Legal & Dem) 

Chief Planning & Transportation Officer 

Head of Policy & Organisational Development 

Legal Services Manager 

Member Service Manager 

Elections Officer 

Executive Director (Environment) 

Deputy Head of Environmental Services Head of Regeneration & Housing Services 

Regeneration & Development Manager 

Page 51



6 
 
At 31 March 2021 Hyndburn Borough Council employed 276 employees (FTE 251.75), of which 210 

(76%) were full time and 66 (24%) part time.  Of the 276 employees, 130 (47%) were female and 146 

(53%) male, making it one of the biggest employers in the area, and providing services for a 

population of 81,043 (2019) living in approximately 36,800 dwellings (2020) and for 2,305 active 

businesses (2020).   

 

In an average year, the council… 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 litter picks and 

sweep 425 miles 

of roads and 

footpaths and 

other public 

spaces. 

 

  

ensures around 

10,000 

households 

receive their 

entitlement to 

Housing Benefit 

and Council Tax 

Support 

manages 10 

conservation areas, 

110 listed buildings & 

a Scheduled Ancient 

Monument helping to 

protect the historical 

heritage of 

Hyndburn. 

 

 

are taking a tough 

stance on littering 

and fly-tipping. We 

issue over 2,500 

Fixed Penalty 
Notices. 

Page 52



7 
 
KEY ACHIEVEMENTS 2020/21: 

 Secured £2 million external funding for the Decarbonisation Scheme. 

 Achieved One Carbon World Neutral Gold Standard by reducing its carbon footprint. 

 £492,000 Community Champions award (highest amount across Lancashire). 

 Queen Awards for Voluntary Services in Hyndburn with Maundy Relief and Community 
Solutions; 

 Business Compliance promoting good practice amongst premises, preventing outbreaks 
from premises and require high standards of control measures, and protect public from 
unacceptable risks through strong enforcement. 

 Providing Working from Home opportunities to employees. 

 Online Council meeting transition despite obstacles. 

 7,733 tonnes of dry waste recycled (increase of 23% compared to previous year). 

 100% of playground inspections were completed each week. 

 Revenue teams were very busy throughout pandemic supporting our businesses, designing 
and delivering new Covid-19 related grants to businesses and were nationally recognised at 
press conference from Downing Street for their excellent performance. 

  

 . 

 93.34% of Council Tax Collection with 89.3% of NNDR Collection. 

 68.5% Direct Debit take up for Council Tax. 

 66,861 (65% increase) of email enquiries to the CCC. 

 Increase take up of e-services for revenues and benefits services for Council Tax from 27% 
to 40%; and Business Rates 29% to 40%. 

 On-line applications for Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support from 45% to 50% and 
Change of Circumstances to 10%.  

 Licensing team updated their procedures so that all taxi and private hire applications can 
be completed online. 

 CVMU created a new taxi driver non-contact waiting areas to ensure taxi testing follows a 
socially distanced system. 

 Taxi screens offered to taxi’s these offer protection against the virus as well as a really 

effective and simple way for us to promote key messages. 

 Supporting contact tracing and vaccination update. 

 Helped clinically extremely vulnerable residents to stay safe at home by establishing an 
operational Covid hub in a week, providing thousands of meals, shopping services and 
medicine collections. 

 Supported local businesses with over £30m in urgent grants by being the fastest district 
authority nationally for the provision of initial critical financial aid. 

 Reduced the number of households living in cold homes due to winter fuel poverty by 
providing support for fuel payments as well as essential household goods to keep families 
and individuals warm. 

 Reduced food insecurity for hundreds of households by establishing a food solutions 
network, distributing funding to local food banks and began exploring contemporary food 
insecurity policies with the aim of reducing food insecurity in Hyndburn in the longer term. 

 Alleviated loneliness and isolation felt by our vulnerable residents by making hundreds of 
out-bound calls including over the Christmas period to check in a chat and ensure that no 
one was hungry, cold or lonely. 

 Help set up the Hyndburn Community Champions Network which meets every fortnight, it 
includes 90 people, representing 51 groups and organisations. 

 The Hyndburn Hub is a finalist in the Hyndburn Business Awards for the Pride of Hyndburn 

category. 

  

Page 53



8 
 

The Council’s Corporate Strategy 2018-2023   

 

The Corporate Strategy document can be found on the Council website. It’s a Strategy for Growth, 

Efficiency and Quality “Driving growth and prosperity in Hyndburn.” 

 

The Corporate Strategy 2018-2023 outlines the Council’s vision for creating a Borough where all our 

residents have the best opportunity to prosper.  

 

The strategy is structured around three main themes:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

By setting out what we want to achieve the Corporate Strategy helps ensure the Council remains 

focussed on the important things that support the achievement of our ambitions. It informs other 

key plans and strategies as well as the Council’s decision making to help ensure delivery of the 

objectives set out in the strategy.  

 

The corporate strategy document can be found on the Council website. It states the Vision of the 

Council is to make Hyndburn the place to be. It also enshrines the Values that we as a Council wish to 

promote. 

 

These Values are: 

 

Customer Focus 

We will make best use of our resources to support the delivery of excellent services to our 

customers. We will treat each customer as a valued individual and show sensitivity to their needs and 

differences. 

 

Positive Attitude 

We will be proactive and optimistic in finding solutions to challenges, open to improved ways of 

working and to updating our knowledge and skills to meet these changes. 

Growth: The Strategy sets out how the Council will facilitate housing and employment 

growth in Hyndburn. Facilitating housing growth will provide greater housing choice for 

Hyndburn residents and for people choosing to move in to the borough. Economic 

growth will provide more employment opportunities for local people and for people 

choosing to work in Hyndburn.  

Growth: The Strategy sets out how the Council will facilitate housing and employment 

growth in Hyndburn. Facilitating housing growth will provide greater housing choice for 

Hyndburn residents and for people choosing to move in to the borough. Economic 

growth will provide more employment opportunities for local people and for people 

choosing to work in Hyndburn.  

 

Efficiency: Hyndburn Council has a strong track record of providing efficient services 

and this strategy sets out how the Council will continue to improve the efficiency of the 

services we deliver, the facilities we operate and the assets we hold.  

 

Quality: Hyndburn Council is committed to creating a borough that enhances the 

quality of life of our residents. Housing, employment, education and environment are 

factors that contribute to an individual’s health and well-being and their quality of life as 

well as helping to develop diverse and sustainable communities. Hyndburn Council will 

lead on some of these areas for example housing but for other areas such as 

education and health we will work with and support our partners to deliver the 

outcomes. This strategy sets out how the Council will work to improve the areas it 

leads on in order to provide residents with the best opportunity to enjoy a good quality 

of life. 

Page 54



9 
 
 

Integrity 

We will always try to do the right thing. We will act and communicate honestly and openly, honour 

our commitments and be accountable for our actions. 

 

Teamwork 

We will promote a friendly and supportive working environment and we will work together across 

teams, services and with partners to achieve the objectives of the Council and the best outcomes for 

our customers. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 55



10 
 

Performance Measures 

Following adoption of the new Corporate Strategy in September 2018, the Council is continuing to 

develop a number of measures by which its performance can be assessed. 

 

Financial Performance 

 

In 2020/21 Hyndburn Council collected £42.478m in council tax and paid out in precepts and 

demands £40.508m which gave a surplus of £1.970m. This surplus is shared with the other 

preceptors and included in future funding streams to support Hyndburn’s expenditure.  

 

In 2020/21 Hyndburn Council collected £12.182m in business rates and paid out in precepts and 

demands £16.853m, a deficit of £4.671m.  As with the council tax surplus, this deficit is shared with 

the other preceptors, and due to the size and nature of the deficit, the Government is allowing for 

those deficits to be funded through the Collection Fund over the next three years. The deficit in 

business rates was due almost entirely due to covid-19 restrictions leading to rates reliefs being given 

by Central Government as National and Local lockdowns were enforced. This reduction in rates 

collectable was offset by the Government awarding Local Authorities additional financial support in 

the form of Section 31 grants. 

 

The authority is a member of the Lancashire Business Rates Pool which for 2020/21 reverted back 

from a pilot scheme that retained 75% of all receipts to a ‘more usual’ Pool where each council bears 

its own risk and takes its own reward under the pool agreement. The organisation’s aim is to reduce 

the amount of levy paid to central government. In 2020/21, Hyndburn BC retained £540k growth 

(90%) in receipts as a result, and paid Lancashire County Council £60k (10%) of the growth and made 

no levy payment. 

 

The Council has £36.3m of non-current assets which it has used for service delivery and investment 

purposes. 

 

The Council also generates £4.140m income to support the revenue budget which is shown in the 

segmental income (note 2). 

 

In preparing these accounts, the Council has used a materiality threshold of £911k and a triviality 

threshold of £46k as the basis of preparation and presentation. 

 

 

Service Provision 

 

The Council set a revenue budget of £11.227m for 2020/21 on the 27 February 2020 intended to 

provide day to day services for the local community. It was in line with its medium term financial 

strategy and required the achievement of £0.116m savings to balance the budget. This is in addition 

to the £9.647m savings in the previous 8 years. In 2020/21, the Council also achieved an overall 

revenue underspend of £231k which is detailed in the table below. The principal savings were 

achieved in regeneration and housing, planning services, parks and cemeteries, policy and corporate 

governance and revenue costs of capital borrowing (non-service related budgets). 

 

 

 

 

Page 56



11 
 
As part of the budget setting process: 

 All Hyndburn BC employees were paid at least a ‘Living Wage’ 

 Free car parking in Hyndburn was continued in order to stimulate local shopping 

 

The year-end position of a £231k underspend for service provision is summarised in the table below. 

 

 
 

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis provides further information (see Notes 1 and 2). 

 

 

Capital Investment in the Year 

 

Each year the Council invests money to provide new services to the public or update existing 

facilities, buy new infrastructure, buildings and equipment and to pay for long term improvements to 

existing assets. The spending is needed to maintain and develop the services provided by the Council. 

 

The capital programme has reduced in recent years from £15m per annum in 2004 to its current level 

of spend shown in the table below of £2.96m against an original capital budget of £3.11m. 

 

The council relies on securing external sources of funding, using capital receipts and contributions 

from the revenue budget. Government funding is through the disabled facilities grant. 

 

The funding strategy is to limit investment to essential projects and use capital receipts to repay 

debt. In 2020/21 the Council aimed for, and achieved, debt financing costs of less than 5% of general 

revenue spend; and that rate is expected to remain stable for the next three years. 

 

The Council repaid the last of its short term loans in 2014/15 and now has only long term debt of just 

under £10m which it cannot repay for at least twenty one years. 

 

Variance 

(Under)/Over £000

Planning & Transportation 762 739 -23

Environmental Health 392 424 32

Waste Services 3,640 3,751 111

Parks & Cemeteries 1,073 803 -270

Culture & Leisure 791 1,480 690

Regeneration Services 923 1,274 350

Policy & Corporate Governance 3,352 2,184 -1,168

Town Centre & Markets 384 626 242

Non-Service Related Budgets -90 -285 -195

Total 11,227 10,996 -231

Funding £0

Council tax 5,247

Business Rates 4,283

Revenue Support Grant 1,560

All other items (net) 137

Total 11,227

Description Budget £000 Actual £000

Page 57



12 
 
The table below show the source of funding used to finance our capital spend this year and the major 

categories of expenditure. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Major projects undertaken by the Council include: 

 £1.307m Housing related schemes including £748k on disabled adaptations 

 £758k Town Centre Initiative works 

 £180k Vehicle purchases 

£98k Accrington Market Hall Improvements 

£87k Broadway Shops Improvements 

£68k Milnshaw Park Bowls House build 

 

Pensions & Provisions 

 

Hyndburn BC participates, as an employing authority, in the Lancashire County Pension Fund 

administered by Lancashire County Council.  The scheme is a defined benefit scheme i.e. retirement 

benefits are determined independently of scheme investments. A pensions reserve and pensions 

liability are incorporated within the Council’s accounts reflecting the amount by which the Hyndburn 

element of the Lancashire Fund is underfunded compared with the assessed payment liabilities to 

pensioners. At 31st March 2021 the overall liability of the Council was £41.960m (£31.899m as at 31st 

March 2020). Note 38 shows the position in detail.  The Council has an agreed long term strategy 

with the Pension Fund’s Actuary for meeting the cost of these liabilities and they are contained 

within the current financing plans of the Council; the remaining recovery period to eliminate the 

deficit is thirteen years. 

 

The Council has set aside a provision for business rate appeals against rateable valuations. The 

number of appeals outstanding at 31st March 2021 is 24 and the provision is valued at £7.157m of 

which Hyndburn’s share is £2.863m, which is 40% of the total. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Capital Spend 
2019/20 

£000 
2020/21 

£000 

Housing Projects 1,198 1,393 

   

Community & Leisure Projects 881 1,003 

Internal Projects 652 565 

Total 2,731 2,961 

Financed By:   

Capital Receipts 751 825 

Grants 1,508 1,576 

Revenue 458 495 

Reserves 14 65 

Total 2,731 2,961 

Page 58



13 
 

Financial Position 

The Council has a strong balance sheet: 

 

 £000  

 

 

 

£000 
 2019/20 2020/21 

Long Term Assets  36,764 36,715 

Net Current Assets  25,389 29,568 

Long term liabilities  (46,297) (56,274) 

   

Net assets at  15,856 10,009 

   

Funded by:   

Usable reserves 19,059 26,316 

Unusable reserves (3,203) (16,307) 

   

Total reserves 15,856 10,009 

 
 

Cashflow 
 
The tables above and below, show that Hyndburn had sufficient net current assets to meet its day to 

day needs.  It has maintained a healthy balance of cash and other liquid assets year on year.  

 

 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 
  £m £m 

Cash and other cash equivalents  (13.129) 17.421 

Short term investments 23.292 25.046 

Other liquid assets and liabilities 15.226 (13.064) 

Total net current assets 25.389 29.403 

 
The main factors that would affect cash in the future are acquisition and disposal relating to the 

capital programme, the value of the reserve balances, appeals provisions and unapplied grants. 

 

Annual Governance Statement 

This sets out key elements of the Council’s governance framework, provides a review of its 

effectiveness and sets out plans for future development. There have been no significant changes in, 

or issues around governance arrangements during the year. The statement found later in the 

accounts explains how Hyndburn Council complied with the Code and also meets the requirements 

of regulation 6(1)[a] of the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015, which requires all 

relevant bodies to prepare an Annual Governance Statement. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 59



14 
 
Housing and Employment:  A Strategy for Growth 

Employment and housing growth are central to Hyndburn Council’s vision for the Borough, and 

despite these challenging times Hyndburn is pressing ahead with its growth agenda including new 

development opportunities. 

The Council believes the development of a sustainable and strong local economy with improved 

access to job markets across the Pennine Lancashire and wider northern region is fundamental for 

the long-term prosperity of the Borough.  Central to achieving this is transformational change in the 

economy and productivity including local employer output. 

Hyndburn is really well connected which opens up great growth opportunities.  It is in the prime 
central location in Pennine Lancashire, perfectly located on the M65 growth corridor, at the “Pennine 
Lancashire crossroads” where the M65 meets the A56/M56 route at Junction 8 on the M65.  Direct 
train links to Preston, Manchester and Leeds make Hyndburn even more accessible. 
 
In delivering its vision, the Council is seeking sustainable population growth, including working 
households through a combination of housing and employment growth.  This will be underpinned by 
a review of the Local Plan due to be completed in 2023. 
 
At the midway point of the Council’s Corporate Strategy 2018 – 2023, “A Strategy for Growth, 

Efficiency and Quality”, Hyndburn is making very good progress.  It is an affordable and strategic 

location for business and investors.  During this period, we are seeing new quality housing 

developments and the development of a major employment park at Frontier Park.  The following are 

a number of key growth projects that have progressed during 2020/21. 

Key Growth Projects 

 Local Plan Review:    A new Local Plan will set out the framework and policies for new 

development and how the Borough will grow to the year 2036.  Due to be completed early in 

2023 this will identify for the plan period at least 68.7 hectares of new employment land and 

allocate land for at least 4,320 new homes; an average of 216 new homes per year. 

 Huncoat Garden Village:  Significant progress has been made on plans for a new garden 

community at Huncoat.  This is a major opportunity to provide up to 2,000 new, modern, high 

quality homes over the next 10 – 15 years working in partnership with Lancashire County 

Council, Homes England and a range of other key stakeholders.    A Masterplan and Delivery 

Strategy will be completed by July 2021, setting out a planning framework for this major housing 

growth opportunity.  Two developers are working towards bringing forward outline planning 

applications for up to 800 new homes during the summer of 2021. 

 New housing:  the Borough is benefitting from unprecedented housing growth, despite the 

Covid-19 pandemic.  Currently, on 11 medium / large sites, 713 new homes are under various 

stages of construction, 450 of which are market housing with the remaining 263 a mix of 

affordable homes for sale and rent.  There is a very healthy pipeline of sites coming forward that 

will add to these numbers over the next 2-3 years. 

 Frontier Park:  Is a 90-acre strategic employment and leisure zone, adjacent to Junction 6 of the 

M65 continues to be developed at pace by the landowner / developer, Monte Blackburn.  Now in 

its final phase this industrial park will see 1 million square feet of manufacturing and distribution 

space creating circa. 1,500 jobs.   The Park is fully let and also includes a £25 million, 150-

bedroom Hampton by Hilton hotel and conference centre as well as motorway services.  This Page 60



15 
 

continues to be a major boost for the local economy and a major opportunity providing for 

significant employment growth. 

 Accrington Town Centre:  the Council is supporting the local economy through investment in 

Accrington Town Centre.  £2 million has been invested in creating a new town square, with a 

further £1 million invested in the refurbishment of prominent town centre premises adjacent to 

the new town square.  Hyndburn has been allocated Category 1 status for the recently 

announced Levelling Up Fund and with support from the Government’s High Street Task Force 

the Council is preparing a £20 million bid in the autumn of 2021 to support major regeneration 

and investment plans for Accrington Town Centre. 

 Council Owned Land: The Council is utilising its land and property assets to support its growth 

aspirations.  Examples include: 

o Lyndon Park: Disposal of land to Keepmoat Homes to build 217 new homes on the 

outskirts of Great Harwood and generating the Council a capital receipt of circa £3 

million by the end of 2021.  

o Phoenix 1D:  The Council has secured just under £1.1 million from the Government’s 

Accelerated Construction Programme which will be used for site preparation works, after 

which the land will be transferred to Keepmoat Homes to build 48 new homes for sale 

and rent and the works started at the end of February 2021. 

o Yorkshire St, Huncoat – the Council sold the site in 2020 to Onward Homes for £160,000 

where 14 shared ownership homes are now under construction. 

o Steiner Street, Accrington – sold to Barnfield Construction in 2020 for retail use 

generating a capital receipt of £205,000. 

o Charter St, Accrington – planning consent was secured on the 28th of April 2021 for 46 

new affordable homes for rent, for homeless households including veterans where the 

need arises.  The scheme will be developed and managed by a local developer and 

charity, Building for Humanity. 

o Miller Fold, Accrington – planning permission is in place for 46 homes for sale by Gleeson 

Homes which should generate a capital receipt of £233,000 before the end of June 2021. 

o Springhill Village – proposals for 48 new affordable homes for rent by Keepmoat Homes. 

o Church Canal Gateway – the Council recently accepted an offer of £500,000 from a 

developer for retail purposes, subject to planning consent. 

o Pendle Street, Accrington – the Council has demolished and cleared 27 unfit terraced 

homes and have recently accepted an offer of £180,000 for the cleared site, subject to 

terms and planning. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 61



16 
 

Financial Prospects for Hyndburn Borough Council 

 

Financial Prospects for Hyndburn Borough Council  

The Council was able to maintain its overall financial strength during 2020/21, due to a combination 

of additional financial support from the Government to assist with some of the extra cost pressures 

of combatting COVID 19, responding to the pandemic in a controlled and well managed way which 

kept costs low, while meeting all the major requirements of the local community, drawing upon 

expertise and available resources across the voluntary sector and utilising our key partners and 

continuing to manage our normal internal costs in the usual way to provide value for money to the 

local taxpayer. 

These factors led to a small surplus for the year of £230,928, which is a remarkable achievement 

given the enormous challenges we have addressed over the last 12 months.  The long term impact of 

COVID 19 has yet to be assessed as the virus continues to effective our lives into the new financial 

year.  Council Tax and Business Rate Revenues were both significantly down, not unsurprisingly in 

2020/21 and the Council’s sales, fees and charges also dropped over the period.  How quickly these 

recover during 2021/22 and beyond will be a key determinant of how soon the Council can return to 

some kind of financial norm.  It will also be important for the Government to continue to provide 

additional funding to us for the extra costs we incur in dealing with the COVID virus, throughout 

2021/22.  Assuming the local economy begins to recover quickly after the lockdown ends in June 

2021 and collection rates on council tax, business rates and other revenue sources start to move 

towards pre-COVID levels over the latter half of 2021/22 and there is not a resurgence of COVID 

cases over the Autumn and Winter, the Council should be able to end the 2021/22 financial year with 

a surplus as it has done for many years. 

Our financial reserves remain largely as they were before COVID and therefore we continue to have 

suitable financial resources to draw upon should further challenges continue to present themselves 

over the next few years.  We were able to set a balanced budget for 2021/22 without having to 

underpin it by the use of additional resources and our main focus is now delivering against the 

2021/22 Budget and preparing for the potential changes in our resources that may come from any 

re-alignment of Revenue Support Grant or Business Rates stemming from the Government’s 

proposed Fair Funding Review. 

Our previous expectation that the Council has sufficient resources to meet the challenge of all but 

the most severe rejigging of local government finances remains. 

Cost Pressures 
 
The government is still committed to the new benefits system, Universal Credit. As part of this 
change, housing benefit which is administered by local authorities will end in its current format.  
Consequently, the amount the government pays local authorities to run the housing benefit system 
will reduce substantially.  However, it is likely the Council will have increased marginal costs around 
the system that remains to pay Housing Benefit to Pensioners and may face additional costs in 
winding up housing benefit for working aged people. 
 
Hyndburn Council’s largest expense is salaries at roughly £10m per annum. There are widespread 
calls for a substantial increase in pay for staff given many years of low increases in the aftermath of 
the Recession.  The sympathy generated for public sector frontline workers during COVID 19 might 
lead to pay awards above inflation in addition to the 2.75% agreed for 2020/21.  If these awards are 
fully funded by Government then the impact of the increase is neutral.  However, if pay awards are Page 62



17 
 
made that are not funded, this introduces more cost pressure into the Council and forces the Council 
to reduce services and staff numbers to ensure it can maintain a balanced budget.  

 
Conclusion 
 
The Council’s financial position and history is relatively healthy.  It has been able to set and balance 
its’ revenue budget consistently over many years and delivered its services within that funding 
envelop.  It has continued to fund and deliver a capital programme and there remain is a strong 
balance sheet with adequate reserves. However, the medium term financial strategy, produced in 
February 2021 shows potential costs exceeding resources by 18% (£2m) in 2022/23 with a possible 
budget deficit of 1% (£103,000) in 2023/24. The lack of clarity about future funding levels for the 
Council under the Government’s reforms creates a high degree of uncertainty over the level of 
financial challenge the Council will face from 2022/23.  The impact of COVID 19 has clearly added to 
the financial pressures and uncertainty the Council faces.  Therefore, managing our resource and 
expenditure and having adequate provisions in place become more important than ever in 
maintaining the standard and integrity of everyday services. 
 

The Council’s financial performance demonstrates economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use 

of its resources in 2020/21. It has a track record of making savings as dictated by resource 

availability. I am therefore confident that the Council will continue to maintain a balanced budget in 

the medium term. 

 

Explanation of Accounting Statements 

 

Introduction 

This publication contains the Council’s Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2021.  

 

They provide details of the money the Council spent on delivering services and where this money 

came from. The accounts also show the Council’s financial performance and financial position for the 

year. 

 

Stewardship of Public Money 

 

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 

Accountancy’s Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom and are based 

on International Financial Reporting Standards. 

 

The Council’s Internal and External Auditors verify the regulations are being followed and the 

Council’s accounts are subject to scrutiny by its elected Councillors and External Auditors. 

 

Contents of the Accounts 

 

The different parts of the accounts and their purposes are set out below: 

 

Annual Governance Statement 

 

This sets out key elements of the Council’s governance framework, provides a review of its 

effectiveness and sets out plans for future development. 

 
Page 63



18 
 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report 

 

The report sets out the External Auditor’s opinion on whether the accounts present a true and fair 

view of the financial performance and position of the authority and whether the authority has proper 

arrangements in place to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 

 

Statement of Responsibilities 

 

This sets out the responsibilities of the Council and its Chief Financial Officer in relation to the 

Statement of Accounts. 

 

Expenditure and Funding Analysis 

 

The analysis shows how expenditure and income is used to support the Council’s services. 

 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

 

This statement consolidates all the gains and losses experienced by the Council during the financial 

year. As Councils do not have equity in their Balance Sheets, these gains and losses will reconcile to 

the overall movement in net worth. 

 

The statement has two sections: 

 Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services – the increase or decrease in the net worth of 

the Council as a result of incurring expenses and generating income. 

 Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure – shows any changes in net worth which have 

not been reflected in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services. Examples include the 

increase or decrease in the net worth of the Council as a result of movements in the fair 

value of its assets and actuarial gains or losses on pension’s assets and liabilities. 

 

Movement in Reserves Statement 

 

The Movement in Reserves Statement (MiRS) is a summary of the changes that have taken place in 

the bottom half of the Balance Sheet over the financial year. It does this by analysing: 

 The increase or decrease in the net worth of the Council as a result of incurring expenses and 

generating income 

 The increase or decrease in the net worth of the Council as a result of movements in the fair 

value of its assets 

 Movements between reserves to increase or reduce the resources available to the Council 

according to statutory provisions 

 

Balance Sheet 

 

This statement sets out the financial position of the Council at year-end 31 March. Its top half 

contains the assets and liabilities it holds or has accrued with other parties. As Councils do not have 

equity, the bottom half is comprised of reserves that show the nature of the Council’s net worth, 

falling into two categories: 

 Page 64



19 
 

 Usable Reserves – which include the revenue and capital resources available to meet future 

expenditure. 

 Unusable Reserves – unrealised gains and losses, particularly the revaluation of property, 

plant and equipment e.g. Revaluation Reserve and adjustment accounts e.g. Capital 

Adjustment Account. 

 

Cash Flow Statement 

 

The Cash Flow Statement summarises the flows of cash that have taken place in and out of the 

Council’s bank accounts over the financial year. It separates the flows into: 

 Those that have occurred as a result of the Council’s operations 

 Those arising from the Council’s investing activities (including cash flows relating to non-

current assets) 

 Those attributable to financing decisions 

 

Collection Fund 

 

This reflects the statutory requirement for billing authorities, such as Hyndburn Borough Council, to 

maintain a separate fund for the collection and distribution of amounts due in respect of council tax 

and non-domestic rates (NDR). There is no requirement for a separate Collection Fund Balance 

Sheet. Instead Collection Fund balances are distributed across the balance sheets of the billing 

authority, the government and precepting bodies. 

 

Acknowledgement 

 

I wish to record my thanks to colleagues in Finance services and in other service areas for their work 

and commitment in completing this Statement of Accounts and associated disclosures and 

supporting information. 

 

Further information 

 

A Statement of Accounts inevitably uses technical terms and language.   A comprehensive Glossary of 

Accounting Terminology is on the Council’s website www.hyndburnbc.gov.uk   

 

The availability of the accounts for inspection is advertised by the Council on its website. 

 

The Statement of Accounts, initially before audit completion and subsequently afterwards, is also 

placed on the Council’s website. 

 

If required, further information about the 2020/21 accounts is available from the Head of 

Accountancy Services, Hyndburn Borough Council, Scaitcliffe House, Ormerod Street, Accrington, BB5 

0PF. 

 

J.V. McIntyre   CPFA 

Deputy Chief Executive

Page 65



20 
 

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

 
Annual Governance Statement 

 

Introduction 

 

Hyndburn Borough Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance 

with the law and proper standards and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for. 

The Council also has a duty, under the Local Government Act 1999, to make arrangements to secure 

continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised having regard to a 

combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

 

To discharge this overall responsibility, the Council must have in place proper arrangements for the 

governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its functions which include 

arrangements for the management of risk. 

 

Hyndburn BC has approved and adopted a Code of Corporate Governance which is consistent with 

the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) / Society of Local Authority Chief 

Executives (SOLACE) principles. 

 

This statement explains how Hyndburn Council complied with the Code and also meets the 

requirements of regulation 6(1)[a] of the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015, which 

requires all relevant bodies to prepare an Annual Governance Statement. The purpose of the 

governance framework is to ensure that the system of internal control is a significant part of the 

Council framework and is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of 

failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not 

absolute assurance of effectiveness. 

 

The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise risks 

to the achievement of the Council’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood and 

potential impact of those risks being realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and 

economically.  

 

The Governance Framework has been in place at Hyndburn Borough Council for the year ended 31st 

March 21 and up to the date of the approval of the statement of accounts. 

 

The Council has in place Codes of Conduct which set out the standards of behaviour expected of all 

members and officers. These are provided to all members and officers on appointment and are also 

available on the Council’s website. The Council’s Constitution clearly sets out the respective roles and 

responsibilities of the Council, its Cabinet and Overview and Scrutiny functions, and delegations to 

Committees, Portfolio holders and Chief Officers as well as those functions which, by statute, are to 

be exercised by a designated “Proper Officer”. Committee meetings are open to the public which 

may include attendance virtually, except where personal or confidential matters may be disclosed.  

As part of the Constitution the Council has agreed a Protocol on Member/Officer Relations and 

Conventions for the Management of Council Business. 

 

 

 

Page 66



21 
 
Financial Management Arrangements 

 

The Authority’s Financial Management arrangements conform with the governance requirements of 

the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government. The Council’s 

professionally qualified Chief Finance Officer (the Deputy Chief Executive) is responsible for the 

proper administration of its financial affairs. The Officer attends Council, Cabinet and Corporate 

Management Team meetings and has a direct reporting line to the Chief Executive. Financial advice is 

provided for all the key decisions that are made. A Medium Term Financial Forecast and Treasury 

Management Strategy, which assesses the potential financial risks to the Council, are in place and are 

reviewed regularly. Standing orders and financial regulations, that detail the Council's financial 

management arrangements, are also maintained and reviewed and updated periodically.  

 

The Executive Director  

The Head of Paid Service is the Chief Executive who is responsible for all Council staff and leading an 

effective corporate management team. 

 

 

Principle A: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and 

respecting the rule of law 

 

Hyndburn Borough Council has put in place arrangements to ensure that systems and processes 

conform to appropriate ethical standards, and monitor their continuing effectiveness in practice. 

Such arrangements are embodied in: 

 The Council’s Constitution including Procedure Rules and Codes of Conduct which set out the 

rules on how the Council conducts its business 

 The Codes of Conduct for planning and licensing functions 

 Codes of Conduct for Officers (employees) and Members 

 The Member / Officer Relations Protocol 

 The Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy 

 The Whistleblowing Policy 

 The Complaints Policy and Procedures 

 The procedures for dealing with complaints about elected members 

 The Councils values are in place (Teamwork, Customer Focus, Integrity and Positive Attitude) 

 

All chief officers are required to plan and discharge their departmental functions in accordance with 

Council policies and legislative requirements. Senior officers and other key post holders receive 

support from Legal Services in this regard and if specialist legal advice is required, then the Council 

will engage counsel. 

Corporate management is provided by the Corporate Management Team led by the Chief Executive. 

The Chief Finance Officer (section 151) and the Monitoring Officer have the ability, after consulting 

with the Chief Executive, to report to the Cabinet or full Council and the Council’s External Auditor, if 

s/he considers that any proposal, decision or course of action will incur unlawfulness or unlawful 

expenditure. 

Within the reporting system all committee reports contain a financial implications paragraph and 

legal implications paragraph which must be completed, together with a section requiring 

consideration of the equalities implications of any proposed decision. The section 151 officer and the 

monitoring officer have the opportunity to review and comment on all Cabinet and Council reports 

before they sign them off. The reports are only then included on the relevant agendas. Page 67



22 
 
The Council’s external auditors are Grant Thornton UK LLP whose most recent Annual Audit letter 

concluded the Council has effective management in place for internal control. 

 

 

Principle B: Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement 

Council and Cabinet meetings are open to the public and agenda papers, reports and decisions made 

by the Council are published on its website. It also publishes its Statement of Accounts. 

 

Hyndburn BC has a strong record of successful partnerships delivering outcomes which meet the 

requirements of the local communities. To achieve this, the Council has been able to: 

 

 Exercise appropriate leadership in the community which effectively engages with local 

people, partnerships and other stakeholders and develops constructive accountable 

relationships 

 Make clear to whom it is accountable and for what 

 Ensure that the Council as a whole is open and accessible to the community, and that it has 

made a commitment to openness and transparency in all partnership dealings, subject only 

to preserve confidentiality in those circumstances where it is proper and appropriate to do 

so. 

 

When working in partnership, Hyndburn BC ensures its members are clear about their roles and 

responsibilities, both individually and collectively, in relation to the partnership and to the Council. 

 

The Council also ensures there is clarity about the legal status of the partnership, and that 

representatives or organisations both understand and make clear to all other partners the extent of 

their authority to bind their organisation to partner decisions. 

 

All Council partnerships relate to the agreed corporate priorities and embody, and uphold, proper 

conduct, funding and monitoring arrangements. 

 

Principle C: Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits 

The Council’s purpose and vision has been developed and promoted through its: 

 Corporate Strategy 2018-2023 which is the Council’s own planning document.  

 The Medium Term Financial Strategy which describes how Hyndburn BC will meet the 

financial challenges facing it as a result of government decisions and grant funding changes 

 

The capital programme is monitored by the capital programme working group. Project bids 

supported by a business case are submitted to the group; they are assessed against the Council’s 

strategic objectives and value for money. A list of recommended projects is produced backed by 

defined funding streams; the list is taken to Cabinet for approval and amendment before being 

presented to the full Council as part of the annual budget setting. The Capital Strategy is approved by 

Council each year. 

 

Principle D: Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended 

outcomes 

The Constitution sets out how the Council operates including how decisions are made, and the 

procedures which are followed to ensure transparency and accountability to local people. It includes: 

 Articles of the Constitution – principal arrangements 

 Responsibility for Functions – terms of reference and scheme of delegation 

Page 68



23 
 

 Rules of procedure for Council, Executive and other key areas 

 Codes and Protocols for Council, members and officers 

 

The Council’s two Overview and Scrutiny Committees (Resources and Communities and Well Being) 

assist the Council and Cabinet in the development of a Budget and Policy Framework. Specific 

Procedure Rules and Terms of Reference are in place within the Constitution to govern these 

arrangements and ensure an appropriate and full role is played in the corporate governance of the 

Council by its scrutiny committees. 

 

The Council has in place arrangements to identify and deal with failure in service delivery. They 

include: 

 Corporate complaints policy and procedures 

 Procedure for dealing with complaints about elected members 

 Whistleblowing policy and procedures 

 Internal Audit’s Annual audit Plan and inspection reports 

 External Annual Audit 

 Scrutiny Committee annual work plan and ‘call in’ arrangements 

 Councillors Call for Action 

 

Hyndburn Borough council also has a number of core customer service standards which apply to all 

customers and staff. They include response times for: 

 Letters and e-mails 

 Telephone calls 

 Complaints 

 Visits to council offices 

 Visits to customer homes 

 Out of hours emergencies 

 

They cover the attitude and behaviour of staff and customers. 

The Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee monitor the performance of Council services and 

makes suggestions for improvements. It monitors 

 The Council’s budgetary position during the year and advises of possible efficiency savings 

and steps required to address any budget deficit 

 Service delivery and improvements and the Council’s Treasury Management strategy  

 The achievement of the annual business plans for each service area 

 

The Leader allocates portfolios to each cabinet member and s/he is then responsible for 

performance matters in that area. 

 

At the corporate level the Corporate Management Team manages issues relating to performance 

management. 

 

At service level, heads of service undertake day to day monitoring of performance. 

 

At the operational level, Performance Development reviews for staff ensures employees’ work task 

objectives link into the corporate strategy and they are monitored by line managers. 

 

 
Page 69



24 
 
Principle E: Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the 

individuals within it 

All posts have a job description and person specification. Training needs are identified through the 

Performance Development reviews and are recorded in an employee’s work plan. 

Strategic training needs are defined in the Corporate Training Plan as are generic operational ones in 

development action plans. 

 

The Corporate Training Plan is produced annually in consultation with Directors, Heads of Service and 

other senior managers and is approved by the Management Team and sent to Cabinet for 

information. 

 

In assessing the skills needed by members the Council has made a commitment to develop those 

skills to enable roles to be carried out effectively. It will use the annual Members Development 

Programme and member personal development plans. 

 

The Council has been awarded the North West Charter for member development. 

New officers receive corporate and service unit inductions. 

 

Principle F: Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public 

financial management 

The Council adopted a Risk Management Strategy and Strategic Risks Policy in 2003 and was last 

updated in 2012. Three risk registers (Strategic, Generic and Operational) are in place and 

appropriate staff have been trained in the assessment, management and monitoring of risks. 

Management team undertake reviews aligned to Audit committee cycles to ensure that risks are in 

line with corporate goals and objectives. 

 

Aligned to the Audit Committee cycle, Risk Monitoring Reports are produced for inspection by the 

Audit Committee. The Risk Registers are updated regularly with feedback from Directors, Heads of 

Service and Other Senior Managers, and changes periodically reported to a meeting of the Audit 

Committee. 

 

Internal audit is responsible for monitoring the quality and effectiveness of the system of governance 

and internal control. A risk based Internal Audit Plan is produced each financial year. The reporting 

process for Internal Audit requires a report of each audit to be submitted to the relevant service. The 

report includes recommendations for improvements that are included with a Management Action 

Plan and require agreement or rejection by service managers. The process includes follow up reviews 

of agreed recommendations to ensure they are acted upon. 

 

Insurable risks are regularly reviewed by officers and the Council’s insurer to confirm the appropriate 

level of cover and value for money. 

 

The Council maintains an effective Audit Committee which is independent of the Executive. It has 

scrutiny functions and appropriate arrangements for the discharge of its functions, through its terms 

of reference which are modelled on the CIPFA Code of Practice. 

In order to continue its development and raise its profile the Committee’s membership has been 

maintained at six members. 

 

Internal audit which is an independent appraisal function reports to the Committee. It reviews all the 

Council’s activities, both financial and non-financial. It provides a service to the whole Council in 
Page 70



25 
 
order to assure on risk management arrangements, internal control and corporate governance; it 

also provides advice on best practice. 

 

There are robust budget monitoring arrangements for both capital and revenue with budget 

reporting to Management Team and Members.  

 

Principle G: Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective 

accountability 

All Council decisions are published on its website together with supporting information to explain 

why a particular decision has been taken.  

The Statement of Accounts is published on-line together with the external auditor’s opinion. The 

statement is prepared following CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting which means 

it includes all necessary information and is in a format which allows comparison with other 

authorities. 

 

The Annual Governance Statement, this document, is also published on the web site. The Statement 

follows the principles set out by SOLACE/CIPFA in their document Delivering Good Governance and 

includes a review of the effectiveness of the governance arrangements. 

The Internal Audit function at Hyndburn Borough Council works to an annual plan, progress against 

which, and any associated control issues are reported to the Audit Committee, and provides an 

independent opinion on the internal control framework that was in place in 2020/21. 

 

Our External Auditors, Grant Thornton will review the arrangements that the Council has in place to 

secure Value for Money. This will also provide an opinion on the accuracy and completeness of the 

statement of accounts. 

 

Review of Effectiveness 

Hyndburn Borough Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the 

effectiveness of its governance framework including the system of internal control. The review of the 

effectiveness is informed by the work of the executive managers within the authority who have 

responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance environment, the Head of 

Audit’s Annual Report as well as comments, findings and reports made by the external auditors and 

other review agencies and inspectorates. 

 

Each year the responsible officers review the areas they are responsible for under the internal 

control framework. They confirm existing arrangements and list any changes or improvement made. 

Then they sign a statement to endorse the current position which is kept on file centrally. 

We have been advised on the implications of the result of the review of the effectiveness of the 

governance framework by the corporate management team and that the arrangements continue to 

be regarded as fit for purpose. 

 

The Council is ultimately responsible for maintaining an up to date governance framework which is 

chiefly contained in its Constitution and consists of its standing orders, financial regulations and 

scheme of delegation together with associated policies and procedures. 

During the year the Council’s Internal Auditors concluded that Hyndburn BC has effective 

arrangements in place for internal control and did not raise any significant issues of concern. 

 

 

 
Page 71



26 
 
Certification 

The Council has governance procedures that contain comprehensive systems, cultures and values by 

which it is controlled, and through which it engages with the community in a timely, inclusive, open, 

honest and accountable manner. 

 

    

 
 

Dave Welsby Miles Parkinson 
Chief Executive     Leader of the Council 
 
Date 23rd July 2021 Date   23rd July 2021 
  

Page 72



27 
 

 
AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Hyndburn Borough Council 

This report will appear in the following pages upon completion of the Audit of the 

Financial Statements 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 73



28 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 74



29 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 75



30 
 
 

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

 

The following responsibilities are placed upon the Authority and the Chief Financial Officer in relation 

to the Authority’s financial affairs. 

 

The Authority’s Responsibilities 

 

The Authority is required: 

 

 To make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure 

that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs.  In this 

Authority that officer is the Chief Finance Officer; 

 to manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and 

safeguard its assets; 

 To approve the final Statement of Accounts. 

 

The Chief Financial Officer’s Responsibilities 

 

As Chief Financial Officer, I am responsible for the preparation of the Authority’s Statement of 

Accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on 

Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code). 

 

In preparing the Statement of Accounts, I have: 

 

 selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently; 

 made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent; 

 complied with the Code. 

 

I have also: 

 

 kept proper accounting records which were up to date; 

 taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.  

 

The statement of accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial position of the authority as 

at 31st March 2021 and its income and expenditure for the financial year 2020/21. 

 
 

 

  
 

 
 J. V. McIntyre   CPFA 
 Deputy Chief Executive / Section 151 Officer  Page 76



31 
 

Hyndburn Borough Council 
 
 
Financial Statements 

Page 77



32 
 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
 
The statement shows the accounting cost in year of providing services in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation. 
 
Authorities raise taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different 
from the accounting cost. 
 
The taxation position is shown in both the Expenditure and Funding Analysis and Movement in 
Reserves Statement. 
 
  

Page 78



33 
 

 

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 
STATEMENT  

 
 2019/20     2020/21  

Gross 
Expenditure 

Gross 
Income 

Net 
Expenditure 

 Note Gross 
Expenditure 

Gross Income Net 
Expenditure 

£000 £000 £000   £000 £000 £000 

439 (165) 274 Environmental Health  695 (383) 312 

3,887 (775) 3,112 Waste Services  3,939 (680) 3,259 

1,909 (1,031) 878 Parks & Cemeteries  1,890 (1,217) 673 

1,031 (275) 756 Culture & Leisure  1,563 (204) 1,359 

1,086 (590) 496 Planning & Transport’n  1,277 (727) 550 

3,804 (1,681) 2,123 Regeneration & Property  4,669 (1,837) 2,832 

34,884 (26,882) 8,002 Policy and Corporate 
Governance 

 31,292 (24,186) 7,106 

47,040 (31,399) 15,641 Cost of Services  45,325 (29,234) 16,091 

  (1,248) Other Operating 
Expenditure 

10   (1,027) 

  1,446 Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure 

11   924 

  (12,341) Taxation and Non-Specific 
Grant Income 

12   (18,182) 

  3,498 (Surplus) / Deficit on 
Provision of Services 

   (2,194) 

  (906) (Surplus) / Deficit on 
revaluation of property, 
plant and equipment and 
assets held for sale 

13 / 
20 

  (974) 

  (7,234) Remeasurement of the 
net defined benefit 
liability / (asset) 

38   9,015 

  (8,140) Other Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure 

   8,041 

  (4,642) Total Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure 

   5,847 

 

  

Page 79



34 
 

Movement in Reserves Statement 
 

This statement shows the movement from the start of the year to the end on the different reserves 

held by the Council, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund 

expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other ‘unusable reserves’. 

 

The statement shows how the movements in year of the Council’s reserves are broken down 

between gains and losses incurred in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices and 

the statutory adjustments required to return to the amounts chargeable to council tax (or rents) for 

the year. 

 

The Net Increase / Decrease line shows the statutory General Fund Balance movements in the year 

following those adjustments. 

 

 

 

 

Page 80



35 
 

MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT 
 General 

Fund 
Balance 

Capital 
Receipts 
Reserve 

Capital 
Grants 

Unapplied 

TOTAL 
USABLE 

RESERVES 

 UNUSABLE 
RESERVES  

 TOTAL AUTHORITY 
RESERVES  

 £000 £000 £000 £000  £000  £000 

Balance as at 31 March 2019 13,664 4,303 884 18,851  (7,637)  11,214 

Movement in Reserves during 2019/20         

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (3,498) 0 0 (3,498)  8,140  4,642 

 
Adjustments between accounting basis & 
funding basis under regulations (note 8) 
 

 
 

2,563 

 
 

975 

 
 

168 

 
 

3,706 

  
 

(3,706) 

  
 

0 

Increase or decrease in 2019/20 (935) 975 168 208  4,434  4,642 

Balance at 31 March 2020 carried forward 12,729 5,278 1,052 19,059  (3,203)  15,856 

 General 
Fund 

Balance 

Capital 
Receipts 
Reserve 

Capital 
Grants 

Unapplied 

TOTAL 
USABLE 

RESERVES 

 UNUSABLE 
RESERVES  

 TOTAL AUTHORITY 
RESERVES  

 £000 £000 £000 £000  £000  £000 

Balance as at 31 March 2020 12,729 5,278 1,052 19,059  (3,203)  15,856 

Movement in Reserves during 2020/21         

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 2,194 0 0 2,194  (8,041)  (5,847) 

 
Adjustments between accounting basis & 
funding basis under regulations (note 8) 
 

 
 

1,860 

 
 

477 

 
 

2,726 

 
 

5,063 

  
 

(5,063) 

  
 

0 

Increase or decrease in 2020/21 4,054 477 2,726 7,257  (13,104)  (5,847) 

Balance at 31 March 2020 carried forward 16,783 5,755 3,778 26,316  (16,307)  10,009 

P
age 81



36 
 

Balance Sheet 
 

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities 

recognised by the Council. The net assets of the Council (assets less liabilities) are matched by the 

reserves held by the Council. 

 

Reserves are reported in two categories: 

 

 Usable reserves which can be used by the Council to provide services, subject to the need to 

maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use e.g. Capital 

Receipts Reserve can only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt except where 

temporary freedoms are placed on their use such as to fund the revenue costs of business 

transformation. 

 

 Unusable reserves which the Council cannot use to provide services. This category includes 

reserves that hold unrealised gains or losses e.g. the Revaluation Reserve, where amounts 

would only become available to provide services if the assets are sold; and reserves that 

hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line ‘Adjustments 

between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations’. 

 

 

  

Page 82



37 
 

BALANCE SHEET 
 

31st  March 
2020 
£000 

Balance Sheet for the Council as at year end 
31st March 

 

Note 31st March 
2021 
£000 

 

23,637 Property, Plant & Equipment 13 23,860 

4,490 Heritage Assets 14 4,490 

6,676 Investment Property 15 6,518 

54 Intangible Assets 16 55 

1,375 Assets Held for Sale 20 1,425 

36,232 Total Non-Current Assets  36,348 

8 Long Term Investments 17 8 

524 Long Term Debtors 17 359 

36,764 LONG TERM ASSETS  36,715 

    

51 Inventories 18 46 

22,343 Short Term Debtors 19 6,438 

23,292 Short Term Investments 17 25,046 

997 Assets Held for Sale 20 1,109 

6 Cash & Cash Equivalents 21 17,421 

46,689 CURRENT ASSETS  50,060 

    

(44) Short Term Borrowing 17 (44) 

(8,121) Short Term Creditors 22 (20,981) 

(13,135) Bank (overdraft) – Cash & Cash Equivalents 21 0 

0) Provisions current 23 0 

(21,300) CURRENT LIABILITIES  (21,025) 

    

(9,827) Long Term Borrowing 17 (9,821) 

(4,493) Provisions – Long Term 23 (3,290) 

(78) Deferred Liabilities: Finance Leases 37 (670) 

(31,899) Net Pensions Liability 38 (41,960) 

(46,297) LONG TERM LIABILITIES  (55,741) 

    

15,856 NET ASSETS  10,009 

    

 CAPITAL ACCOUNTS & RESERVES   

 Usable Reserves   

2,313 General Fund Balance Reserve  2,351 

10,416 Earmarked Reserves 9 14,432 

5,278 Usable Capital Receipts Reserve  5,755 

1,052 Capital Grants Unapplied  3,778 

    

(3,203) Unusable Reserves and Accounts 25 (16,307) 

15,856 TOTAL RESERVES AND BALANCES  10,009 

 

Joe McIntyre Deputy Chief Executive (Section 151 Officer) 

 

 

 
Page 83



38 
 

Cash Flow Statement 
 

This statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents for the Council during the reporting 

period. The statement shows how the Council generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by 

classifying cash flows as operating, financing and investing activities. 

 

 The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent 

to which operations of the Council are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from 

the recipients of services provided by the Council 

 Investing cash flows represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made to 

contribute to the Council’s future service delivery 

 Financing cash flows are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of 

capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Council 

 

  

Page 84



39 
 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
 
 

2019/20 
£ 000 

 2020/21 
£000 

3,498 Net (surplus) or deficit on the provision of services (2,194) 
7,425 Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for non-

cash movements – Note 26 i 
(28,250) 

1,375 Adjustments for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the 
provision of services that are investing and financing activities  - Note 26 ii 

1,302 

12,298 Net cash flows from Operating Activities Note 27 (29,142) 
3,056 Investing Activities  -  Note 28 (1,083) 
1,165 Financing Activities  -  Note 29 (325) 

16,519 Net (increase) or decrease in cash and cash equivalents (30,550) 

   

3,390 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period (13,129) 
(13,129) Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period   17,421 

 
 
  

Page 85



40 
 

 
LIST OF NOTES 
 

1. The Expenditure and Funding Analysis 
2. Note to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis 
3. Accounting Policies 
4. Accounting Standards that have been issued but not yet adopted 
5. Critical judgements in applying accounting policies 
6. Assumptions made about the future and other major sources of estimation and uncertainty 
7. Events after the balance sheet date 
8. Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations 
9. Transfers to / from earmarked reserves 
10. Other operating expenditure 
11. Financing and investment income and expenditure 
12. Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income and Expenditure 
13. Property plant and equipment 
14. Heritage assets 
15. Investment properties 
16. Intangible assets 
17. Financial instruments 
18. Inventories 
19. Debtors 
20. Assets held for sale 
21. Cash and cash equivalents 
22. Creditors 
23. Provisions 
24. Usable reserves 
25. Unusable reserves 
26. Cash flow statement – adjustments for non-cash movements 
27. Cash flow statement – operating activities 
28. Cash flow statement – investing activities 
29. Cash flow statement – financing activities 
30. Trading operations 
31. Members allowances 
32. Officers remuneration 
33. External Audit Costs 
34. Grant income 
35. Related parties 
36. Capital expenditure and capital financing 
37. Leases 
38. Defined benefit pension schemes 
39. Contingent liabilities 
40. Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments 

  

Page 86



41 
 
 

Expenditure and Funding Analysis 
 

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis is a note to the accounts which shows how annual expenditure 

is used and funded from resources (government grants, rents, council tax and business rates) by local 

authorities in comparison with those resources consumed or earned by authorities in accordance 

with generally accepted accounting practices. It also shows how this expenditure is allocated for 

decision making purposes between the council’s services. Income and expenditure accounted for 

under generally accepted accounting practices is presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure Statement. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 87



42 
 

EXPENDITURE AND FUNDING ANALYSIS 
 
 

  2019/20    2020/21 

Net Expenditure 
chargeable to 
the General 

Fund 

Adjustments 
between Funding & 

Accounting Basis 

Net Expenditure in the 
Comprehensive Income & 

Expenditure Statement 

 Net Expenditure 
chargeable to the 

General Fund 

Adjustments 
between Funding & 

Accounting Basis 

Net Expenditure in the 
Comprehensive Income & 

Expenditure Statement 

£000 £000 £000  £000 £000 £000 

260 14 274 Environmental Health 286 26 312 

2,914 198 3,112 Waste Services 3,004 255 3,259 

712 166 878 Parks & Cemeteries 483 190 673 

300 456 756 Culture & Leisure 972 387 1,359 

461 35 496 Planning & Transportation 483 67 550 

2,417 (294) 2,123 Regeneration & Property 4,789 (1,957) 2,832 

3,992 4,010 8,002 Policy & Corporate 
Governance 

5,464 1,642 7,106 

11,056 4,585 15,641 Net Cost of Services 15,481 610 16,091 

(10,121) (2,022) (12,143) Other Income & 
Expenditure 

(19,535) 1,250 (18,285) 
 

935 2,563 3,498 (Surplus) or Deficit (4,054) 1,860 (2,194) 

  13,664 Opening General Fund 
Balance 

  12,729 

  (935) Less / Plus Surplus or 
(Deficit) on General Fund 
Balance in Year 

  4,054 

  12,729 Closing General Fund 
Balance at 31st March 

  16,783 P
age 88



43 
 

2.   NOTE TO THE EXPENDITURE AND FUNDING ANALYSIS 
 

Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis 2019/20 

 

Adjustments from General Fund to 
arrive at the CIES amounts 

Adjustment for 
Capital 
Purposes 

Net change for 
Pension 
Adjustments 

Other 
Differences 

Total 
Adjustments 

 £000 
 

£000 
 

£000 
 

£000 
 

Environmental Health 0 14 0 14 

Waste Services 103 89 6 198 

Parks & Cemeteries 118 44 4 166 

Culture & Leisure 451 5 0 456 

Planning & Transportation 7 31 (3) 35 

Regeneration & Property (361) 61 6 (294) 

Policy & Corporate Governance 2,900 1,095 16 4,011 
 

Net Cost of Services 3,218 1,339 29 4,586 

Other income and expenditure from 
the EFA 

(2,832) 861 (52) (2,023) 

Difference between General Fund 
Surplus / Income and Expenditure 
Statement Surplus / Deficit on the 
Provision of Services 

386 2,200 (23) 2,563 

 
Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis 2020/21 
 
Adjustments from General Fund to 
arrive at the CIES amounts 

Adjustment for 
Capital 
Purposes 

Net change for 
Pension 
Adjustments 

Other 
Differences 

Total 
Adjustments 

 £000 
 

£000 
 

£000 
 

£000 
 

Environmental Health 0 25 1 26 

Waste Services 103 153 (1) 255 

Parks & Cemeteries 118 72 1 191 

Culture & Leisure 378 9 0 387 

Planning & Transportation 5 55 6 66 

Regeneration & Property (2,064) 105 2 (1,957) 

Policy & Corporate Governance 1,766 (137) 13 1,642 

Net Cost of Services 306 282 22 610 

Other income and expenditure from the 
EFA 

(2,541) 765 3,026 1,250 

Difference between General Fund 
Surplus / Income and Expenditure 
Statement Surplus / Deficit on the 
Provision of Services 

(2,235) 1,047 3,048 1,860 

 

Adjustments for Capital Purposes 

Adjustments for capital purposes – this column adds in depreciation and impairment and revaluation 

gains and losses in the services line, and for: 

 Other operating expenditure – adjusts for capital disposals with a transfer of income on 

disposal of assets and the amounts written off for those assets. 

Page 89



44 
 

 Financing and investment income and expenditure – the statutory charges for capital 

financing i.e. Minimum Revenue Provision and other revenue contributions are deducted 

from other income and expenditure as these are not chargeable under generally accepted 

accounting practices. 

 Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure – capital grants are adjusted for 

income not chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices. Revenue grants are 

adjusted from those receivable in the year to those receivable without conditions or for 

which conditions were satisfied throughout the year. The Taxation and Non Specific Grant 

Income and Expenditure line is credited with capital grants receivable in the year without 

conditions or for which conditions were satisfied in the year. 

 

Net Changes for the Pension Adjustments 

Net change for the removal of pension contributions and the addition of IAS 19 Employee Benefits 

pension related expenditure and income. 

 For services represents the removal of the employer pension contributions made by the 

authority as allowed by statute and the replacement with current service costs and past 

service costs. 

 For financing and investment income and expenditure – the net interest on the defined 

benefit liability is charged to the CIES. 

 

Other Differences 

Other differences between amounts debited / credited to the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement and amounts payable / receivable to be recognised under statute. 

 For financing and investment income and expenditure the other differences column 

recognises adjustments to the General Fund for the timing differences for premiums and 

discounts. 

 The charge under taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure represents the 

difference between what is chargeable under statutory regulations for council tax and NDR 

that was projected to be received at the start of the year and the income recognised under 

generally accepted accounting practices in the Code. This is a timing difference as any 

difference will be brought forward in future Surpluses or Deficits on the Collection Fund. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 90



45 
 

EXPENDITURE AND INCOME ANALYSED BY NATURE  

The authority’s expenditure and income is analysed as below: 

 2019/20 2020/21 

Expenditure/ Income £000 £000 

Expenditure   

Employee benefits & expenses 10,393 10,499 
Other service expenses 13,597 15,269 
Transfer payments (Housing Benefit) 21,043 19,897 
Depreciation, amortisation & impairment 2,253 1,245 
Non-enhancing expenditure 

 

0 645 
Interest payments 1,292 1,211 
Precepts & levies 13 13 
(Surplus)/Deficit on revaluation of assets held for sale 53 0 
(Gain)/ loss on disposal of assets (1,261) (1,040) 
Total expenditure 47,383 47,739 

Income   
Fees, charges & other service income (8,207) (6,969) 
Interest & investment income (671) (1,202) 
Income from council tax & non-domestic rates (9,214) (5,417) 
Government grants & contributions (Note 34) (25,793) (36,345) 
Total income (47,099) (49,933) 
(Surplus) or deficit on the provision of services 3,498 (2,194) 

 

SEGMENTAL INCOME 

Income received on a segmental basis is analysed below: 

 2019/20 2020/21 

Services Income from Services Income from Services 

 £000 £000 
Environmental Health (163) (109) 
Waste Services (778) (648) 
Parks & Cemeteries (998) (1,320) 
Culture & Leisure (262) (5) 
Planning & Transportation (537) (535) 
Regeneration & Property (619) (701) 
Policy and Corporate 
Governance 

(1,393) (717) 

Total Income (4,750) (4,035) 

 

  

Page 91



46 
 

3. ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

i. General Principles 

 

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Authority’s transactions for 2020/21 financial year and 

its position at the year-end 31st March 2021. The Council is required to prepare an annual 

Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit Regulations (2015), which those Regulations 

require to be prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices under 

section 21 of the 2003 Act primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in 

the United Kingdom 2020/21 (the Code), supported by the International Financial Reporting 

Standards (IFRS). 

 

The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, 

modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments. 

 

ii. Accruals of Income and Expenditure 

 

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or 

received. In particular: 

 

 Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Council transfers the significant risks 

and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits or 

service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Council. 

 Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Council can measure reliably 

the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that economic benefits or 

service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Council. 

 Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there is a gap 

between the date supplies are received and their consumption; they are carried as 

inventories on the Balance Sheet. 

 Expenses in relation to services received (including services as provided by employees) are 

recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are 

made. 

 Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively 

as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest for the relevant financial 

instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract. 

 Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or 

paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where 

debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to 

revenue for the income that might not be collected.   

 

iii. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without 

penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments that 

mature in no more than three months or less from the date of acquisition and are readily convertible 

to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. 

Page 92



47 
 

 

In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are 

repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Council’s cash management. 

 

iv. Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors 

 

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a 

material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively i.e. in the current 

and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment. 

 

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the 

change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events 

and conditions on the Authority’s financial position or financial performance. 

 

Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening 

balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied. 

 

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening 

balances and comparative amounts for the prior period. 

 

v. Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets 

 

Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to record 

the cost of holding non-current assets during the year: 

 

 Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service. 

 Revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no 

accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off. 

 Amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service. 

 

The Council is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment 

losses or amortisation. However it is required to make an annual contribution from revenue towards 

the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement. 

 

Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisation are therefore replaced by the 

contribution in the General Fund Balance (the Minimum Revenue Provision) calculated on a prudent 

basis by the Council in accordance with statutory guidance. This is achieved through an adjusting 

transaction between the General Fund Balance and the Capital Adjustment Account in the 

Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two.  

 

vi. Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates 

 

Billing authorities act as agents, collecting council tax and non-domestic rates (NDR) on behalf of the 

major preceptors (including government for NDR) and, as principals, collecting council tax and NDR 

for themselves. Billing authorities are required by statute to maintain a separate fund (i.e. the 

Page 93



48 
 

Collection Fund) for the collection and distribution of amounts due in respect of council tax and 

NDR. Under the legislative framework for the Collection Fund, billing authorities, major preceptors 

and central government share proportionately the risks and rewards that the amount of council tax 

and NDR collected could be less or more than predicted. 

 

Accounting for Council Tax and NDR 

 

The council tax and NDR income included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

is the authority’s share of accrued income for the year. However, regulations determine the amount 

of council tax and NDR that must be included in the authority’s General Fund. Therefore, the 

difference between the income included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

and the amount required by regulation to be credited to the General Fund is taken to the Collection 

Fund Adjustment Account and included as a reconciling item in the Movement in Reserves 

Statement. 

 

The Balance Sheet includes the Council’s share of the year end balances in respect of council tax and 

NDR relating to arrears, impairment allowances for doubtful debts, overpayments and prepayments 

and appeals. 

 

vii. Employee Benefits 

 

Benefits Payable During Employment 

 

Short term employee benefits such as wages and salaries, paid annual leave, sick leave and expenses 

are paid on a monthly basis and charged on an accruals basis to the relevant service line of the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES). 

 

Termination Benefits 

 

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to terminate an 

officer’s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary 

redundancy in exchange for those benefits and are charged on an accruals basis to the appropriate 

service lines in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement at the earlier of when the 

Council can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or when the Council recognises costs for 

a restructuring. 

 

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the 

General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or 

pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In 

the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from the Pension Reserve 

to remove the notional debits and credits for pension enhancement termination benefits and 

replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such 

amounts payable but unpaid at year-end. 

 

Post-Employment Benefits 

Page 94



49 
 

 

Employees of the Council are eligible to join the Local Government Pension Scheme administered by 

Lancashire County Council. The scheme provides defined benefits to members (retirement lump 

sums and pensions) earned as employees worked for the Council. 

 

 

The Local Government Pension Scheme 

 

The Local Government Pension Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme: 

 

 The liabilities of the Lancashire County Pension Scheme attributable to Hyndburn Borough 

Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit 

method – i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to 

retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality 

rates, employee turnover rates, etc., and projected earnings for current employees. 

 Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate of 2.1% (2.4% 

31st March 2020) based on the indicative rate of return on high quality (AA rated) corporate 

bonds. 

 The assets of the Lancashire County Council Pension Fund attributable to Hyndburn Borough 

Council are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value: 

o Quoted securities – current bid price 

o Unquoted securities – professional estimate 

o Utilised securities – current bid price 

o Property – market value 

 

 The change in the Net Pensions Liability is analysed into the following components: 

Service cost comprising: 

 

o Current Service Cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned 

this year – allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to 

the services for which the employee worked. 

o Past Service Cost – the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions 

whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years – debited to the 

Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement. 

o Net Interest on The Net Defined Benefit Liability (Asset) i.e. net interest expense for 

the Council – the change during the period in the net defined benefit liability (asset) 

that arises from the passage of time charged to the Financing and Investment 

Income and Expenditure line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement – that is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the 

defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit 

liability (asset) at the beginning of the period – taking into account any changes in 

the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contribution 

and benefit payments. 

 

Page 95



50 
 

Remeasurements comprising: 

 

o The Return on Plan Assets – excluding amounts included in net interest on the net 

defined benefit liability (asset) – charged to the Pensions Reserve as other 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

o Actuarial Gains and Losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise because 

events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or 

because the actuaries have updated their assumptions – charged to the Pension 

Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

 

Contributions paid to the Lancashire County Pension Fund – cash paid as employer’s 

contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an 

expense. 

 

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund Balance to be 

charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the 

year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in 

Reserves Statement, this means there are transfers to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the 

notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to 

the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at year end. The 

negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the 

General Fund of being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather 

than as benefits are earned by employees.  

 

Discretionary Benefits 

 

The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the 

event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of 

staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the same 

policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme. 

 

viii. Events After The Reporting Period 

 

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur 

between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised 

for issue. Two types of event can be identified: 

 

 Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period – 

the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events. 

 Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period – the Statement 

of Accounts are not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would 

have a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their 

estimated financial effect. 

 

Page 96



51 
 

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of 

Accounts. 

 

ix. Financial Instruments 

 

Financial Liabilities 

 

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and are 

carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Income and 

Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest payable are 

based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the 

instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash 

payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at which it was originally recognised. 

 

For most of the borrowings that the Council has, this means that the amount presented in the 

Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest); and interest charged to 

the CIES is the amount payable for the year according to the loan agreement. 

 

 

Financial Assets 

 

Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that reflects the 

business model for holding the financial assets and their Cashflow characteristics there are three 

main classes of financial assets measured at: 

 

 Amortised cost 

 Fair value through profit and loss (FVPL), and 

 Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). 

  

The Council’s business model is to hold investments to collect contractual cash flows. Financial 

assets are therefore classified as amortised cost, except for those whose contractual payments are 

not solely payment of principal and interest (i.e. where the cash flows do not take the form of a basic 

debt instrument). 

 

Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost 

 

These are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party to the contractual 

provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value. They are subsequently 

measured at their amortised cost. Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and 

Expenditure line in the Loans and receivables are recognised in the Balance Sheet when the Council 

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at 

fair value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost. Annual credits to the Financing 

and Investment Income and Expenditure (FIIE) line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement (CIES) for interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by 

Page 97



52 
 

the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most of the loans the Council has made, this 

means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus 

accrued interest) and interest credited to the CIES is the amount receivable for the year in the loan 

agreement. 

 

However, the Council has made loans to an organisation at less than market rates (soft loans). When 

soft loans are made, a loss is recorded in the CIES (debited to the appropriate service) for the 

present value of the interest that will be foregone over the life of the instrument, resulting in a lower 

amortised cost than the outstanding principal.  

 

Interest is credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES at a 

marginally higher effective rate of interest than the rate receivable from the voluntary organisation, 

with the difference serving to increase the amortised cost of the loan in the Balance Sheet. Statutory 

provisions require that the impact of soft loans on the General Fund Balance is the interest 

receivable for the financial year – the reconciliation of amounts debited and credited to the CIES to 

the net gain required against the General Fund Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the 

Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

 

Any gains or losses that arise on the Derecognition of an asset are credited or debited to the FIIE in 

the CIES. 

 

Expected Credit Loss Model 

 

The Council recognises expected credit losses on all of its financial assets held at amortised cost (or 

where equivalent FVOCI), either on a 12-month or lifetime basis. The expected credit loss model also 

applies to lease receivables and contract assets. Only lifetime losses are recognised for trade 

receivables (debtors) held by the Council.   

 

Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectations that the future cash flows might not 

take place because the borrower could default on their obligations. Credit risk plays a crucial part in 

assessing losses. Where risk has increased significantly since an instrument was initially recognised, 

losses are assessed on a lifetime basis. Where risk has not increased significantly or remains low, 

losses are assessed on the basis of 12-month losses. 

 

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Profit and Loss 

 

Financial assets that are measured at FVPL are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council 

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured 

and carried at fair value. Fair value gains and losses are recognised as they arrive in the Surplus or 

Deficit on the Provision of Services. 

 

The fair value measurement of the financial assets are based on the following techniques: 

 

a) Instruments with quoted market prices – the market price  

b) Other instruments with fixed and determinable payments – discounted cash flow analysis.  

Page 98



53 
 

 

The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the following three 

levels:  

 Level 1 – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that 

the authority can access at the measurement date.  

 Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the 

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.  

 Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.  

 

The Council used Sloane & Associates to provide a valuation of its property assets and liabilities in 

line with the highest and best use definition within the accounting standard; and Link Asset Services 

to value its investments and borrowings. The highest and best use of the asset being valued is 

considered from the perspective of a market participant.  

 

The Council’s surplus assets are judged to be Level 2. 

 

xi. Government Grants and Contributions 

 

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party 

contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable 

assurance that: 

 

 The Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and 

 The grants or contributions will be received. 

 

Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been satisfied. 

Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential 

embodied in the asset in the form of the grant or contribution are required to be consumed by the 

recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the 

transferor. 

 

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are 

carried in the balance sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is 

credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and 

Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ring-fenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they 

are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the 

grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied 

Reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the 

Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have 

been applied to fund capital expenditure. 

 

Page 99



54 
 

 

xii. Heritage Assets 

 

Tangible Heritage Assets (described in this summary of significant accounting policies as heritage 

assets) 

 

The Council’s heritage assets are held in the Haworth Art Gallery. The Gallery has four collections of 

heritage assets which are held in support of the primary objective of the museum i.e. maximise the 

recognition, appreciation and use of Haworth Art Gallery and its unique Tiffany Glass collection as a 

historic and contemporary art, education, leisure and tourism asset of local, regional and national 

importance. 

 

Heritage assets are recognised and measured (including the treatment of revaluation gains and 

losses) in accordance with the Council’s accounting policies on property, plant and equipment. 

However some of the measurement rules are relaxed in relation to heritage assets as detailed 

below.  

 

The Tiffany Glass Collection 

 

The Tiffany Glass collection includes handmade blown glass vases, glass tiles, jewels and mosaics; as 

well as pottery, metalwork and enamel items. 

 

The items are reported in the Balance Sheet at insurance valuation which is based on market values. 

The insurance valuations are updated periodically, with the next valuation to be undertaken in 

2021/2022. 

 

The Art Collection 

 

The art collection includes paintings (both oil and watercolour) as well as etchings, book illustrations 

and chromolithographs. It is reported in the Balance Sheet at market value. The insurance valuations 

are updated periodically, with the next valuation to be undertaken in 2021/2022. 

 

Numismatics Collection 

 

The collection comprises coins, medals and tokens. The medals show portraits of famous people 

through history, while the trade tokens have a strong local connection. 

 

The items are reported in the Balance Sheet at insurance valuation which is based on market values. 

The insurance valuations are updated periodically, with the next valuation to be undertaken in 

2021/2022. 

 

 

Community Collection 

 

Page 100



55 
 

The items are reported in the Balance Sheet at insurance valuation which is based on market values. 

The insurance valuations are updated periodically, with the next valuation to be undertaken in 

2021/2022. 

 

 

The date of the latest valuation of Heritage Assets undertaken by Eric Knowles Antiquarian Services 

is August 2016. 

 

Assets within all four collections are deemed to have indeterminate lives and, in the case of the glass 

and art collections, a high residual value; hence the Council does not consider it appropriate to 

charge depreciation. 

 

All four collections are relatively static and acquisitions and donations are rare. The Gallery is 

accredited by the Arts Council of Great Britain which means it has a statement of purpose, an 

acquisition and disposals policy, a guide to the documentation relating to the collections and a plan 

for the collections’ care and conservation. 

 

Civic Regalia 

 

The Council also has a collection of civic regalia which is held at the Town Hall. It was last valued for 

insurance purposes by Precious Metals in August 2016. 

 

xiii. Intangible Assets 

 

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled by the 

Council e.g. software licences is capitalised when it is expected that the future economic benefits or 

service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the Council. 

 

Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely or primarily 

intended to promote or advertise the Council’s goods and services. 

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair value of an 

asset can be determined by reference to an active market. In practice, no intangible asset held by 

the Council meets this criterion, and they are therefore carried at amortised cost. 

 

The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is amortised over its useful life to the relevant service 

line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 

Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes, 

amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to have an impact 

on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund 

Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and 

(for any sales proceeds greater than £10,000) to the Capital Receipts Revenue Account. 

 

xiv. Interests in Companies and Other Entities 

 

Page 101



56 
 

The Council no longer has material interests in other entities that have the nature of associates; 

Hyndburn BC therefore no longer prepares group accounts.  

 

 

xv. Inventories 

 

Inventories are held in the Balance Sheet at purchase price. The cost of inventories is assigned using 

the First In First Out costing formula. 

 

xvi. Investment Property 

 

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and / or for capital appreciation. 

The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or 

production of goods or is held for sale. 

 

Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, being the price 

that would be received to sell such an asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at 

the measurement date. As a non-financial asset, investment properties are measured at highest and 

best use.  Properties are not depreciated but revalued annually according to market conditions at 

year end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the financing and Investment Income and 

Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is 

applied to gains and losses on disposal. 

 

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and Investment 

Income line and result in a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal 

gains and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the General 

Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the 

Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale 

proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve. 

 

xvii. Leases 

 

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks 

and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the 

lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 

 

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered 

separately for classification. 

 

The Council as Lessee 

 

Finance Leases 

 

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are recognised on the Balance Sheet at the 

commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception. The asset recognised 

Page 102



57 
 

is matched by a liability for the obligation to pay the lessor. Contingent rents are charged as 

expenses in the periods in which they are incurred. 

 

Lease payments are apportioned between: 

A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment – applied to write 

down the lease liability, and 

 

A finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement). 

 

Property, plant and equipment recognised under finance leases are accounted for using the policies 

applied generally to such assets. 

 

The Council is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation or revaluation and impairment 

losses arising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made from revenue funds 

towards the deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory requirements. Depreciation 

and revaluation and impairment losses are therefore substituted by a revenue contribution in the 

General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the 

Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two. 

 

Operating Leases 

 

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement as an expense of the services benefitting from the use of the leased property, plant or 

equipment.  

 

The Council as Lessor 

 

Finance Leases  

Where the Council grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the 

relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the commencement of the lease, 

the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or 

Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. A gain, representing the 

Council’s net investment in the lease, is credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying 

value of the asset at the time of disposal), matched by a lease (long-term debtor) asset in the 

Balance Sheet.  

 

Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between:  

 

 A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property – applied to write down the lease 

debtor (together with any premiums received), and  

 Finance income (credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in 

the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).  

Page 103



58 
 

 

The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on disposal is not 

permitted by statute to increase the General Fund Balance and is required to be treated as a capital 

receipt. Where a premium has been received, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the 

Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the amount due in relation 

to the lease asset is to be settled by the payment of rentals in future financial years, this is posted 

out of the General Fund Balance to the Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in 

Reserves Statement. When the future rentals are received, the element for the capital receipt for 

the disposal of the asset is used to write down the lease debtor. At this point, the deferred capital 

receipts are transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve.  

 

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-current 

assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are therefore 

appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in 

Reserves Statement. 

 

Operating Leases  

 

Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the 

asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other Operating Expenditure 

line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are made on a straight-line 

basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a 

premium paid at the commencement of the lease). Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and 

arranging the lease are added to the carrying amount of the relevant asset and charged as an 

expense over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. 

 

xviii. Overheads and Support Services 

 

The costs of overheads and support services are charged to service segments in accordance with the 

Council’s arrangements for accountability and financial performance. 

 

xix. Property, Plant and Equipment 

 

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods and 

services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes  and that are expected to be used during 

more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment. 

 

Recognition 

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is 

capitalised on accruals basis, provided it is probable that the future economic benefits or service 

potential associated with the item will flow to the Council and the cost of the item can be measured 

reliably. 

 

Page 104



59 
 

Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s potential to deliver future economic 

benefits or service potential (e.g. repairs and maintenance) is charged to the Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure Statement as it is incurred. 

 

 

 

Measurement 

Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising the purchase price and any costs attributable to 

bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the 

manner intended by the management. 

 

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases: 

 

 Infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction – depreciated historical cost 

 Surplus Assets – the current value measurement base is fair value, estimated at highest and 

best use from a market participant’s perspective 

 All other assets – the current value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the 

asset in its existing use (existing use value – EUV) 

 

Where there is no market based evidence of current value because of the specialist nature of an 

asset, depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of current value. 

 

Where non-property assets that have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated 

historical cost basis is used as a proxy for current value. 

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure 

their carrying amount is not materially different from their current value at the year end, but as a 

minimum every five years. Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve 

to recognise unrealised gains. 

 

Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by: 

 Where there is a balance for gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying 

amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the 

accumulated gains) 

 Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying 

amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line in the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement 

 

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since April 1st 2007 only, the date of 

its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital 

Adjustment Account. 

 

Impairment 

Assets are assessed at year end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. 

Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the recoverable 

Page 105



60 
 

amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an 

impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall. 

 

 

 

 

 

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by: 

 

 Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the 

carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the 

accumulated gains) 

 Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying 

amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line in the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant service 

line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original loss, 

adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised. 

 

Depreciation 

Depreciation is provided for on all property, plant and equipment assets by the systematic allocation 

of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets without a 

determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land and certain Community Assets) and assets that are 

not yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction). 

 

The Council operates a straight line method for depreciation over the useful economic life of the 

asset as follows: 

 

Asset Period (Years) 

Operational Buildings 30 - 60* 

Non-Operational Buildings 30 - 60* 

Community Assets 5 - 50 

Infrastructure 10 

Vehicles & Plant 2-14 

Surplus Assets –Housing Market Renewal Properties 15 

 

*As part of the Council’s five year rolling revaluation programme, a revised estimated useful life of 

the asset (if applicable) may be applied, up to a maximum of 60 years. 

 

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost is 

significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately. 

 

Component Accounting 

Page 106



61 
 

Componentisation applies where an asset comprises two or more major components with 

substantially different useful economic lives. For the purpose of depreciation, each component is 

accounted for separately and depreciated over the course of its respective life. 

 

The policy applied at Hyndburn Borough Council has a de minimus level of £500,000 asset value for 

the building element and a maximum number of components of five.  

  

 

Assets Held for Sale 

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally 

through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset Held 

for Sale. 

 

Assets Held for Sale are assets where the: 

 

 Asset is immediately available for sale 

 Sale is highly probable 

 Asset is actively marketed 

 Sale is expected to be completed within twelve months 

 

The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this 

amount and fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs 

to sell, the loss is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any previous 

losses recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services. Depreciation is not charged on 

Assets Held for Sale. 

 

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are reclassified back 

to non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before they were classified as 

held for sale; adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been 

recognised had they not been classified as Held for Sale, and their recoverable amount at that date 

of the decision not to sell. 

 

Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale. 

 

Disposals 

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance 

Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other 

Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the 

gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals, if any, are credited to the same line in the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. 

netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains 

accumulated on the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment 

Account. 

 

Page 107



62 
 

Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. A 

proportion of receipts relating to housing disposals (75% for dwellings, 50% for land and other 

assets, net of statutory deductions and allowances) is payable to the Government. The balance of 

receipts is required to be credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve, and can then only be used for 

new capital investment or set aside to reduce the Council’s capital financing requirement. Receipts 

are appropriated to the Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

 

The written off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of fixed assets is fully 

provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are appropriated to the 

Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves 

Statement. 

 

xx. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

 

Provisions 

Provisions are made when an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or constructive 

obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential 

and a reliable estimation can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

 

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure Statement in the year that the Council becomes aware of the obligation, and are 

measured at the best estimate at the Balance Sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the 

obligation, taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties. 

 

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance Sheet. 

Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year – where it becomes less than 

probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement than 

anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant service. 

 

Where some or all of the payment required to settle the provision is expected to be recovered from 

another party (e.g. from an insurance claim), it is only recognised as income for the relevant service 

if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the Council settles the obligation. 

 

Contingent Liabilities 

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible 

obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain 

future events not wholly within the Council’s control. Contingent liabilities can also arise in 

circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not sufficiently certain 

that the event will take place or the obligation cannot be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are 

not recognised in the Balance Sheet but are disclosed in a note to the accounts. 

 

xxi. Reserves 

 

The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover 

contingencies. Reserves are created by transferring amounts out of the General Fund Balance in the 

Page 108



63 
 

Movements in Reserves Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is 

charged to the appropriate service in that year to score against the Surplus or Deficit on the 

Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then 

transferred back into the General Fund Balance so that there is no net charge against council tax for 

the expenditure. 

 

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial 

instruments, local taxation, retirement and employee benefits. These do not represent usable 

resources for the Council, and include the capital adjustment account, revaluation reserve and the 

pensions reserve. 

 

xxii. Revenue Expenditure Funded From Capital Under Statute 

 

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but does 

not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to the relevant 

service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year. 

 

Where the Council has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital 

resources or by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the General 

Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts charged so that 

there is no impact on the level of council tax. 

 

xxiii. VAT 

 

VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her 

Majesty’s Revenue and Customs. Vat receivable is excluded from income. 

 

xxiv. Fair Value Measurement 

 

The Council measures some of its non-financial assets such as surplus assets and investment 

properties and some of its financial instruments such as equity shareholdings at fair value at each 

reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a 

liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair 

value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place 

either:  

a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or  

b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or 

liability.  

The Council measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions that market 

participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in 

their economic best interest.  

When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the authority takes into account a market 

participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by 

selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.  

Page 109



64 
 

The Council uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 

sufficient data is available, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use 

of unobservable inputs.  

Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured 

or disclosed in the Council’s financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, as 

follows:  

Level 1 – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the 

Council can access at the measurement date 

Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 

liability, either directly or indirectly 

Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.  

 

4. ACCOUNTING STANDARDS THAT HAVE BEEN ISSUED BUT NOT YET ADOPTED 

 

At the balance sheet date, the following new standards and amendments to existing standards have 

been published but not yet adopted by the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the 

United Kingdom: 

 

The 2021/22 Code will introduce the following amendments: 

 

 Amendments to International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 3 – Business combinations 

– definition of a business. 

 Interest rate benchmark reform – Amendments to IFRS 9, International Accounting Standard 

(IAS) 39 and IFRS 7. 

 Interest rate benchmark reform – Phase 2: Amendments to IFRS 9, IA|S 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 

and IFRS 16. 

 

These changes are not anticipated to impact upon the Council’s 2020/21 accounts. 

 

Future Accounting Changes 

 

IFRS 16 Leases will lead to a substantial change in accounting practice for lessees, the current 

distinction between finance and operating leases will be removed. Instead, lessees are required to 

recognise assets and liabilities for all leases i.e. the lessee will recognise a right-of-use asset 

representing its right to use the leased asset; and a lease liability representing the lessee's obligation 

to make lease payments for the asset.  

 

Lessees will have a single accounting model for all leases with two exemptions: 

 

 Low Value Assets 

 Short term leases (lease term of 12 months or less) 

 

The implementation of IFRS 16 Leases has been deferred until 1 April 2022. The council is currently 

reviewing its leases to assess the impact of the change. 

Page 110



65 
 

 

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 

In applying the accounting policies set out in note 3, the Council has had to make certain judgements 

about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events. The critical 

judgement made in the Statement of Accounts is: 

 

 The Council is part of a Lancashire–wide business rate pooling pilot which changes from a 

50% business rate retention scheme in 2019/20 to a 75% business rate pilot in 2019/20 for 

one year only. The potential risks and rewards are greater under the new scheme, but the 

Council’s accounts as at 31 March 2020 are unaffected by the changes from 2019/20. 

 

 The Council usually collects approximately £21m in business rates although in 2020/21 it was 

£12m due to retail reliefs given by the Government. The assumptions around the outcome 

of appeals against the business rates valuations (either received to date or expected in 

future years) represent a material and critical judgement applied to the accounts. The 

appeals provision is empirically derived from the experience with both the 2005 and 2010 

lists as well as appeals determinations so far made against the 2017 list. 

 

6. ASSUMPTIONS MADE ABOUT THE FUTURE AND OTHER MAJOR SOURCES OF 

ESTIMATION AND UNCERTAINTY  

 

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the 

Council about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into account 

historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, because balances cannot 

be determined with certainty, actual results could be materially different from the assumptions and 

estimates. The items in the Council’s Balance Sheet at 31st March 2021 for which there is a 

significant risk of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows: 

Item Uncertainties Effect if actual results differ 

from Assumptions 

Page 111



66 
 

 

 

 

 

 

7. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE 
 

The Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the s151 officer on 16th August 2021. Events 

taking place after this date have not been reflected in the financial statement or notes. Where 

events taking place before this date provide information about conditions existing at 31st March 

2021, the figures in the financial statements and notes have been adjusted in all material aspects to 

reflect the impact of this information. 

 

8. ADJUSTMENTS BETWEEN ACCOUNTING BASIS AND FUNDING BASIS UNDER 

REGULATIONS 

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and expenditure 

recognised by the Council in the year in accordance with proper accounting practice to the resources 

that are specified by statutory provisions as being available to the Council to meet future capital and 

revenue expenditure. 

 

The following sets out a description of the reserves that the adjustments are made against. 

 

General Fund Balance 

The General Fund is the statutory fund into which all the receipts of the authority are required to be 

paid and out of which all liabilities of the authority are to be met, except to the extent that statutory 

rules might provide otherwise. These rules can also specify the financial year in which liabilities and 

payments should impact on the General Fund Balance, which is not necessarily in accordance with 

proper accounting practice. The General Fund Balance therefore summarises the resources the 

Council is statutorily empowered to spend on its services or on capital investment (or the deficit of 

resources the Council is required to recover) at the end of the financial year. 

Property, Plant & 

Equipment 

Assets are depreciated over useful lives that rely on 

assumptions about the level of repair and 

maintenance. The current economic climate makes it 

uncertain that the Council will be able to sustain its 

current spending on repairs and maintenance, bringing 

into doubt the useful life assigned to assets. 

If the useful life of assets is 

reduced, depreciation increases 

and the carrying value of the 

asset falls. 

It is estimated that the annual 

depreciation charge for buildings 

would increase by £21k for every 

year that useful lives had to be 

reduced. 

Pensions liability Estimation of the net liability to pay pension depends 

on a number of complex judgements. 

The effects on the net pension 

liability of changes in individual 

assumptions can be measured. 

However the assumptions 

interact in complex ways. Note 38 

provides details on actuarial gains 

and losses in recent years. 

Page 112



67 
 

 

Capital Receipts Reserve 

The Capital Receipts Reserve holds the proceeds from the disposal of land or other assets, which are 

restricted by statute from being used other than to fund new capital expenditure or to be set aside 

to finance historical capital expenditure. The balance on the reserve shows the resources which have 

yet to be applied for these purposes at year end. 

 

Capital Grants Unapplied 

 

The Capital Grants Unapplied Account (Reserve) holds the grants and contributions received towards 

capital projects for which the Council has met the conditions that would otherwise require 

repayment of the monies but which have yet to be applied to meet expenditure. The balance is 

restricted by grant terms as to the capital expenditure against which it can be applied and / or the 

financial year in which this can occur. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Usable Reserves – 2019/20 General 
Fund 

Balance 
£000 

Capital 
Receipts 
Reserve 

£000 

Capital 
Grants 

Unapplied 
£000 

Adjustments to the Revenue Resources    
Amounts by which income and expenditure included in the CIES are 
different from revenue for the year calculated in accordance with 
statutory requirements 

   

Pension costs (transferred to / from the Pensions Reserve) 
2,201   

Financial instruments (transferred to the Financial Instruments 
Adjustment Account) 

(6)   

Council tax and NDR (transfers to or from the Collection Fund 
Account) 

(46)   

Holiday Pay (transferred to the Accumulated Absences Reserve) 
30   

Reversal of entries included in the surplus or deficit on the 
Provision of Services in relation to capital expenditure (these items 
are charges to the Capital Adjustment Account) 

2,722  202 

Total Adjustments to Revenue Resources 
4,901  202 

Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources 
   

Page 113



68 
 

Transfer of non-current asset sale proceeds from revenue to the 
Capital Receipts Reserve 

(1,375) 1,375  

Statutory provision for the repayment of debt (transfer from the 
Capital Adjustment Account) 

(493)   

Capital expenditure financed from revenue balances (transfer to 
the Capital Adjustment Account) 

(470)   

Total Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources 
   

Adjustments to Capital Resources 
   

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance capital expenditure 
 (400)  

Application of capital grants to finance capital expenditure 
   

Total Adjustments to Capital Resources 
(2,338) 975 (34) 

TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS 
2,563 975 168 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Usable Reserves – 2020/21 General 
Fund 

Balance 
£000 

Capital 
Receipts 
Reserve 

£000 

Capital 
Grants 

Unapplied 
£000 

Adjustments to the Revenue Resources    
Amounts by which income and expenditure included in the CIES are 
different from revenue for the year calculated in accordance with 
statutory requirements 

   

Pension costs (transferred to / from the Pensions Reserve) 1,046   

Financial instruments (transferred to the Financial Instruments 
Adjustment Account) 

 
(5) 

  

Council tax and NDR (transfers to or from the Collection Fund 
Account) 

 
3,031 

  

Holiday Pay (transferred to the Accumulated Absences Reserve) 20   

Reversal of entries included in the surplus or deficit on the 
Provision of Services in relation to capital expenditure (these items 
are charges to the Capital Adjustment Account) 

276 
 

 347 

Total Adjustments to Revenue Resources 4,368  347 

Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources    

Transfer of non-current asset sale proceeds from revenue to the 
Capital Receipts Reserve 

(1,302) 1,302  

Statutory provision for the repayment of debt (transfer from the 
Capital Adjustment Account) 

(646)   

Capital expenditure financed from revenue balances (transfer to 
the Capital Adjustment Account) 

(560)   

Page 114



69 
 

Total Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources (2,508) 1,302  

Adjustments to Capital Resources    

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance capital expenditure  (825)  

Application of capital grants to finance capital expenditure   2,379 

Total Adjustments to Capital Resources 0 (825) 2,379 

TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS 1,860 477 2,726 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 115



70 
 

9. TRANSFERS TO / FROM EARMARKED RESERVES 

This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund in earmarked reserves to provide 

financing for future expenditure plans and the amounts posted back from earmarked reserves to 

meet General Fund expenditure in 2020/21. 

 

 Balance 
at 

01.04.19 
£000 

Transfers 
Out 19/20 

£000 

Transfers 
In 19/20 

£000 

Balance 
at 

31.03.20 
£000 

Transfers 
Out 20/21 

£000 

Transfers 
In 20/21 

£000 

Balance 
at 

31.03.21 
£000 

Planning s106 
Fund 

723 
 

(195) 50 578 (56) 118 640 

Housing and 
Planning Fund 

26   26   26 

Area Based Grant 
Reserve 

40   40   40 

Performance 
Reward Reserve 

35 (27)  8 (4)  4 

Environmental 
Warranties 

3,016   3,016   3,016 

Transitional 
Grant 

1,070 (57)  1,013 (210)  803 

Efficiency 
Support Grant 

308   308   308 

Balance set aside 
for invest to save 
initiatives 

2,156 (916) 92 1,332 (245)  1,087 

New Homes 
Bonus 

0 (220) 220 0 (24) 24 0 

Communities For 
Health Funding 

68 
 

(12)  56 (1)  55 

Dilapidations 
Reserve 

1,316   1,316   1,316 

Huncoat  Garden 
Village 

133 (52)  81 (46) 50 85 

Waste Services 85   85   85 

Revenue Funding 
for Capital 
Schemes  

1,127   1,127   1,127 

Business Rates 
Volatility Reserve 

452 (84)  368   368 

S31 grant set-
aside for future 
years deficit 
liability 

0   0  3,317 3,317 

Dividend Reserve 0   0  600 600 

Balances set 
aside to fund 
specific future 
expenditure 

988 (142) 216 1,062 (213) 706 1,555 

Total 11,543 (1,705) 578 10,416 (799) 4,815 14,432 

Page 116



71 
 

Description of Reserves  

 

Planning s106 Fund – Amounts received for planning obligations to be spent on capital / revenue 

projects in line with respective agreements. 

 

Housing & Planning Fund – Capital reserve which is the balance of the original amount awarded in 

2008 for improved delivery of housing and other planning outcomes. 

 

Area Based Grant Reserve – Allocated by central government to support the delivery of local, 

regional and national priorities in Hyndburn. The reserve is the unspent balance of the final 

allocation made in 2010/11. 

 

Performance Reward Reserve – The grant was originally paid by central government for the 

achievement of Local Area Agreement schemes; the reserve is the unspent balance. 

 

Environmental Warranties – To fund any potential liabilities arising from the large scale voluntary 

transfer of the housing stock to Hyndburn Homes Ltd on March 30th 2006.   

 

Transitional Grant – Government grant received which has no specific conditions attached but has 

not been allocated for specific service use. 

 

Efficiency Support Grant - Government grant awarded to local authorities that otherwise would 

have seen a reduction of more than 8.8% of their revenue spending power and used to support 

changes to services that reduce our long term costs. 

 

Balance set aside for invest to save initiatives – Balance of revenue underspend held separately to 

fund future service delivery. 

 

New Homes Bonus – Government grant received which has no specific conditions attached.  

 

Communities For Health Funding – Amount identified to support leisure related expenditure. 

 

Dilapidations Reserve – Amount identified for asset remedial work. 

 

Huncoat Garden Village Housing Zone Reserve – Amount set aside in 2018/19 to assist with the 

costs of Master Planning for a potential development in Huncoat.   

 

Waste Services Reserve – Amount set aside in 2018/19 to offset the loss in 2019/20 of 

approximately £800k from the Lancashire County Council cost sharing agreement and funding 

towards the cost of wheeled bins and replacements purchased in 2019/20 and future years. 

 

Revenue Funding of Capital Schemes Reserve – Surplus revenue income set aside in 2018/19 to 

fund future capital projects. 

 

Page 117



72 
 

Business Rates Volatility Reserve – Surplus revenue income set aside in 2019/20 to help to mitigate 

any possible risks around business rates and the Lancashire Pooling arrangements and concerns 

about business rates funding following the proposed implementation of the fair funding review. 

 

Section 31 Grant set aside for future years liability – grant received in 2020/21 set aside to fund 

future business rates liabilities arising in 2020/21 due to increased business rates reliefs awarded by 

the Government during the Covid-19 pandemic and resulting lockdowns. These liabilities have to be 

settled in the following three years. 

 

Dividend Reserve – The receipt of income in 2020/21 from the Council’s shared venture with 

Barnfield in the Barnfield & Hyndburn Ltd prior to the dissolution of the company in 2021/22. Any 

residuary costs of dissolution will be funded from this reserve. 

 

Balances set aside from previous years to fund specific expenditure – Underspends from previous 

years which have been set aside to fund future expenditure. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 118



73 
 

10. OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURE 
 
 2019/20 

£000 
2020/21 

£000 

Gains / Losses on disposal of non- current assets   

Gross (Gains) / losses on the disposal  (1,111) (755) 

Impairments on disposal  0 6 

Unattached capital receipts (150) (291) 

Sub- Total  (1,261) (1,040) 

Parish Council Precepts 13 13 

Total (1,248) (1,027) 

 

11. FINANCING AND INVESTMENT INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 
 

 2019/20 
£000     

2020/21 
£000 

Interest payable and other similar charges 446 458 

Net interest cost on the net pension liability 846 753 

Interest receivable and similar income (244) (149) 

Other Investment Income * 0 (600) 

Income and expenditure in relation to investment 
properties and changes in their fair value 

9 (63) 

(Gain) / loss on trading accounts 389 525 

Total 1,446 924 

 
*In 2020/2021 the Council received a dividend from Barnfield Construction.  
 

12.   TAXATION AND NON-SPECIFIC GRANT INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 
 

 2019/20 
£000     

2020/21 
£000  

Council tax income (5,209) (5,226) 

Non-domestic rates income  (4,005) (2,772) 

Non-domestic rates expenditure  2,581 

Non-ring-fenced government grants (Note 34) (2,153) (8,958) 

Capital grants and contributions ( Note 34 ) (974) (3,807) 

Total (12,341) (18,182) 

 

The Council’s share of Non-domestic rates income for 2020/21 was £1.511m less than 

budgeted for due to National and Local lockdowns and the Government granting business 

rate reliefs to small and medium size businesses in particular. Councils were compensated 

by the allocations of specific Section 31 grant monies and for Hyndburn this amount was 

£4.755m which is included in Non-ring-fenced government grants. 

 

 

 

 

Page 119



74 
 

13. PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

 

 
 
2019/20 

O
th

e
r 

la
n

d
 a

n
d

 

b
u

ild
in

gs
  

£
0

0
0

 

V
e

h
ic

le
s,

 P
la

n
t,

 

Fu
rn

it
u

re
 &

 

Eq
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
 £

0
0

0
 

In
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 £
0

0
0

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

A
ss

e
ts

  

£
0

0
0

 

Su
rp

lu
s 

A
ss

e
ts

 £
0

0
0

 

To
ta

l £
0

0
0

 

Cost or Valuation       

At 1
st

 April 2019 20,144 6,673 1,101 1,865 1,818 31,601 

Additions 385 182 51 574 222 1,414 

Revaluation increases / (decreases) 
recognised in the Revaluation 
Reserve 

(1,486)    (3) (1,489) 

Non-enhancing expenditure 
recognised in the Surplus / Deficit in 
the Provision of Services 

(385)  (51) (574) (37) (1,047) 

Revaluation increases/(decreases) 
recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on 
the Provision of Services 

(1,130)    (5) (1,135) 

Derecognition - disposals  (166)  (17)  (183) 

Assets reclassified (to) / from Held 
for Sale 

(22)     (22) 

Cost at 31
st

 March 2020 17,506 6,689 1,101 1,848 1,995 29,139 

Accumulated Depreciation and 
Impairment 

      

At 1
st

 April 2019 2,539 3,735 1,101 212 0 7,587 

Depreciation charge 580 444  68 8 1,100 

Depreciation written out to the 
Revaluation Reserve 

(2,393)    (2) (2,395) 

Depreciation written out to the 
Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of 
Services 

(718)    (3) (721) 

Derecognition - disposals  (53)  (16)  (69) 

Depreciation on Impairments       

Depreciation at 31
st

  March 2020 8 4,126 1,101 264 3 5,502 

Net book value at March 31
st

 2020 17,498 2,563 0 1,584 1,992 23,637 

Net book value at March 31
st

 2019 17,605 2,938 0 1,653 1,818 24,014 

 

 

 

Page 120



75 
 

 
 
2020/21 

O
th

e
r 

la
n

d
 a

n
d

 

b
u

ild
in

gs
  

£
0

0
0

 

V
e

h
ic

le
s,

 P
la

n
t,

 

Fu
rn

it
u

re
 &

 

Eq
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
 £

0
0

0
 

In
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 £
0

0
0

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

A
ss

e
ts

  

£
0

0
0

 

Su
rp

lu
s 

A
ss

e
ts

 £
0

0
0

 

To
ta

l £
0

0
0

 

Cost or Valuation       

At 1
st

 April 2020 17,506 6,689 1,101 1,848 1,995 29,139 

Additions 236 1,158  158 244 1,796 

Revaluation increases / (decreases) 
recognised in the Revaluation 
Reserve 

24   116 83 223 

Non-enhancing expenditure 
recognised in the Surplus / Deficit in 
the Provision of Services 

(236)   (149) (245) (630) 

Revaluation increases/(decreases) 
recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on 
the Provision of Services 

(267)   (123)  (390) 

Derecognition - disposals (8) (1,032)    (1,040) 

Assets reclassified (to) / from Held 
for Sale 

   (230)  (230) 

Cost at 31
st

 March 2021 17,255 6,815 1,101 1,620 2,077 28,868 

Accumulated Depreciation and 
Impairment 

      

At 1
st

 April 2020 8 4,126 1,101 264 3 5,502 

Depreciation charge 535 605  67 19 1,226 

Depreciation written out to the 
Revaluation Reserve 

(372)   (247) (2) (621) 

Depreciation written out to the 
Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of 
Services 

(69)   (3)  (72) 

Derecognition - disposals (8) (1,019)    (1,027) 

Depreciation on Impairments       

Depreciation at 31
st

  March 2021 94 3,712 1,101 81 20 5,008 

Net book value at March 31
st

 2021 17,161 3,103 0 1,539 2,057 23,860 

Net book value at March 31
st

 2020 17,498 2,563 0 1,584 1,992 23,637 

 
 
 
  

Page 121



76 
 

Capital Commitments 

 

At 31st March 2021 the Council had no contracts in place for the construction or enhancement of 

Property, Plant and Equipment. The previous year there was commitments as at 31st March 2020 of 

£4.234m. 

 

Effects of Changes in Estimates 

 

In 2020/21 the Council made no material changes to its accounting estimates for Property, Plant and 

Equipment. 

 

Revaluations 

 

The Council carries out a rolling programme of valuations that ensures all Property, Plant and 

Equipment required to be measured at fair value is revalued at least every five years. Valuations are 

carried out as recommended by CIPFA and in accordance with the Statement of Asset Valuation 

Principles and Guidance Notes issued by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Valuations in 

2020/21 were carried out and certified by a team from Sloan & Associates Ltd, Altrincham. 

 

The significant assumptions applied in estimating fair value are: 

 Operational land and properties are valued on the basis of current value in existing use, 

unless they are of a specialist nature in which case they are valued on a Depreciated 

Replacement Cost basis, or Market Value as applicable. 

 Vehicles, plant and equipment values are based on historical cost less depreciation. 

 Infrastructure and Community assets are included at historical cost, less any applicable 

depreciation, other than where Community Assets are at current value. 

 Non-operational properties in full commercial use are valued by reference to their Market 

Value on the basis of net realisable value. Investment properties are valued on the basis of 

market value. 

 

The following statement shows the progress of the Council’s programme for the revaluation of 

Property, Plant and Equipment. 

 
 
All the Council’s surplus assets have been assessed as Level 2 for valuation purposes (see Note xxiv).  

O
p

er
at

io
n

al
 

La
n

d
 &

 

B
u

ild
in

gs

V
eh

ic
le

s,
 P

la
n

t 

an
d

 E
q

u
ip

m
en

t

In
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 

A
ss

et
s

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

A
ss

et
s

Su
rp

lu
s 

A
ss

et
s

To
ta

l

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Valued at historical cost 6,815 1,101 71 7,987

Valued at fair value as at:

31 March 2021 12,022 1,540 251 13,813

31 March 2020 5,233 65 5,298

31 March 2019 1,761 1,761

31 March 2018 - 

31 March 2017 9 9

Total cost or valuation 17,255 6,815 1,101 1,620 2,077 28,868

Page 122



77 
 

14. HERITAGE ASSETS 
 

Reconciliation of the Carrying Value of Heritage Assets Held by the Council 

 

 

Art & 
Numismatics 

Collection 
£000 

Numismatics 
Collection 

£000 

Local & 
Community 
Collection                         

£000 

Glass Collection                 
£000 

Civic 
Regalia 

£000 

Total 
        

£000 

Cost or 
Valuation 

      

As at 31
st

 
March 2020 

2,309 70 97 1,682 332 4,490 

As at 31
st

 
March 2021 

2,309 70 97 1,682 332 4,490 

 

There have been no disposals or impairment losses in the last seven years to 31st March 2021.  The 

civic regalia and works of art were revalued during 2016-17 and their revalued amounts are included 

above.   

 

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 

 

The following items of income and expenditure have been accounted for in the Financing and 

Investment Income and Expenditure section in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement. 

 

 
2019/20  

£000 
2020/21  

£000 

Rental income from investment property (427) (453) 

Direct operating expenses arising from investment property 63 116 

Subtotal net (gain) / loss (363) (337) 

Net (gains) / losses from fair value adjustments 275 261 

Total income & expenditure in relation to investment properties & change in 
fair value 

88 76 

 

There are no restrictions on the Council’s ability to realise the value inherent in its investment 

property or on the Council’s right to the remittance of income and the proceeds of disposal. The 

Council has no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment property or 

repairs, maintenance or enhancement. 

 

The movement in the fair value of investment properties is shown below: 

 2019/20 
£000 

2020/21  
£000 

Balance at start of year 6,951 6,676 

Additions 0 93 

Disposals 0 0 

Net gains / (losses) from fair value adjustments (275) (261) 

Other changes 0 10 

Balance at end of year 6,676 6,518 

Page 123



78 
 

Valuation Techniques Used to Determine Fair Values for Investment Property 

 

The fair value hierarchy is explained in the Accounting Policies Note 3 xxIv. Level 2 has been used for 

investment property which uses a market approach taking into account similar assets in active 

markets, existing lease terms and rentals, research into market evidence including market rentals 

and yields and the covenant strength for existing tenants. Market conditions are such that similar 

properties are actively purchased and sold and the level of observable inputs are significant, leading 

to properties being categorised as level 2 on the fair value hierarchy. 

 

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

 

The Council accounts for purchased software licences as intangible assets. All software is given a 

finite useful life, based on assessments of the period that the software is expected to be of use. The 

carrying amount of intangible assets is amortised on a straight line basis. 

 

The movement on the intangible asset balances during the year is as follows: 

 

 2019/20  
£000 

2020/21  
£000 

Balance at start of year:   

 Gross carrying amount 538 567 

 Accumulated amortisation (502) (514) 

Net carrying amount at start of year 36 53 

Purchases 29 15 

Non-enhancing expenditure written out 0 0 

Amortisation for the period (11) (13) 

Net carrying amount at year end 54 55 

 
Comprising: 
 

 2019/20  
£000 

2020/21  
£000 

Balance at end of year:   

 Gross carrying amount 567 552 

 Accumulated amortisation (513) (497) 

Net carrying amount at year end 54 55 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 124



79 
 

17. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 
Financial liabilities are classified as liabilities at amortised cost. Financial assets are now classified 
under the code into one of three categories – financial assets held at Amortised Cost; Fair Value 
through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) and Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVPL). Details 
of the carrying value of these instruments are provided in the balance sheet and these notes. The 
fair value hierarchy is described in the accounting policies note 3 para. xxiv. The individual methods 
used are described below. 
 
The fair value of the debtors and creditors (as shown in notes 19 and 22) are taken to be the 
invoiced or billed amount.  
 
The fair value of investments maturing in the next twelve months is assumed to approximate to its 
carrying value. 
 
The fair value of borrowing is determined by calculating the net present value of future cash flows. 
The discount rate is equal to the current rate available in relation to the same instrument from a 
comparable lender.  
 
Categories of Financial Instruments 
The fair value of each class of financial assets and liabilities which are carried in the balance sheet at 
amortised cost are disclosed below. 
 

31 March 2020  31 March 2021 

Long Short  Long Short 

Term Term  Term Term 

£000 £000  £000 £000 

  Financial Assets at Amortised Cost   

8 23,292 Investments 8 25,046 

524  Debtors – Loans & Receivables 359  

 2,261 Debtors – Financial Asset carried at contract 
amount 

 2,867 

 6 Cash & Cash Equivalents (note 21)  17,586 

     

532 25,559 Total Financial Assets 367 45,499 

     

     

  Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost   

9,823 44 Borrowing 9,821 44 

 1,937 Creditors  3,225 

     

9,823 1,981 Total Financial Liabilities 9,821 3,269 

     

 

Page 125



80 
 

Long Term Debtors 
 

 31 March 2020 
£000 

31 March 2021  
£000 

Mortgages on right to buy sales 1 0 

Other housing advances 0 0 

Leisure in Hyndburn Ltd (material soft loans) 19 0 

Car loans to employees 48 21 

Employee scheme to purchase home technology 
equipment 

1 0 

Placefirst Ltd 81 0 

Hyndburn Arts 9 8 

Leisure in Hyndburn Sports Equipment 317 288 

Accrington Stanley 48 42 

Total 524 359 

 
Material Soft Loans Made By the Council 
 
Loan to the trust Leisure in Hyndburn (LiH) 
 
The two loans to LiH were previously deemed to be material soft loans. Both loans were repaid in 
December 2020. 
 
 2019/20 2020/21 

 £000 £000 

Opening balance 1
st

 April 43 19 

Nominal value of new loans granted in year 0 0 

Loans repaid (27) (20) 

Other changes 3 1 

Closing balance at end of year 19 0 

Nominal value at 31
st

 March 20 0 

 

The interest rate at which the fair value of these soft loans was arrived at by taking the authority’s 

prevailing cost of borrowing (4.4% for loan 1 and 4.6% for loan 2) and adding an allowance for the 

risk that the loan might not be repaid by LiH in this case 2%. 

 

Employees Car Loans 

 

The Council makes loans for car purchase to 11 employees in the authority who are in posts that 

require them to drive regularly on the authority’s business. 

 

Interest is charged at different rates depending upon the emissions of the vehicle: < 1400cc 8.75%, 

1400-1600cc 9.25% and > 1600cc 9.75%. 

 

 

Page 126



81 
 

 2019/20 2020/21 
 £000 £000 

   

Opening balance 1st April 90 71 

Nominal value of new loans granted in year 21 0 

Loans repaid (47) (28) 

Other changes – Interest Charged 7 5 

Closing balance at end of year 31st March 71 48 

 

The interest rate at which fair values of these soft loans have been recognised is arrived at by taking 

the authority’s prevailing cost of borrowing for a comparable loan at the date of the advance and 

adding an allowance for the risk that the loan might not be repaid. 

 

Equity Share Loans (ESL) and Purchase Assistance Loans (PAL) 

 

Hyndburn BC has made both ESL and PAL loans. Neither type of loan has a definite repayment or 

maturity date and is not included in the Balance Sheet. Details are in the table below. 

 

 

  31st  March 2020 31st  March 2021 

Equity Share 
Loans 

Year No. of Loans Value of Loans (£) No. of Loans Value of Loans (£) 

 06/07 16 505,230 16 504,110 

 07/08 12 364,730 12 363,890 

 08/09 9 269,340 9 269,340 

Total  37 1,139,300 37 1,137,340 

      

  31st  March 2020 31st  March 2021 

Purchase 
Assistance Loans 

Year No. of Loans Value of Loans (£) No. of Loans Value of Loans (£) 

 09/10 2 28,820 2 28,820 

 10/11 3 56,400 2 56,400 

 11/12 1 30,000 1 30,000 

Total  6 115,220 5 115,220 

 

 

Borrowing 

 

The Council’s treasury management advisers, Link, have assisted in preparing this disclosure: they 

have assumed the following: 

 Interest rates at 31st March 2021 based on comparable new borrowing / deposit rate for the 

same financial instrument from a comparable lender. A consistent approach has been taken 

to assets and liabilities. 

 No early repayment or impairment is recognised 

 Where an instrument will mature in the next twelve months, the carrying amount is 

assumed to approximate to fair value 

Page 127



82 
 

In the fair value hierarchy level 2 (inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset 

or liability) has been used. There has been no change in valuation techniques used or transfers 

between the hierarchy levels. 

 

The fair value of the liabilities shown below is greater than the carrying value as the Council’s 

portfolio includes some fixed rate loans on which the rate of interest payable is higher than the rate 

available for similar loans in the market place at the balance sheet date. 

 
 

Summary as at 31st  March 
2020 

Principal 
Out- 

standing 
 

£000 

Accrued 
Interest  

to 31 
Mar 

 
£000 

Adjustment:  
Effective Int. 

Rate   
Smoothing 

 
£000 

Carrying 
Value 
TOTAL 

 
£000 

 Fair Value 
Total 

 
 
 

£000 

Long Term Borrowing       
Money Market 9,520 34 197 9,751  14,120 
Individuals 75   75  75 

Total  9,595 34 197 9,826  14,195 

       
Short Term Borrowing       
Money Market       
Money Market (L/T Loan)  44  44  45 

Total  0 44 0 44  45 

       
Total Borrowing       
Money Market 9,520 78 197 9,795  14,165 
Individuals 75   75  75 

Total   9,595 78 197 9,870  14,240 

 
 

 
Summary as at 31st  March 

2021 
 
 
 

Principal 
Outstanding 

 
£000 

Accrued 
Interest  

to 31 
Mar 

 
£000 

Adjustment:  
Effective Int. 

Rate   
Smoothing 

 
£000 

Carrying 
Value 
TOTAL 

 
£000 

 Fair Value 
Total 

 
 
 

£000 

Long Term Borrowing       
Money Market 9,520 33 193 9,746  14,642 
Individuals 75   75  75 

Total  9,595 33 193 9,821  14,717 

       
Short Term Borrowing       
Money Market       
Money Market (L/T Loan)  44  44  45 

Total  0 441 0 44  45 

       
Total Borrowing       
Money Market 9,520 77 193 9,790  14,687 
Individuals 75   75  75 

Total   9,595 77 193 9,865  14,762 

 

Page 128



83 
 

18. INVENTORIES 
 
 31st March 2020  

£000 
31st  March 2021  

£000 

General fund - stock 51 46 

Work in progress 0 0 

Total 51 46 

 
19. DEBTORS 
 

 31st March 2020  
            £000 

31st March 2021  
           £000 

Central government bodies 18,152 550 

Other local authorities 664 1,816 

Other entities and individuals 7,794 9,511 

Prepayments 64 170 

Sub total 26,674 12,047 

Less impairment of Expected Credit Losses (4,331) (5,609) 

Total 22,343 6,438 

 
20. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 
 

 31st March 
2020  
£000 

 
 

 £000 
 

31st March 
2021 
£000 

 
Balance outstanding at start of year 2,502 2,372 

Assets newly classified as held for sale: 
   Property Plant and Equipment 

22 230 

Assets declassified as held for sale: 
   Property Plant and Equipment 

0 (9) 

Capital Expenditure 77 0 

Write out non enhancing expenditure to I&E (77) (0) 

Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in the 
revaluation reserve 

261 130 

Revaluation losses (53) (0) 

   Assets sold (360) (182) 

Impairment 0 (7) 

Total 2,372 2,534 

 

The total balance includes £1,425k classified as non-current assets. This represents land at 

Lyndon Playing Fields, Great Harwood which has a sale contract in place that will be invoked 

once individual housing plots are sold on the first section of land that was sold to the 

developer. This is not expected to happen in the next twelve months.  

 

 

 

Page 129



84 
 

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

The balance of cash and cash equivalents is made up of the following elements: 

 31st March 
2020  
£000 

31st March 
2021 
£000 

Cash in hand 3 3 

Short term deposits 3 2 

Bank balance / (overdraft) (13,135) 17,418 

Bequests  (2) 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents (13,129) 17,421 

 

22. CREDITORS 
 

 31st March 2020  
                  £000 

31st March 2021  
                  £000 

Central government bodies (3,931) (16,813) 

Other local authorities (1,721) (448) 

Other entities and individuals (2,469) (3,720) 

Total (8,121) (20,981) 

 

23. PROVISIONS 
 

Provisions Summary Balance 
at        

1st April 
2020 

 
£000 

Additional 
provisions 
made in 
2020/21 

 
£000 

Amounts 
used in 

2020/21 
 
 

£000 

Unused 
amounts 
reversed 

in 
2020/21 

£000 

Balance 
31st 

March 
2021 

 
£000 

Industrial units and market bonds 
deposits for leases 

(11) 0 0 0 (11) 

Insurance ‘excess provision’ for 
potential claims 

(142) (153) 142 0 (153) 

Potential claw back of Government 
grant payments 

(99) 0 0 0 (99) 

Provision for potential claims not able 
to be paid by Municipal Mutual 
Insurance Ltd following their financial 
difficulties 

(31) 0 0 0 (31) 

Provision for appeals of non-domestic 
rates  
* 

(4,077) 0 22 1,192 (2,863) 

Other (21) 0 0 0 (21) 

Future Costs of Cessation of Service 
Provision  

(108)                    0 0 0 (108) 

Valuation of Collection (3) (1)   (4) 

Total Provisions (4,492) (154) 164 1,192 (3,290) 

 

* In the balance sheet, this is reflected as long-term provision. None of the above are 

considered short-term provisions. 

Page 130



85 
 

 

 

24. USABLE RESERVES 

Movements in the Council’s usable reserves are detailed in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

 

25. UNUSABLE RESERVES 

 

 
31st March 2020 

£000 
 31st March 2021 

£000 

Revaluation Reserve 15,767 16,264 

Capital Adjustment Account 12,643 12,151 

Financial Instruments Adjustment Account (198) (193) 

Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve 1 0 

Pensions Reserve (31,899) (41,960) 

Collection Fund Adjustment Account 612 (2,419) 

Accumulated Absences Account (129) (150) 

Total Unusable Reserves (3,203) (16,307) 

 

Revaluation Reserve 

 

This reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from increases in the value of the 

Property, Plant and Equipment. The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are: 

 

 Re-valued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost 

 Used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation; or 

 Disposed of and the gains realised 

 

This reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1st April 2007, the date the reserve 

was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the balance of the 

Capital Adjustment Account. 

 

 

 
2019/20  

£000 
2020/21 

£000 

Balance at 1
st

 April 15,011 15,767 

Surplus or deficit on revaluation of non-current assets not posted to the 
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services 

  

Upward revaluation of assets 2,084 2,346 

Downward revaluation of assets and impairment losses not charged to the 
Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of services 

(909) (1,372) 

Sub-total 1,175 974 

Amount written off to the Capital Adjustment Account   

Difference between fair value depreciation and historical cost depreciation (357) (317) 

Accumulated gains on assets sold or scrapped (62) (160) 

Sub-total (419) (477) 

   

Balance at end of year 15,767 16,264 

Page 131



86 
 

Capital Adjustment Account 

The account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting 

for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction or 

enhancement of these assets under statutory provisions. 

 

The account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation, 

impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value figures to a 

historical cost basis). The account is credited with the amounts set aside as finance for the costs of 

acquisition, construction and enhancement. 

 

The account contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment properties. The account also 

contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1st April 2007, the 

date the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains. Note 8 provides details of the source 

of all transactions posted to the Account, apart from those involving the Revaluation Reserve. 

 

 
2019/20  

£000 
2020/21  

£000 

Balance at 1st April 14,022 12,643 

Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or credited 
to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

  

Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets (1,101) (1,226) 

Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and Equipment (1,545) (962) 

Amortisation of intangible assets (11) (13) 

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute (1,203) (1,910) 

Non-current assets written off as part of the gain / loss on disposal 
of assets 

(535) (202) 

Sub-total (4,395) (4,313) 

Capital financing applied in the year   

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital 
expenditure 

400 825 

Capital grants and contributions credited to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement that have been applied to 
capital financing 

1,496 1,593 

Application of grants to capital financing from the Capital grants 
Unapplied Account 

 
12 

 
107 

Accumulated gains on assets sold or scrapped   

Minimum Revenue Provision 492 646 

Capital Expenditure Charged Against Revenue Account 471 436 

Sub-total 2,871 3,607 

Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation Reserve 419 475 

Movements in the market value of Investment Properties charged 
against the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

(274) (261) 

Balance at end of year 12,643 12,151 

 
Movements in the market value of Investment Properties have been removed from revaluation 
losses and reported separately. 
 

Page 132



87 
 

 

 

 

 

Financial Instruments Adjustment Account 

The Financial Instruments Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the 

different arrangements for accounting for income and expenses relating to certain financial 

instruments and for bearing losses or benefitting from gains per statutory provisions. 

 

 2019/20 

£000 

2020/21 

£000 

Balance at 1st April (204)  (198) 

Premiums incurred in the year and charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure statement 

0  0 

Proportion of premiums incurred in previous financial years to be charged 
against the General Fund balance in accordance with statutory requirements 

6  5 

Sub total 
Amount by which finance costs charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement are different from the finance costs chargeable in year in 
accordance with statutory requirements 

6  5 

Balance at end of year (198)  (193) 

Pensions Reserve 

 

The reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting 

for post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory provisions. The 

Council accounts for post-employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement as the benefits are earned by employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities 

recognised to incorporate inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns on any resources 

set aside to meet costs. 

 

However statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the Council makes 

employer’s contributions to pension funds. The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore 

shows a substantial shortfall in benefits earned by past and current employees and the resources set 

aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set aside by 

the time the benefits come to be paid. 

 

 2019/20  
£000 

2020/21  
£000 

Balance at 1
st

 April (36,933) (31,899) 

Actuarial gains or (losses) on pension assets and liabilities 7,234 (9,015) 

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to the Surplus or 
Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement 

(4,616) (2,989) 

Employer’s pensions contributions and direct payments to pensioners payable in the 
year 

2,416 1,943 

Balance at 31 March (31,899) (41,960) 

 

 

Page 133



88 
 

 

 

 

 

Collection Fund Adjustment Account 

 

The account manages the differences arising from the recognition of council tax and non-domestic 

rates income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as it falls due from the 

council tax payers and business rates payers compared with the statutory arrangements for paying 

across amounts to the General Fund from the Collection Fund. 

 

 2019/20  
£000 

2020/21  
£000 

Balance at 1st April 565 612 

Amount by which council tax and non-domestic rates income 
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
is different from the council tax and non-domestic rates income 
calculated for the year in accordance with statutory requirements 

47 (3,031) 

Balance at end of year 612 (2,419) 

 

Accumulated Absences Account 

 

The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs differences that would otherwise arise on the General 

Fund Balance from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year e.g. annual 

leave entitlement carried forward at 31st March. Statutory arrangements require that the impact on 

the General Fund Balance is neutralised by transfers to or from the Account. 

 

 2019/20  
£000 

2020/21  
£000 

Balance at 1st April        (99) (129) 

Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end of the 
preceding year 

       99 129 

Amounts accrued at the end of the current year (129) (150) 

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an accruals 
basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the year in 
accordance with statutory requirements 

      (30)       (21) 

Balance at end of year (129) (150) 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 134



89 
 

 
 
 
 

26.    CASHFLOW STATEMENT – ADJUSTMENT FOR NON-CASH MOVEMENTS  
 
i)  Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for non-cash movements 
    

  
2019/20 

 
2020/21 

 £000 £000 
   

Depreciation (1,101) (1,226) 
Impairment & downward valuations (2,093) (1,027) 
Amortisation (11) (13) 
(Increase)/ decrease in impairment provision for bad 
debts and other provisions 

(3,328) (773) 

(Increase)/decrease in creditors 1,379 (12,327) 
Increase/(decrease) in debtors 16,902 (14,627) 
Increase/(decrease) in stock (7) (5) 
Pension liability (2,201) (1,046) 
Carrying amount of non-current asset disposals (473) (202) 
Other non-cash items charged to the net surplus or 
deficit on the provision of services 

(1,642) 2,231 

 7,425 (29,015) 

 
 
ii)  Adjustments for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the provision of services 
that are investing and financing activities: 
             

  
2019/20 

 
2020/21 

 £000 £000 

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant & equipment, 
investment property & intangible assets 

1,375 1,302 

 1,375 1,302 

 
 

27. CASH FLOW STATEMENT – OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
The cash flows for operating activities include the following items: 
 

 2019/20  
£000 

2020/21 
£000 

Interest received (210) (148) 

Interest paid 449 463 

 
 
 
 

Page 135



90 
 

 
 
 
 

28. CASH FLOW STATEMENT – INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
29. CASH FLOW STATEMENT – FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
 
 2019/20  

£000 
2020/21  

£000 

Other receipts from financing activities 1,038 (600) 

Cash payments for the reduction of outstanding liabilities relating to finance 
leases and on balance sheet PFI contracts 

127 275 

Net cash flows from financing activities 1,165 (325) 

 
 

 

30. TRADING OPERATIONS 
 
The Council operates a MOT testing station and associated activities including a transport 
management organisation as internal trading accounts and markets in Accrington and Great 
Harwood as external trading accounts. 
 

 2019/20  2020/21  

 
 
 

Income  
 

£000 

Expenditure  
 

£000 

(Surplus) / 
Deficit  

£000 

Income  
 

£000 

Expenditure  
 

£000 

(Surplus) / 
Deficit  

£000 

MOT / Stores / 
Depot 
Markets 

(1,116) 
 

(300) 

1,383 
 

443 

267 
 

143 

(1,125) 
 

(203) 

1,473 
 

380 

348 
 

177 

TOTAL (1,416) 1,826 410 (1,328) 1,853 525 

 
 

31. MEMBERS ALLOWANCES 
 
The Council paid £277,446 to members of the Council during the year; in 2019/20 it paid £288,109.

 2019/20 
£000 

2020/21  
£000 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment property 
and intangible assets 

1,585 1,904 

Purchase of short term and long term investments 23,000 23,170 

Other payments for investing activities 161 116 

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, 
investment property and intangible assets 

(2,263) (820) 

Proceeds from short term and long term investments (19,000) (25,000) 

Other receipts from investing activities (427) (453) 

Net cash flows from investing activities 3,056 (1,083) 

Page 136



91 
 

32. OFFICERS REMUNERATION 
The remuneration paid to the Council’s senior officers is shown in the table below. This includes the 
post title and shows the remuneration paid to those officers and includes a small amount of non-
taxable expenses that have been reimbursed. 
 

Post Holder 
Information 

Salary, Fees 
& 

Allowances 
Expense 

Allowances 
Benefits 

in Kind 

 
Sub - 
Total 

Employer 
Pension 

Contributions 
Total 

Remuneration 

 £ £ £ £ £ £ 

Chief Executive       

2019/20 
2020/21 

112,838 150 10,115 123,103 17,353 140,456 

127,558 21 520 128,099 17,427 145,526 

Deputy Chief Exec        

2019/20 
2020/21 

100,777 37 6,083 106,897 15,390 122,287 

103,355  2,538 105,893 14,056 119,949 

Exec Director (Legal 
& Democratic)    

 
  

2019/20 
2020/21 

75,761 56 11,534 87,351 12,571 99,922 

77,331  10,604 87,935 10,517 98,452 

Exec Director        
(Environment)     

 
  

2019/20 
2020/21 

81,474 916  82,390 12,173 94,563 

81,748 2,111  83,859 11,118 94,977 

Head of Planning & 
Transportation    

 
  

2019/20 
2020/21 

61,427 235  61,662 9,209 70,871 

61,843 1,373  63,216 8,411 71,627 

Head of Housing & 
Regeneration    

 
  

2019/20 
2020/21 

60,188 221 6,562 66,971 9,209 76,180 

61,843  2,601 64,444 8,411 72,855 

Head of 
Accountancy 
Services    

 

  

2019/20 
2020/21 

56,745  3,608 60,353 8,433 68,786 

56,634  8,089 64,723 7,702 72,425 

Head of Benefits, 
Revenues & 
Customer  Contact    

 

  

2019/20 
2020/21 

56,075 160 1,103 57,338 8,433 65,771 

58,134 1,239  59,373 7,906 67,279 

Deputy Head of 
Environmental 
Services    

 

  

2019/20 
2020/21 

55,606 278 3,729 59,613 8,433 68,046 

56,634 175 3,219 60,028 7,702 67,730 

Head of Policy & 
Organisational 
Development     

 

  

2019/20 
2020/21 

56,043 94 5,081 61,218 8,433 69,651 

56,425  5,278 61,703 7,702 69,405 

 
 

Page 137



92 
 

The second table shows the number of all employees whose remuneration, excluding employer 
pension contributions, was £50,000 or more in bands of £5,000. It includes the officers in the 
previous table. 

Remuneration  2019/20 
 

2020/21 
£50,000 - £54,999 1 3 
£55,000 - £59,999 2 1 
£60,000 - £64,999 3 5 
£65,000 - £69,999 1  
£70,000 - £74,999   
£75,000 - £79,999   
£80,000 - £84,999 1 1 
£85,000 - £89,999 1 1 
£90,000 - £94,999   
£95,000 - £99,999   

£100,000 - £104,999   
£105,000 - £109,999 1 1 
£110,000 - £114,999   
£115,000 - £119,999   
£120,000 - £124,999  1  
£125,000 - £129,999   1 
£130,000 - £134,999   

 
 

Exit package 
cost band 
(including 
special 
payments) 

Number of 
compulsory 

redundancies 

Number of other 
departures agreed 

 

Total number of 
exit packages by 

cost band 

Total cost of exit 
packages in each 

band 

  2019/20 2020/21 2019/20 2020/21 2019/20 2020/21 2019/20 2020/21 

£0 - £20,000 0 0 0 3 0 3 0 19,796 

Total 0 0 0 3 0 3 0 19,796 

         The total cost of £19,796 in the table is for exit packages that have been charged to the authority's 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the current year. There were no exit packages paid 
in 2019/20. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 138



93 
 

 

33. EXTERNAL AUDIT COSTS 
 
The Council has incurred the following fees in relation to the audit of the Statement of Accounts, 
certification of grant claims and to non-audit services provided by the Council’s external auditors: 
 

 
 
^PSAA limited paid the Council £4,370 as its share of the surplus that arose from audit fees under 
the transitional arrangements in place prior to the appointment of Grant Thornton under the new 
contract from 2019/20. There was a change of auditors for the 2020/21 audit with Mazars taking 
over the contract previously undertaken by Grant Thornton. 
 

34. GRANT INCOME 
 
The following grants and contributions were credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. 
 

 2019/20  
£000 

2020/21  
£000  £000 £000 

 Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grants   
Non – Ring-fenced government grants   
Revenue Support Grant 0 1,560 
Small Business & Empty Property Rate Relief Grant 
 

1,839 4,755 
New Homes Bonus Grant 26 95 
Covid Grants 63 2,539 
Other 43 9 

 Total Non-Ring-fenced government Grants (Note12) 1,971 8,958 
Capital Grants and Contributions   
Disabled facilities grant 202 349 
Lancashire Environmental Fund 
 

84 6 
Section 106 95 118 
National Heritage Lottery Fund 
Nat 

256 176 
Parks & Open spaces Grants 29 38 
Sports England 173 0 
Homes England 20 132 
Keepmoat Construction Ltd 0 160 
SALIX – Public Sector Decarbonisation grant 0 2,317 
Community Champions grant 0 111 
MCHLG 12 0 

2019/20 2020/21

£'000 £'000

Fees payable with regard to external audit services carried out 

by the appointed auditor for the year undertaken by Mazars.
0 45

Fees payable with regard to external audit services carried out 

by the appointed auditor for the year undertaken by Grant 

Thornton.

44 0

Fees payable for the certification of grant claims and returns in 

respect of 2020/2021 undertaken by Mazars.
18 21

Fees payable for the certification of grant claims and returns in 

respect of 2019/2020 undertaken by Grant Thornton.
0 18

Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) ^ -4 0

Total 58 84

Page 139



94 
 

Other  103 13 
Total Capital Grants and Contributions (Note 12) 
 (Note12) 

974 3,807 
Credited to Services   
Housing benefit / Rent allowance subsidy 20,485 19,329 
Housing benefit and council tax administration grant 277 116 
Other housing benefit grant 381 629 
Covid Grants 0 2,350 
Disabled facilities grant 764 748 
Accommodation based domestic abuse grant 97 0 
Grants to support homelessness  
 

106 167 
Lottery grants 355 0 
New Homes Bonus Grant 195 0 
Huncoat Housing Zone Grant 0 50 
Other grants 188 191 
Total Credited to Services 22,848 23,580 

3 Grand Total 24,819 36,345 

 

35. RELATED PARTIES 
 
The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties – bodies or individuals 
that have the potential to control or influence the Council or to be controlled or influenced by the 
Council. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the Council 
might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might have secured the ability 
to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the Council. 
 
Central Government 
 
Central government is responsible for providing the statutory framework within which the Council 
operates. It provides the majority of the Council’s funding in the form of grants, and prescribes the 
terms of many of the transactions that the Council has with other parties. Details of grant income 
are shown in note 34. 
 
Other Public Bodies 
 
Precept payments to Lancashire County Council, Lancashire Fire Authority and Lancashire Police and 
Crime Commissioner are shown in the Collection Fund, while the precept paid to Altham Parish 
Council was £12,685 (2019/20 was £12,725). Details of payments to the Pension Fund are shown in 
note 38. 
 
Members & Officers 
 
Members of the Council have direct control over the Council’s financial and operating policies. The 
total of member allowances paid in 2020-21 is shown in note 31. 
 
Some council members act in a number of capacities for related parties. This may include being 
employed by other local authorities, acting as a trustee or serving on the management board of 
companies and voluntary organisations. Members’ interests in related parties have been included, 
where applicable, in the Register of Members Interests which is open to public inspection. There are 
no related party issues. 
 

Page 140



95 
 

Under the Authority’s Code of Conduct for Employees officers must declare any interests, financial 
and non-financial which could conflict with the authority’s interests. No material declarations were 
made during the year. 
 
Entities Influenced by the Council 
 
Barnfield and Hyndburn Development Partnership undertake property development. Stakes in the 
partnership are split 70% with Barnfield and Hyndburn and 30% with the Council. Their most recent 
set of accounts is up to December 2020 when they recorded a profit of £112,544 (Dec 2019 profit of 
£68,524); they had net liabilities of £117,912 (Dec 2019 net liabilities of £230,456).  
 
Barnfield and Hyndburn Ltd also undertake property development. Stakes in the company are split 
70% with Barnfield and Hyndburn and 30% with the Council.  Their most recent set of accounts is up 
to December 2020 when they recorded a loss of £3,456 (Dec 2019 profit of £56,188); they had net 
assets of £154,931 (Dec 2019 net assets £2,158,387).  
 
In 2020/21, the partnership and the Limited company appointed solicitors to begin the process of 
winding up both entities. As a result, the Council was paid a dividend of £600,000 in 2020/21, with 
Barnfield being paid £1.4m in line with the 30:70 split in stakes. It is anticipated that this process will 
be completed in 2021/22. 
 
Leisure in Hyndburn is a trust set up to manage Hyndburn Borough Council’s sport and leisure 
facilities. It also looks after the Council’s arts and entertainment facilities and community buildings.  
During 2020/21 the Council made payments to the Trust totalling £1,446,237 (£478,684 in 2019/20) 
of which £94,200 (£94,200 in 2019/20) was a management fee and £709,852 was a grant. 
The Council received payments from the Trust totalling £1,140,878 (£1,509,441 in 2019/20) for 
services provided by the Council and other recharges.  
At 31 March 2021 the Council was owed £1,583,257 (£1,136,761 in 2019/20). This includes a loan to 
the Trust at 31 March 2021 reported in long-term debtors totalling £288,347 as detailed in note 17 
Financial Instruments.  Two other loans totalling £19,244 were repaid in December 2020. The Trust 
is deemed to be influenced by the Council through its representation (one member) on the Trust 
Board. 
  

 
 

36. CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND CAPITAL FINANCING 
The total amount of capital expenditure is shown in the table below (including the value of assets 
acquired under finance leases and long term contracts), together with the resources used to finance 
it. Where capital expenditure is to be financed in future years by charges to revenue as assets are 
used by the Council, the expenditure results in an increase in the Capital Financing Requirement, 
which is a measure of the capital expenditure incurred by the Council that has yet to be financed. 
 
 

 2019/20  
£000 

2020/21  
£000 

Opening Capital Financing Requirement 9,447 8,954 

Globe adjustment 2019/20  351 

Adjusted Opening Capital Financing Requirement  9,305 

Capital Investment   

Property, Plant and Equipment 1,416 1,798 

Heritage Assets 5 14 

Page 141



96 
 

Investment Property 0 93 

Intangible Assets 29 15 

Assets Held for Sale 77 0 

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute 1,204 1,910 

   

Sources of Finance   

Capital Receipts (751) (825) 

Government grants and other contributions (1,508) (1,576) 

Direct revenue contributions (472) (560) 

Minimum Revenue Provision/Long-term liabilities (493) (646) 

Closing Capital Financing Requirement 8,954 9,528 

   

Explanation of Movement in Year   

Assets acquired under finance leases 0 869 

Minimum Revenue Provision (493) (646) 

Finance leases asset disposals 0 0 

Change in Capital Financing Requirement (493) 223 

 

37. LEASES 
Authority as Lessee: Finance Leases 
 
The Council has acquired a number of vehicles and items of equipment under finance leases. They 
have a net value of £78k in 2019/20 and £670k in 2020/21. 
 
The Council is committed to making minimum payments under these leases comprising settlement 
of the long term liability and the finance costs that will be payable by the Council in future years 
while the liability remains outstanding. The minimum lease payments are made up of the following 
amounts: 
 
 
 

 
Finance lease liabilities (NPV of minimum lease payments) 

2019/20 
£000 

2020/21 
£000 

Current 38 256 

Non-Current 40 414 

Finance costs payable in future years 14 52 

Minimum lease payments 92 722 

 
The minimum lease payments will be payable over the following periods: 
 

 2019/20 
£000 

2020/21 
£000 

Not later than one year 45 276 

Later than one year and not later than five years 47 446 

Later than five years 0 0 

Minimum lease payments 92 722 

 

 
 

Page 142



97 
 

 
 
 
 
 

38. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEMES 
As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Council makes contributions 
towards the cost of post-employment benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable 
until the employees retire, the Council has a commitment to make the payments that need to be 
disclosed at the time that the employees earn their future entitlement. 
 
The Council participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) which is administered by 
Lancashire County Council. This is a funded defined benefit final salary scheme for service up to 31st 
March 2014 and on a revalued average salary (a “career average” scheme) for service from 1st April 
2014 onwards. A funded scheme means that the Council and employees pay contributions into a 
fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pension liabilities with the investment assets, and 
is governed by statute (principally now the LGPS Regulations 2013). 
 
Transactions Relating to Post-employment Benefits 
The Council recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services when they are 
earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are actually paid as pensions. However the 
charge we are required to make against council tax is based on the cash payable in the year so the 
real cost of post-employment / retirement benefits is reversed out of the General Fund via the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement and Movement in Reserves Statement: 

 Local Government Pension 
Scheme 

 2019/20 2020/21 

 £000 £000 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement   

Cost of Services   

Current service cost 2,292 2,195 

Past Service Cost 1,438 0 

Curtailments  0 10 

Administration cost 40 41 

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure   

Net interest expense 846 743 

Total post-employment benefit charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services 

4,616 2,989 

Other Post-employment Benefits charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services 

  

Return (Loss) on plan assets (excluding the amount included in the net interest 
expense) 

1,728 (9,989) 

Actuarial (Gains) and Losses arising on changes in financial assumptions (8,962) 19,004 

Experience (gain) / loss   

Total Re-measurements recognised in other comprehensive expenditure (7,234) 9,015 

Total post-employment benefit charged (receipted) to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement 

(2,618) 12,004 

Movement in Reserves Statement   

Page 143



98 
 

Reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services for post-employment benefits in accordance with the code 

(4,616) (2,989) 

Actual amount charged against the General Fund Balance for pensions in the 
year 

  

Employers’ contributions payable to scheme 2,416 1,943 

Pension Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet 
 
The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the Council’s obligation in respect of its 
defined benefit plan is as follows: 

 Local Government Pension Scheme 

 2019/20 2020/21 

 £000 £000 

Present value of the defined benefit obligation 150,477 170,924 

Fair value of plan assets (118,578) (130,773) 

Sub-total 31,899 40,151 

Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation 31,899 40,151 

 
Reconciliation of the Movements in the Fair Value of Plan Assets 
 Local Government Pension 

Scheme 

 2019/20 2020/21 

 £000 £000 

Opening fair value of scheme assets 119,664 118,578 

Interest income 2,874 2,817 

Re-measurement gain / (loss)   

  The return (loss) on plan assets, excluding the amount included in 
the net interest expense 

(1,728) 11,798 

Administration costs (40) (41) 

Contributions from employer 2,416 1,943 

Contributions from employees paid into the scheme 422 452 

Benefits paid (5,030) (4,774) 

Closing fair value of scheme assets 118,578 130,773 

 
Reconciliation of Present Value of Plan Liabilities (Defined Benefit Obligation) 
 Local Government Pension 

Scheme 

 2019/20 2020/21 

 £000 £000 

Opening Balance at 1 April 156,597 150,477 

Current service cost 2,292 2,195 

Interest cost 3,720 3,560 

Contributions by scheme participants 422 452 

Re-measurement (gains) and losses:   

   Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in demographic 
assumptions 

(4,987) 0 

   Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial 
assumptions 

(2,304) 22,109 

   Other (1,671) (3,105) 

Past service costs / (gains) 1,438 0 

Page 144



99 
 

Losses / (gains) on curtailments 0 10 

Benefits paid (5,030) (4,774) 

Closing Balance 150,477 170,924 

 
 
Local Government Pension Scheme assets comprised: 
 

 Fair value of scheme assets  

 2019/20 2020/21 

 £000 £000 

Cash and cash equivalents 1,304 2,888 

   

Bonds   

By sector   

   corporate 2,965 0 

   government 0 0 

Sub-total bonds 2,965 0 

   

Property   

By type   

   Retail 119 129 

   Commercial 1,541 2,113 

     

Sub-total property 1,660 2,242 

   

Private Equity   

 UK 0 0 

 Overseas 62,846 70,400 

Sub-total private equity 62,846 70,400 

   

Other investment funds   

   Infrastructure 16,364 15,683 

   Credit funds 18,735 17,481 

   Property 8,419 16,384 

   Pooled fixed income 6,285 5,696 

Sub-total other investment funds 49,803 55,244 

Total Assets 118,578 130,774 

 
 

Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities 
 
Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, an 
estimate of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about 
mortality rates, salary levels etc.  
 

Page 145



100 
 

The Local Government Pension Scheme has been estimated by Mercer Limited, an independent firm 
of actuaries, estimates for the County Council Fund are based on the latest full valuation of the 
scheme as at 31st March 2021. 
 
 
 
The significant assumptions used by the actuary have been: 
 

Local Government Pension Scheme   

 2019/20 2020/21 

   

Mortality Assumptions Years Years 

   

Longevity at 65 for current pensioners   

   men 22.3 22.4 

   women 25.0 25.1 

   

Longevity at 65 for future pensioners   

   men 23.8 23.9 

   women 26.8 26.9 

   

 % % 

Rate of inflation 2.1 2.7 

Rate of increase in salaries 3.6 4.2 

rate of increase in pensions 2.2 2.8 

Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 2.4 2.1 

 
The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set out in 
the table above. 
 
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the 
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period and assumes for each change that the 
assumption analysed changes while all the other assumptions remain constant. The assumptions in 
longevity, for example, assume that life expectancy increases or decreases for men and women. In 
practice this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be interrelated. 
 
The estimations in the sensitivity analysis have followed the accounting policies for the scheme, i.e. 
on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method. The methods and types of assumptions 
used in preparing the sensitivity analysis below did not change from those used in the previous 
period. 
 

Impact on the defined benefit obligation in the scheme 
 

  

 Decrease Increase 

 in 
assumption 

in 
assumption 

 £000 £000 

Longevity (increase or decrease in one year) (5,288) 5,288 

Page 146



101 
 

Rate of inflation (increase or decrease by 0.1%) (2,600) 2,600 

Rate of increase in salaries (increase or decrease by 0.1%) (299) 299 

Rate for discounting scheme liabilities (increase or decrease by 0.1%) 2,561 (2,561) 

 
 
 
 
Impact on the Council’s Cash Flows 
 
The objectives of the scheme are to keep employers’ contributions at as constant rate as possible. 
The County Council has agreed a strategy with the scheme’s actuary to achieve a funding level of 
100% over 15 years during the April 2019 triennial valuation (the next valuation date is 31st March 
2022 and becomes effective from 1st April, 2023). Funding levels are monitored on an annual basis.  
 
The authority anticipates paying £1.062m contributions to the scheme in 2021/22. 
 
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation for scheme members is 15 years. 
 
 
The McCloud Case – additional disclosure 

The case concerns the transitional protections given to scheme members, who in 2012 were within 

10 years of their normal retirement age, in the judges and firefighters schemes as part of public 

service pension’s reform. Tapered protections were provided for those 3-4 years younger. On 20th 

December 2018 the Court of Appeal found that these protections were unlawful on the grounds of 

age discrimination and could not be justified. 

If the protections are unlawful then those members who are found to have been discriminated 

against will need to be offered appropriate remedies to ensure they are placed in an equivalent 

position to the protected members. Such remedies will need to be ‘upwards’ - that is the benefits of 

unprotected members will need to be raised rather than the benefits of protected members being 

reduced. 

Protections were applied to all members within 10 years of retirement in all public service schemes, 

with the form that protection took varying from scheme to scheme. Although the case only relates 

directly to two schemes it is anticipated that the principles of the outcome could be accepted as 

applying to all public service schemes.  However, there remains some uncertainty about the 

application to LG pension schemes. 

An appeal from Government against the judgement in the ‘McCloud’ case has been considered at 

the Supreme Court, this appeal was lost after the year end and there is no further recourse to 

appeal. 

Actuarial calculations of the potential additional pension liability for Hyndburn Council were 

assessed at £724,000 as at 31 March 2020 and were included within past service. This figure has not 

been updated for 31 March 2021. 

39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
 

Page 147



102 
 

At 31st March the Council had the following material contingent liability: 
 
Large Scale Voluntary Transfers Environmental Warranties 
 
There may be potential liabilities arising to Hyndburn BC from the Large Scale Voluntary Transfer 
(LSVT) of 30th March 2006 and the terms of the housing stock transfer related agreement of the 
same date, subject to the respective limitations and obligations in the agreement. Initially the 
agreement was with Hyndburn Homes Ltd of Contour Housing Group, subsequently Contour Housing 
amalgamated with Vicinity Housing Group to form Onward Housing Group (previously Symphony 
Housing Group).  
 
To mitigate the potential costs of the agreement the Council has: 
 

 Taken out Environmental Site Liability Insurance up to £20m, via a single premium, from the 
period 25th July 2007, which was renewed in 2017/18 to the 24th July 2027 

 Established a reserve for LSVT related Environmental Warranties which was increased by 
£250k per annum up to and including 2017/18. The balance in the reserve remains at 
£3.016m as at 31st March 2021. 

 
Business Rates Appeals 
 
As part of the legislation concerning the collection of business rates, successful appeals against local 
rateable values are met by Hyndburn Council. A provision has been established to meet the cost of 
successful appeals. It is possible though that new appeals may arise during the course of the year. 
Since they will have arisen after the provision was calculated they will not form part of its total 
estimate and the provision may not be sufficient. Consequently, if they were upheld, they would 
constitute a further liability for the Council. 
 
 

40. NATURE AND EXTENT OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 
The Council’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: 

 Credit Risk – the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the Council. 

 Liquidity risk – the possibility the Council might not have funds available to meet its 
commitments to make payments. 

 Market Risk – the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Council as a result of 
changes in such measures as interest rates and stock market movements. 

 
The Council’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial 
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the resources available to fund services. 
Risk management is carried out within the Council’s finance team under policies approved by the 
Council in the annual treasury management strategy. 
 
The Council has adopted CIPFA’s Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice and 
has set treasury management indicators to control key financial instrument risks. 
 
When the Council considers the revenue budget and capital programme in March, it also approves 
the Treasury Management Strategy for the coming three years. The strategy covers: 
 

 Current treasury position when reporting 

 Expected movement in interest rates 

Page 148



103 
 

 Council’s borrowing and debt strategy 

 Prudential indicators and limits on activity e.g. upper limits on variable rate exposure, upper 
limits on fixed rate exposure, gross limits for maturity structure of borrowing, maximum 
total principal sum invested for over 364 days 

 Debt re-scheduling considerations 
 
 
 
Credit Risk 
 
Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to 
Council customers. 
 
The risk is minimised through the annual investment strategy, which requires that deposits are not 
made with financial institutions unless they meet identified minimum credit criteria within the 
Council’s treasury management practices. The Council maintains strict credit criteria for investment 
counterparties and monitors activity against these criteria. As a result of these high credit criteria 
there has been no experience of defaults. 
 
The Council maintains an approved list of organisations for investment purposes, consisting of major 
banks, building societies and other local authorities. Maturity limits apply for each counterparty 
category and maximum investment limits also exist per counterparty and sector. 
No breaches of the Council’s counterparty criteria occurred during the reporting period and the 
Council does not expect any losses from non-performance by any of its’ counterparties in relation to 
deposits. 
 
The following analysis summarises the Council’s potential maximum exposure to credit risk based on 
past experience and current market conditions: 
 

 Amount at 
31st March 

2021 

Historical 
experience 
of default 

Historical 
experience 

adjusted 
for market 
conditions 

Estimated 
Maximum 

Exposure to 
Default and 
collectability 

 £000 % % £000 

Banks & Building Societies 0 0 0 0 

Other Local Authorities & Govt Bodies 25,000 0 0 0 

Other Customers 3,592 2.6 2.6 93 

Total 28,592   93 

 
The Council does not generally allow credit for its sundry debtors. The sundry debtors outstanding 
which are past their due date for payment at 31st March 2021 can be analysed by age as shown in 
the table below.  
 

Aged Sundry Debt – 31st March 2021 £000 

Less than 30 days 372 

30 days to 59 days 376 

60 days to 89 days 105 

90 days to 119 days 53 

120 + days 2,072 

Total 2,978 

Page 149



104 
 

 
Liquidity Risk 
 
The Council has ready access to borrowings from the Public Works Loan Board for long term 
borrowing and the money markets to cover any day-to-day cash flow need. There is therefore no 
significant risk that it will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments under financial 
instruments. 
 
The Council manages its liquidity position through the risk management procedures above as well as 
through cash flow management procedures required by the Code of Practice. 
 
The approved prudential indicator limits for the maturity structure of debt and the limits placed for 
greater than one year in duration are the key parameters used to address this risk. The Council 
approved treasury and investment strategy addresses the main risks and the accountancy section 
address the operational risks within the approved parameters. The maturity analysis of financial 
liabilities is as follows: 
 

Financial Liabilities by Maturity Risk  31st March 2020 31st March 2021 

 £000 £000 

Less than one year 4,240 4,471 

Between 1 and 2 years 38 446 

Between 2 and 5 years 9 0 

Between 5 and 10 years 0 0 

10 years and above 5,400 5,400 

Total 9,687 10,317 

 
 
The risk of LOBO loans (£4.12m) being recalled is appropriately reflected by categorising the loans 
per the next call date.  The final maturity dates of the LOBO loans are:- 
 
   £2.6m 31 July 2042 
    
   £1.52m 25 November 2054 
 
The maturity date of the long term loan - £5.4m – is 6 August 2054 
 
 
Market Risk 
 
These risks are the possibility that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in interest rates, market prices and foreign currency exchange rates etc. 
 
Interest rate risk 
The Council has limited exposure to interest rate movements on its borrowings and investments. 
Borrowings are not carried at fair value on the balance sheet, so nominal gains and losses on fixed 
rate borrowings would not impact on the surplus or deficit on the Provision of Services or Other 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.  However, changes in interest payable and receivable on 
variable rate borrowings and investments will be posted to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services and affect the General Fund Balance. Movements in the fair value of fixed rate investments 
that have a quoted market price will be reflected in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. 
 

Page 150



105 
 

The aim of the prudential indicators is to contain the activity of the treasury function within certain 
limits thereby reducing the risk or likelihood of an adverse movement in interest rate or borrowing 
decisions that could impact negatively on the Council’s overall financial position.  
 
The accountancy section monitors market and forecast interest rates within the year to adjust 
exposure appropriately. 
 
If interest rates had been 1% higher with all other variables held constant, the financial effect would 
have been as set out below. 
 

Sensitivity to 1% increase in interest Rates 

 

(Received)/ Paid 
in Year 

£000 

+ 1% Increase  
 

£000 

Increase in interest payable on short term borrowings 0 0 

Increase in interest receivable on short term investments  (127) (348) 

Impact on surplus or deficit on the provision of services (127) (348) 
Increase (decrease) in fair value of fixed rate investments (fixed 
term deposits) 

0 0 

Impact on other comprehensive income and expenditure (127) (348) 
   
Borrowing Liabilities   

LOBO's (fixed rate) 243 0 

LOBO's (variable) 196 41 

 439 41 

 
The impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would be as above but with the movements being reversed 
except for interest receivable which would fall to nil. 
 

Price Risk 
The Council, excluding the pension fund, does not generally invest in instruments with this type of 
risk. 
 
Foreign Exchange Risk 
The Council has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and thus have no 
exposure to loss arising from movements in exchange rates. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 151



106 
 

  

Page 152



107 
 

COLLECTION FUND 
 
The Collection Fund is an agent’s statement that reflects the statutory obligation for billing authorities to 
maintain a separate Collection Fund. The statement shows the transactions of the billing authority in relation 
to the collection from taxpayers and distribution to local authorities and the Government of council tax and 
non-domestic rates. 
 

2019/20 Income & Expenditure Account 2020/21 

Business Council Total  Business Council Total 

Rates Tax   Rates Tax  

£000 £000 £000  £000 £000 £000 

   Income    

 (40,678) (40,678) Income from Council Tax  (42,478) (42,478) 

(21,095)  (21,095) Business rates (12,182)  (12,182) 

(21,095) (40,678) (61,773) Gross Income (12,182) (42,478) (54,660) 

       

   Expenditure    

   Apportionment of previous year’s     

   (surplus)/ deficit:    

228  228  Central Government 278  278 

41 1,279 1,320  Lancashire County Council 97 752 849 

 175 175  Lancashire Police & Crime Commissioner  112 112 

4 67 71  Lancashire Combined Fire Authority 9 39 48 

182 238 420  Hyndburn Borough Council 351 137 488 

455 1,759 2,214  735 1,040 1,775 

   Precepts and Demands:    

3,979  3,979  Central Government  8,426  8,426 

2,785 28,190 30,975  Lancashire County Council 1,517 29,334 30,851 

 4,217 4,217  Lancashire Police & Crime Commissioner  4,429 4,429 

239 1,454 1,693  Lancashire Combined Fire Authority 169 1,484 1,653 

8,912 5,152 14,064  Hyndburn Borough Council 6,741 5,261 12,002 

15,915 39,013 54,928  16,853 40,508 57,361 

   Charges to the Collection Fund:    

121  121 Cost of collection 121  121 

349  349 Transitional Payment Protection 485  485 

555 387 942 Write offs 115 54 169 

117 856 973 Increase/(decrease) in bad debt provision 1,034 2,083 3,117 

3,308  3,308 Increase in provision for appeals (102)  (102) 

(1)  (1) Settlement of Appeals (22)  (22) 

4,449 1,243 5,692  1,631 2,137 3,768 

       

20,819 42,015 62,834 
 

Gross Expenditure 19,219 43,685 62,904 
 

       

(276) 1,337 1,061 (Surplus)/deficit for year 7,037 1,207 8,244 

(831) (1,723) (2,554) (Surplus)/deficit as at 1
st

 April b/f (1,107) (386) (1,493) 

(1,107) (386) (1,493) (Surplus)/deficit as at 31
st

 March c/f 5,930 821 6,751 

 

Page 153



108 
 

 
 
Non-Domestic Rates (NDR) 
 
NDR is the business rate and is organised on a national basis. The government specifies an amount 
for standard businesses (51.2p in 2020/21 and 50.4p in 2019/20) and an amount for qualifying small 
businesses (49.9p in 2020/21 and 49.1p in 2019/20). These national multipliers are, subject to the 
effects of transitionary arrangements, used to calculate local businesses pay rates by multiplying the 
amount by their rateable value. 
 
With the introduction of the Business Rates Retention Scheme from 1st April 2013 Councils pass on 
to Central Government 50% of the collectable amount, retaining 40% themselves and passing 9% 
and 1% to the County Council and combined Fire and Rescue Authority respectively. 
 
In 2020/21, Hyndburn is once again part of the Lancashire Business Rates Pool. In a Business Rate 
Pool, tariffs, top-ups, levies and safety nets can be combined. This can result in a significantly lower 
levy rate or even a zero levy rate meaning that more or all of the business rate growth can be 
retained within the pool area instead of being payable to the Government. 
 
The Lancashire Business Rates Pool, which includes most but not all of the local authorities in 
Lancashire, has been designated by the Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and Local 
Government and the retained levy in Lancashire has been distributed as follows: 
 

 Lancashire County Council is paid 10% of the overall retained levy 

 Each district within the pool retains 90% of their levy 
 
With regard to Hyndburn BC, the retained levy is £600,284, hence under pooling we have benefitted 
from extra income of £540,255. Lancashire County Council has received the remaining 10% of 
retained levy. 
 
As part of the pool arrangements, one authority must be designated as lead authority, which in the 
case of the Lancashire Business Rates Pool is Ribble Valley Borough Council. As part of this 
arrangement a fee of £2,000 is payable by each pool member to Ribble Valley BC in their role as 
lead. 
 
The Council’s total non-domestic rateable value at the end of the financial year 2020/21 was 
£56.33m and £56.28m for 2019/20.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 154



109 
 

 
 
 
Council Tax  
 
Council tax is due from residential properties based on the statutory national valuation band in 
which the property has been placed. The council tax is calculated by estimating the amount of 
income required from the collection fund by the Council and the Precepting authorities for the 
forthcoming year. This is divided by the council tax base i.e. the total number of equivalent Band D 
properties. 
 

Band Number of 
Dwellings 

Discount Factor Band D 
Equivalent Whole 

Numbers 

AA 45 9 5 20 

A 18,479 3,707 6 9,848 

B 5,113 431 7 3,641 

C 5,151 233 8 4,372 

D 2,513 63 9 2,449 

E 778 18 11 929 

F 254 2 13 363 

G 153 4 15 248 

H 4 0 18 8 

   Total 21,878 

   % Collection Rate 95.75 

   Tax Base 20,948 

 
 
 
 
Surpluses and Deficits 
 
The actual surplus or deficit on the council tax collected at the financial year end is apportioned and 
distributed between the billing and the precepting authorities in proportion to the value of their 
respective precepts on the collection fund. Any surplus is used to reduce future years’ council tax.  
 
The amounts transferred in respect to each year’s surplus or deficit are based on an estimate made 
mid-January and therefore do not relate directly to the balance shown in these accounts. Any 
difference between the estimate and the outturn is taken into account when estimating the surplus 
or deficit the following year. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 155



110 
 

 
 
 
 
LANCASHIRE BUSINESS RATES POOLING ARRANGEMENTS 
 
 

In 2016/17, 2017/18 and 2018/19 this Council was a member of the Lancashire Business 

Rates Pool. In a Business Rate Pool, tariffs, top-ups, levies and safety nets are combined. This 

can result in a significantly lower levy rate or even a zero levy rate meaning that more or all 

of the business rate growth can be retained within the pool area instead of being payable to 

the Government. 

The Lancashire Business Rates Pool, which included most but not all of the local authorities 

in Lancashire, was designated by the Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and Local 

Government and originally operated with allocations on the basis of the 50% business rates 

retention scheme. 

In 2019/20 we successfully submitted a bid along with 15 other authorities in Lancashire to 

become a 75% Business Rates Pilot Pool. This meant that 75% of collected rates were 

retained in Lancashire rather than 50%. 

In respect of 2020/21, the Government confirmed that 75% Business Rate Pilots would cease 

at the end of March 2020. As a result, an application for a 50% Lancashire  

Pool for 2020/21, consisting of 10 district council’s and the county council, was submitted 

and was successful. This has operated on the same basis as in 2016/17, 2017/18 and 

2018/19. 

A comparison of the business rates income allocations in 2019/20 and 2020/21 are shown in 

the table below: 

 

Lancashire 

Business Rates 

Pilot Pool 

2019/20 

Lancashire 

Business Rates 

Pool 

2020/21 

District Authorities 56% 40% 

Lancashire County Council 17.5% 9% 

Lancashire Combined Fire Authority 1.5% 1% 

 75% 50% 

Central Government 25% 50% 

Total 100% 100% 

Page 156



111 
 

Unitary Authorities 73.5% 49% 

The value for Unitary Authorities in 2020/21 is for comparison purposes only. There were no Unitary Authorities in 

the 2020/21 Lancashire Business Rates Pool.   

 

As part of the pool arrangements, one authority must be designated as lead authority, which 

in the case of the Lancashire Business Rates Pool is Ribble Valley Borough Council. As part of 

this arrangement a fee of £20,000 is payable, charged equally to all members of the pool by 

Ribble Valley Borough Council in their role as lead. 

The retained levy in the Lancashire Business Rates Pool has been distributed as follows: 

 Lancashire County Council is paid 10% of the overall retained levy; 

 Each district within the pool retains 90% of their levy.  

Lancashire Business Rates 

Pool Members 2020/21

Authority 

Type

Tariffs and Top-

Ups in Respect 

of 2020/21

£

Retained Levy 

on Growth 

2020/21

£

10% Retained 

Levy Payable 

to/received by 

Lancashire 

County Council

£

Net Retained 

Levy 2020/21

£

Burnley Borough Council Tariff 6,043,499 -1,402,433 140,243 -1,262,190

Chorley Borough Council Tariff 6,503,220 -931,716 93,172 -838,544

Fylde Borough Council Tariff 8,101,273 -483,263 48,326 -434,937

Hyndburn Borough Council Tariff 3,969,106 -600,284 60,028 -540,256

Pendle Borough Council Tariff 3,388,618 -272,822 27,282 -245,540

Ribble Valley Borough Council Tariff 4,311,424 -575,916 57,592 -518,324

Rossendale Borough Council Tariff 2,713,519 -102,546 10,255 -92,291

South Ribble Borough Council Tariff 10,327,203 -1,281,013 128,101 -1,152,912

West Lancashire Borough Council Tariff 8,698,358 -653,963 65,396 -588,567

Wyre Borough Council Tariff 6,837,509 -893,050 89,305 -803,745

Lancashire County Council Top-Up -158,098,681 -719,700 -719,700

Central Government - 97,204,952 0 0

Total 0 -7,197,006 0 -7,197,006

 

 

The Net Retained Levy for this Council is shown within Business Rates Retention income on 

the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, along with the council’s own share 

of growth achieved in the year. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 157



112 
 

 
 
 

Page 158



           Appendix B 

 

To be provided to us on client headed note paper 

[Date] 

Dear Mark 

Hyndburn Borough Council - audit for year ended 31 March 2021 

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of 

Hyndburn Borough Council (‘the Council’) for the year ended 31 March 2021 for the purpose of 

expressing an opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view in accordance 

with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 

2020/21 (the Code) and applicable law. 

I confirm that the following representations are made on the basis of enquiries of management and 

staff with relevant knowledge and experience (and, where appropriate, inspection of supporting 

documentation) sufficient to satisfy myself that I can properly make each of the following 

representations to you. 

My responsibility for the financial statements and accounting information 

I believe that I have fulfilled my responsibilities for the true and fair presentation and preparation of the 

financial statements in accordance with the Code and applicable law. 

My responsibility to provide and disclose relevant information 

I have provided you with:  

• access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the 

financial statements such as records, documentation and other material; 

• additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit; and 

• unrestricted access to individuals within the Council you determined it was necessary to 

contact in order to obtain audit evidence. 

I confirm as Deputy Chief Executive (Section 151 Officer) that I have taken all the necessary steps to 

make me aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that you, as auditors, are aware of 

this information. 

As far as I am aware there is no relevant audit information of which you, as auditors, are unaware. 

Accounting records 

I confirm that all transactions that have a material effect on the financial statements have been 

recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial statements. All other records and 

related information, including minutes of all Council, Cabinet and committee meetings, have been 

made available to you.  

Accounting policies 

I confirm that I have reviewed the accounting policies applied during the year in accordance with 

Code and International Accounting Standard 8 and consider these policies to faithfully represent the 

effects of transactions, other events or conditions on the Council’s financial position, financial 

performance and cash flows.  

Accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value 

I confirm that any significant assumptions used by the Council in making accounting estimates, 

including those measured at current or fair value, are reasonable. 

Contingencies 

There are no material contingent losses including pending or potential litigation that should be 

accrued where: 

Page 159



• information presently available indicates that it is probable that an asset has been impaired or 

a liability had been incurred at the balance sheet date; and 

• the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. 

There are no material contingent losses that should be disclosed where, although either or both the 

conditions specified above are not met, there is a reasonable possibility that a loss, or a loss greater 

than that accrued, may have been incurred at the balance sheet date. 

There are no undisclosed contingent gains which should be disclosed. 

All material matters, including unasserted claims, that may result in litigation against the Council have 

been brought to your attention. All known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should 

be considered when preparing the financial statements have been disclosed to you and accounted for 

and disclosed in accordance with the Code and applicable law. 

Laws and regulations 

I confirm that I have disclosed to you all those events of which I am aware which involve known or 

suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations, together with the actual or contingent 

consequences which may arise therefrom. 

The Council has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have a material effect 

on the accounts in the event of non-compliance. 

Fraud and error 

I acknowledge my responsibility as Deputy Chief Executive (Section 151 Officer) for the design, 

implementation and maintenance of internal control to prevent and detect fraud and error.  

I have disclosed to you: 

• all the results of my assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially 

misstated as a result of fraud; 

• all knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the Council involving: 

• management and those charged with governance; 

• employees who have significant roles in internal control; and 

• others where fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

  

I have disclosed to you all information in relation to any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, 

affecting the Council’s financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, 

analysts, regulators or others. 

Related party transactions 

I confirm that all related party relationships, transactions and balances, have been appropriately 

accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the requirements of the Code and applicable law. 

I have disclosed to you the identity of the Council’s related parties and all related party relationships 

and transactions of which I am aware. 

Future commitments 

I am not aware of any plans, intentions or commitments that may materially affect the carrying value 

or classification of assets and liabilities or give rise to additional liabilities. 

Subsequent events 

I confirm all events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which the Code and 

applicable law, require adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. 

Should further material events occur after the date of this letter which may necessitate revision of the 

figures included in the financial statements or inclusion of a note thereto, I will advise you accordingly. 

Covid-19 

Page 160



I confirm that the Council has carried out an assessment of the potential impact of the Covid-19 Virus 

pandemic on the Council, including the impact of mitigation measures and uncertainties, and that the 

disclosures in the Narrative Report fairly reflects that assessment. 

Impacts of Russian Forces entering Ukraine 

I confirm that I have carried out an assessment of the potential impact of Russian Forces entering 

Ukraine on the Council, including the impact of mitigation measures and uncertainties. 

 

Going concern 

To the best of my knowledge there is nothing to indicate that the Council will not continue as a going 

concern in the foreseeable future. The period to which I have paid particular attention in assessing the 

appropriateness of the going concern basis is not less than twelve months from the date of approval 

of the accounts. 

 

Unadjusted misstatements  

I confirm that the effects of the uncorrected misstatements are immaterial, both individually and in 

aggregate, to the financial statements as a whole. All uncorrected misstatements are included in 

Appendix A. 

 

 

Yours faithfully 

 

 

 

Joe McIntyre 

Deputy Chief Executive (Section 151 Officer) 

 

Page 161



This page is intentionally left blank



Audit Completion Report

P
age 163

A
genda Item

 8.



01
02
03
04
05
06
07

Contents

Executive summary
Status of the audit
Audit approach
Significant findings
Internal control recommendations
Summary of misstatements
Value for Money

Appendix A: Draft management representation letter
Appendix B: Draft audit report
Appendix C: Independence
Appendix D: Other communications

Our reports are prepared in the context of the ‘Statement of Responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies’ and the ‘Appointing Person Terms of Appointment’ issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited.
Reports and letters prepared by appointed auditors and addressed to the Hyndburn Borough Council are prepared for the sole use of the Hyndburn Borough Council and we take no responsibility to any member or officer in their individual capacity or to
any third party.
Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, an international advisory and accountancy group. Mazars LLP is registered by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.

2

P
age 164



Members of the Audit Committee
Hyndburn Borough Council
Scaitcliffe House
BB5 0RP

17 November 2022

Dear Committee Members

Audit Completion Report – Year ended 31 March 2021
We are pleased to present our Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2021. The purpose of this document is to summarise our audit conclusions.

The scope of our work, including identified significant audit risks and other areas of management judgement, was outlined in our Audit Strategy Memorandum which we presented in March 2021. We have
reviewed our Audit Strategy Memorandum and concluded that the original significant audit risks and other areas of management judgement remain appropriate.

We would like to express our thanks for the assistance of your team during our audit.

If you would like to discuss any matters in more detail, then please do not hesitate to contact me on 07795 506766.

Yours faithfully

Mark Dalton
Mazars LLP

Mazars LLP
One St. Peter’s Square

Manchester
M2 3DE

Mazars LLP – One St, Peter’s Square, Manchester, M2 3DE
Tel: 0161 238 9200 – www.mazars.co.uk
Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, an integrated international advisory and accountancy organisation. Mazars LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales with registered number OC308299 and with its registered office at Tower Bridge House, St Katharine’s Way, 
London E1W 1DD.
We are registered to carry on audit work in the UK by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Details about our audit registration can be viewed at www.auditregister.org.uk under reference number C001139861. VAT number: 839 8356 73

P
age 165

http://www.mazars.co.uk/


Section 01:
Executive summary

P
age 166



1. Executive summary

Principal conclusions and significant findings
The detailed scope of our work as your appointed auditor for 2020/21 is set out in the National Audit
Office’s (NAO) Code of Audit Practice. Our responsibilities and powers are derived from the Local
Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and, as outlined in our Audit Strategy Memorandum, our audit has
been conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) and means we focus on
audit risks that we have assessed as resulting in a higher risk of material misstatement.

In section 4 of this report we have set out our conclusions and significant findings from our audit.
This section includes our conclusions on the audit risks and areas of management judgement in our
Audit Strategy Memorandum, which include:
• Net defined pension liability valuation;
• Valuation of property, plant and equipment and investment properties; and
• Management override of controls.
Section 5 sets out internal control recommendations and section 6 sets out audit misstatements;
unadjusted misstatements total £542k. Section 7 outlines our work on the Council’s arrangements to
achieve economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

Status and audit opinion

We have substantially completed our audit in respect of the financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2021.
At the time of preparing this report, a small number of matters remain outstanding as outlined in
section 2. We will provide an update to you in relation to the significant matters outstanding through
issuance of a follow up letter.

Subject to the satisfactory conclusion of the remaining audit work, we have the following conclusions:

5

Executive summary Status of audit Audit approach Significant findings Internal control 
recommendations

Summary of
misstatements Value for Money Appendices

Audit opinion
We anticipate issuing an unqualified opinion, without modification, on the financial 
statements.  Our proposed audit opinion is included in the draft auditor’s report in 
Appendix B. 

Value for Money
Our work on the Council’s value for money arrangements is in progress, and we 
expect to complete this in advance of signing our audit report in January 2023. 

Further detail on our Value for Money work is provided in section 7 of this report.  

Wider powers
The 2014 Act requires us to give an elector, or any representative of the elector, 
the opportunity to question us about the accounting records of the Hyndburn 
Borough Council and to consider any objection made to the accounts. We have not 
received any such objections or questions.

P
age 167



Section 02:
Status of the audit

6

P
age 168



2. Status of the audit

Audit area Status Description of the outstanding matters

Property, plant and 
equipment valuations

We are awaiting for explanations for a difference noted between postings to the
asset register, Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and
Revaluation Reserve regarding revaluations during the year.

Infrastructure assets
The Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC) has
consulted on a statutory override to resolve the national issue relating to
accounting for infrastructure assets. Further information is included on page 15.

Financial statements, 
Annual Governance 
Statement and letter of 
representation

We will complete our final review of the financial statements upon receipt of the
signed version of the accounts and letter of representation.

Audit Quality Control and 
Completion Procedures

Our audit work is undergoing final stages of review by the Engagement Lead and
further quality and compliance checks. In addition, there are residual procedures
to complete, including updating post balance sheet event considerations to the
point of issuing the opinion, obtaining final management representations and
agreeing adjustments to the final set of accounts.

7

Our work is substantially complete and there are currently no matters of which we are aware that would require modification of our audit opinion, subject to the outstanding matters detailed 
below.

Likely to result in material adjustment 
or significant change to disclosures 
within the financial statements.

Potential to result in material 
adjustment or significant change to 
disclosures within the financial 
statements.

Not considered likely to result in 
material adjustment or change to 
disclosures within the financial 
statements. 

Executive summary Status of audit Audit approach Significant findings Internal control 
recommendations

Summary of
misstatements Value for Money Appendices

We will provide the Audit Committee with an update in relation to these outstanding matters in a follow-up letter, prior to signing the auditor’s report. P
age 169



Section 03:
Audit approach

8

P
age 170



3. Audit approach

Changes to our audit approach
We provided details of our intended audit approach in our Audit Strategy Memorandum in March
2022. We have not made any changes to our audit approach since we presented our Audit Strategy
Memorandum.

Materiality
Our provisional materiality at the planning stage of the audit was set at £940k using a benchmark of
2% of gross operating expenditure. No changes to the materiality level set at the planning stage have
been made.

Use of experts
We set out our Audit Strategy Memorandum our planned use of experts to assist in our audit
procedures. There were no changes to our planned approach.

There are no reporting maters to highlight from our consideration of the work of experts.

9

Executive summary Status of audit Audit approach Significant findings Internal control 
recommendations

Summary of
misstatements Value for Money Appendices

Item of account Management’s expert Our expert

Property, Plant & 
Equipment Valuations Sloane & Associates

We utilised relevant third party 
market data to review and 
challenge valuation movements.

Net Pension Liability 
Valuation Mercers PWC

P
age 171



Section 04:
Significant findings

10

P
age 172



11

4. Significant findings

In this section we outline the significant findings from our audit. These findings include:
• our audit conclusions regarding other significant risks and key areas of management judgement outlined in the Audit Strategy Memorandum;
• our comments in respect of the accounting policies and disclosures that you have adopted in the financial statements. On page 15 we have concluded whether the financial statements have been prepared

in accordance with the financial reporting framework and commented on any significant accounting policy changes that have been made during the year;
• any further significant matters discussed with management; and
• any significant difficulties we experienced during the audit.

Significant risks

Management override of 
controls

Description of the risk

In all entities, management at various levels within an organisation are in a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of their ability to manipulate accounting
records and prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding controls that otherwise appear to be operating effectively. Due to the unpredictable way in
which such override could occur, we consider there to be a risk of material misstatement due to fraud and thus a significant risk on all audits.

How we addressed this risk
We addressed this risk through performing audit work over

• Accounting estimates impacting amounts included in the financial statements;

• Consideration of identified significant transactions outside the normal course of business; and

• Journals recorded in the general ledger and other adjustments made in preparation of the financial statements.

Audit conclusion

There were no matters arising to bring to the Audit Committee’s attention in respect of management override of controls. Our general expenditure testing did
identify a control recommendation in respect of journal entries. This is included in section 5 of this report.

Executive summary Status of audit Audit approach Significant findings Internal control 
recommendations

Summary of
misstatements Value for Money Appendices

P
age 173



12

Net defined benefit liability 
valuation

Description of the risk

The Council’s accounts contain material liabilities relating to the local government pension scheme administered by Lancashire County Council. The Council and its
subsidiaries rely upon an actuary, Mercers to provide an annual valuation of these liabilities in line with the requirements of IAS 19 Employee Benefits. Due to the high
degree of estimation uncertainty associated with this valuation, we have determined there is a significant risk in this area.

How we addressed this risk
Our procedures included:

• corresponding with the Lancashire County Council auditor to gain assurance on their audit of the fund;

• assessing the skill, competence and experience of the Fund’s actuary, Mercers, including a review of the actuary by our actuarial expert PWC;
• challenging the reasonableness of the assumptions used by the actuary as part of the annual IAS 19 valuation;

• reviewing the appropriateness of the pension asset and liability valuation methodologies applied by the actuary, and the key assumptions included within the
valuation. This included comparing them to expected ranges, utilising information provided by PWC, consulting actuary engaged by the National Audit Office;

• carrying out a range of substantive procedures on relevant information and cash flows used by the actuary as part of the annual IAS 19 valuation; and

• considering the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on the valuation of the pension fund net liability, in particular considering the impact of any material valuation
uncertainties highlighted in respect of property investment valuations at the pension fund level.

Audit conclusion

During the course of the audit the Council received a revised valuation of its pension fund liability, which takes account of actual rather than estimated returns on assets
at the year end. The impact of this revised valuation is a reduction in the Council’s pension liability of £1.8m. As this represents more up-to-date information, the Council
has revised its accounts to include the updated valuations.

There are no further matters to bring to the Audit Committee’s attention.

Executive summary Status of audit Audit approach Significant findings Internal control 
recommendations

Summary of
misstatements Value for Money Appendices

4. Significant findings

Significant risks (continued)

P
age 174



13

Valuation of property, plant and 
equipment and investment 
properties

Description of the risk

The Council’s accounts contain material balances and disclosures relating to its holding of property, plant and equipment (PPE) including investment properties, with
the majority of property assets required to be carried at valuation. Due to the high degree of estimation uncertainty associated with these valuations especially within
land and buildings, we have determined there is a significant risk in this area.

How we addressed this risk
Our audit procedures included:

• assessing the skill, competence and experience of the Council’s valuers;

• reviewing the instructions issued to the valuers by management to ensure they comply with the Code requirements;
• considering whether the overall revaluation methodology used by the Council’s valuers is in line with industry practice, the CIPFA Code of Practice and the Council’s

accounting policies;

• understanding the process followed by management to seek assurance that any land and buildings assets not revalued at 31 March 2021 are not materially
misstated;

• assessing the movement in market indices between the revaluation dates and the year end to determine whether there have been material movements over that
time;

• testing the valuation on a sample of properties;

• testing a sample of items of capital expenditure in 2020/21 to confirm that the additions are appropriately valued in the financial statements;

• considering the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on asset valuations, in particular considering the impact of any material valuation uncertainties highlighted.

Audit conclusion

Our testing of property valuations identified a number of errors in the valuation process, including mathematical errors in converting regional indices to local rates, and
inconsistencies between the underlying data used in calculations and the supporting evidence held by the Council. Section 6 of this report details the errors across the
different categories of property held by the Council. As the errors are not material, management has opted not to amend the financial statements.

Executive summary Status of audit Audit approach Significant findings Internal control 
recommendations

Summary of
misstatements Value for Money Appendices

4. Significant findings

Significant risks (continued)

P
age 175



14

Valuation of property, plant and 
equipment and investment 
properties

Audit conclusion (continued)

Our testing also identified that the Council had posted asset revaluations in the asset register as at 31 March 2021, rather than 1 April 2020. This results in the
depreciation charge for the year not being calculated based on the most up-to-date information.

As one of the largest estimates within the Council’s accounts, property valuations are inherently subjective and require expertise to calculate. While the Council uses an
expert to provide the valuations for inclusion in the financial statements, it remains management’s responsibility to ensure information included in the financial
statements is complete and accurate. It is clear from our testing that there is insufficient management oversight of the valuations process. As such we have included a
recommendation in section 5 of this report for management to review the process, with a view to including appropriate review and challenge prior to posting revaluations
to the asset register.

Subject to satisfactory clearance of our final queries as set out in section 2, there are no further matters to bring to the Audit Committee’s attention.

Executive summary Status of audit Audit approach Significant findings Internal control 
recommendations

Summary of
misstatements Value for Money Appendices

4. Significant findings

Significant risks (continued)

P
age 176



15

4. Significant findings

Qualitative aspects of the Council’s accounting practices
We have reviewed the Council’s accounting policies and disclosures and concluded they comply with
the 2020/21 Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting, appropriately tailored to the Council’s
circumstances.

Draft accounts were prepared prior to our appointment as the Council’s external auditor. As set out in
section 6 of this report, a number of adjustments were identified due to errors and inconsistencies
within the financial statements. Working papers were provided alongside the draft financial
statements, however these often lacked sufficient information to allow the audit to progress smoothly
and required additional queries in order to understand how the information had been compiled and
supported disclosures in the financial statements.

The Council’s finance team were helpful in responding to our queries, and are committed to
reviewing the accounts closedown procedures in order to improve the audit procedures in future
years.

Significant matters discussed with management
During the audit we maintained a regular dialogue with management. Among the matters discussed
through these conversations were:

Covid-19
We continue to discuss the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on the Council’s operations and
financial statements. In particular we focussed on the accounting treatment of grant income, and
from our work on this area identified a misclassification of grants received in advance, which had
been incorrectly included on the Council’s Balance Sheet as a provision for potential clawbacks. We
also discussed the impact of the pandemic on the Council’s credit loss allowance, and we have
included a recommendation in relation to this in Section 4 of this report.

Impact of the War in Ukraine
The ongoing situation in Ukraine has far-reaching consequences for public sector organisations. As
part of our audit we have discussed with management the impact of the war on the Trust’s
operations, and whether any disclosures are required in the Trust’s financial statements. We are
satisfied there are no issues arising which would require specific disclosures in the Trust’s financial
statements.

Accounting for infrastructure assets
While the net value of the Council’s infrastructure assets is £nil, the gross value of these assets is
material. In Autumn a national technical issue arose in respect of accounting for infrastructure
assets. Normal custom and practice for (highways) infrastructure assets is that derecognition does
not affect asset balances because the assets are expected to have been fully used up before the
replacement expenditure takes place; this does require that assets are properly depreciated in line
with the requirements of the Accounting Code. This issue arises in part because of limitations on
historical information relating to when the assets were first recorded on balance sheets in the early
1990s, and where there have been transfers of assets because of local authority reorganisations. It is
also extremely difficult to clearly identify the parts of the assets which are being replaced.
Work is ongoing to provide a sector-wide resolution to the issue, with the government having recently
consulted on a proposed statutory override to resolve the issue. This is expected to come in to force
in December 2022. As the gross value of infrastructure assets is material to the Council, we are
unable to conclude our audit until a resolution is in place. We will update the Audit Committee on the
outcome as part of our follow-up letter.

Significant difficulties during the audit
The issues identified above, and in the following sections of this report have contributed to delays in
finalising the audit process for 2020/21. We will work with the Council’s management team to ensure
the 2021/22 and 2022/23 audits address these issues and are completed on a timely basis.

Executive summary Status of audit Audit approach Significant findings Internal control 
recommendations

Summary of
misstatements Value for Money Appendices

P
age 177



16

4. Significant findings

Wider responsibilities
Our powers and responsibilities under the 2014 Act are broad and include the ability to:
• issue a report in the public interest;
• make statutory recommendations that must be considered and responded to publicly;
• apply to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law; and
• issue an advisory notice under schedule 8 of the 2014 Act. 

We have not exercised any of these powers as part of our 2020/21 audit. 

The 2014 Act also gives rights to local electors and other parties, such as the right to ask questions of the auditor and the right to make an objection to an item of account. No such questions or objections 
have been raised.

Executive summary Status of audit Audit approach Significant findings Internal control 
recommendations

Summary of
misstatements Value for Money Appendices

P
age 178



Section 05:
Internal control recommendations

17

P
age 179



5. Internal control recommendations

The purpose of our audit was to express an opinion on the financial statements. As part of our audit
we have considered the internal controls in place relevant to the preparation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures to allow us to express an opinion on the financial
statements but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control or
to identify any significant deficiencies in their design or operation.

The matters reported are limited to those deficiencies and other control recommendations that we
have identified during our normal audit procedures and that we consider to be of sufficient
importance to merit being reported. If we had performed more extensive procedures on internal
control we might have identified more deficiencies to be reported or concluded that some of the
reported deficiencies need not in fact have been reported. Our comments should not be regarded as
a comprehensive record of all deficiencies that may exist or improvements that could be made.

Our findings and recommendations are set out below. We have assigned priority rankings to each of
them to reflect the importance that we consider each poses to your organisation and, hence, our
recommendation in terms of the urgency of required action. In summary, the matters arising fall into
the following categories:

Priority ranking Description Number of issues

1 (high) In our view, there is potential for financial loss, damage 
to reputation or loss of information. This may have 
implications for the achievement of business strategic 
objectives. The recommendation should be taken into 
consideration by management immediately.

2

2 (medium) In our view, there is a need to strengthen internal 
control or enhance business efficiency. The 
recommendations should be actioned in the near 
future. 

5

3 (low) In our view, internal control should be strengthened in 
these additional areas when practicable.

1

18

Executive summary Status of audit Audit approach Significant findings Internal control 
recommendations

Summary of
misstatements Value for Money Appendices

P
age 180



5. Internal control recommendations

Significant deficiencies in internal control – Level 1

Description of deficiency 

Our testing of asset valuations identified a number of issues where information used in the 
valuations did not agree to supporting documentation. Discussions with management confirmed 
no formal challenge of the valuations had taken place as part of the accounts closedown 
process.

Potential effects

A lack of appropriate challenge by management can lead to errors in valuations being 
undetected before asset values are updated.

Recommendation

Management should:

1. Review the valuations process to identify ways of preventing incorrect data being used in 
valuations; and

2. Complete a review and challenge of information provided by the valuer prior to processing 
adjustments to the asset register.

Management response

Processes to mitigate data errors are to be introduced along with internal review and challenge 
of the valuations. Key finance staff are to undertake training in CIPFA’s Certificate in Asset 
Valuation. 

Description of deficiency 

Our testing of expenditure items identified an income accrual journal which had been posted in 
error to expenditure. The net impact of the journal was trivial. Further discussion with 
management confirmed the journal had not been subject to formal review before posting to the 
ledger.

Potential effects

Failure to review journal adjustments prior to posting to the ledger increases the risk of errors 
being undetected in the financial statements.

Recommendation

Management should review the process for posting journals and implement a review process in 
order to reduce errors before they are posted.

Management response

Processes for review and sign off of journals posted during the year end closure will be 
implemented to mitigate the risk of future errors.

19

Executive summary Status of audit Audit approach Significant findings Internal control 
recommendations

Summary of
misstatements Value for Money Appendices

P
age 181



5. Internal control recommendations

Other deficiencies in internal control – Level 2

Description of deficiency 

Our walkthrough of the accounts payable system confirmed changes to supplier bank details are 
confirmed through contacting the supplier via existing contact information, however there is no 
formal documentation to confirm the call has taken place.

Potential effects

Changes to standing supplier data are a key area of potential fraud risks. Without a full audit trail 
it is difficult to confirm the steps taken by the Council to ensure changes are appropriate.

Recommendation

Changes to supplier bank details should be formally documented and approved prior to updating 
the accounts payable system.

Management response

Management note the recommendation 

Documentation to support any changes in bank details will be introduced to evidence the 
changes.

Description of deficiency 

Our walkthrough of the accounts receivable process confirmed no formal credit checks were 
undertaken before setting up a new customer on the system. While this is not always possible 
given the nature of the services provided by the Council, customers in receipt of discretionary 
services should be subject to some form of checks.

Potential effects

A lack of appropriate credit checks increases the Council’s exposure to losses through non-
payment of debts owed.

Recommendation

The Council should review its procedures for setting up new customers, and determine the 
appropriate level of credit checks required based on the risk and value of debt with a new 
customer.

Management response

Management note the recommendation 

Management will look to review process around setting up new customers.

20

Executive summary Status of audit Audit approach Significant findings Internal control 
recommendations

Summary of
misstatements Value for Money Appendices

P
age 182



5. Internal control recommendations

Other deficiencies in internal control – Level 2

Description of deficiency 

Our walkthrough of the accounts receivable processes confirmed the daily receipts file is 
manually input into the system, and checked by the same individual to confirm the upload is 
complete and accurate. This process does not include sufficient segregation of duties.

Potential effects

A lack of appropriate segregation of duties increases the risk of fraud and error within the 
financial system.

Recommendation

The check of the receipts upload should be reviewed and signed off by a different member of the 
finance team to the person who uploaded the information.

Management response

Management note the recommendation

A review of system uploads and checks will be included along with other internal controls.

Description of deficiency 

Our review of the Council’s methodology for calculating its expected credit loss allowance 
confirmed this is primarily based on historical experience of collection. Since the Code adopted 
IFRS 9, there is a requirement for the Council to complete a forward look to identify any further 
changes in circumstance which may impact on the credit risk associated with debts owed to the 
Council.

Potential effects

Without completing an appropriate forward look of the Council’s credit risk, there is a risk the 
Council’s debtors may be carried at an inappropriate amount.

Recommendation

The Council should update its review of credit loss allowances to be fully compliant with the 
requirements of the CIPFA Code.

Management response

Management note the recommendation

Management will give further consideration to potential future changes that may affect the 
calculation of the councils expected credit losses. 

21

Executive summary Status of audit Audit approach Significant findings Internal control 
recommendations

Summary of
misstatements Value for Money Appendices

P
age 183



5. Internal control recommendations

Other deficiencies in internal control – Level 2 Other recommendations in internal control – Level 3

Description of deficiency 

Our review of the Council’s year-end bank reconciliations identified a trivial unreconciled 
difference on the reconciliation for the receipts bank account.

In addition, we noted that while the bank reconciliation is reviewed by a Principal Accountant 
each month, the review is not formally documented and signed off.

Potential effects

Unreconciled differences within bank reconciliations increase the risk of errors arising in the 
financial statements.

Recommendation

The finance team should: 

1. review this historic imbalance with a view to clearing this in advance of the next year end 
closedown; and

2. ensure each bank reconciliation is formally reviewed and signed off on a monthly basis.

Management response

Management note the recommendation 

Management will look to address the imbalance and implement process for the review and sign 
Off of reconciliations.

Description of deficiency 

Our review of debtor balances identified suspense codes with a total balance of -£47k relating to 
unallocated cash. The balances related to periods as far back as 2011/12.

Potential effects

Unreconciled cash receipts increase the risk of balances being inappropriately carried on the 
balance sheet when they have in fact been settled.

Recommendation

Unallocated cash balances should be reviewed on a regular basis, and longstanding items should 
be periodically cleared.

Management response

Management note the recommendation 

22

Executive summary Status of audit Audit approach Significant findings Internal control 
recommendations

Summary of
misstatements Value for Money Appendices

P
age 184



Section 06:
Summary of misstatements

23

P
age 185



6. Summary of misstatements

This section outlines the misstatements identified during the course of the audit, above the trivial threshold for adjustment of £28k. The first table outlines the misstatements that were identified during the
course of our audit which management has assessed as not being material either individually or in aggregate to the financial statements and does not currently plan to adjust.

The second table outlines the misstatements that have been adjusted by management during the course of the audit.

24

Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement

Balance Sheet

Dr (£’000) Cr (£’000) Dr (£’000) Cr (£’000)

1 Dr: Taxation and non-specific grant income 253

Cr: Cost of services income -253

This represents a misclassification of credit entries posted to non-specific grant income which should have been posted to cost of services income.

2 Dr: Short term debtors (payments in advance) 273

Cr: Expenditure -273

Our sample testing of year-end expenditure transactions identified one invoice where the expenditure related to a period spanning the financial year end. The final four months of the 
invoice relate to 2021/22, and the statements should be adjusted to reflect this element as a payment in advance. The actual error is £16k, the above is an extrapolation of the error across 
the untested population.

3 Dr: Revaluation Reserve 308

Cr: Property, plant and equipment -308

This represents an overstatement of property, plant and equipment valuations due to a mathematical error in the conversion of regional build cost indices to local rates.

Unadjusted misstatements

Executive summary Status of audit Audit approach Significant findings Internal control 
recommendations

Summary of
misstatements Value for Money Appendices

P
age 186



6. Summary of misstatements

25

Unadjusted misstatements (continued)

Executive summary Status of audit Audit approach Significant findings Internal control 
recommendations

Summary of
misstatements Value for Money Appendices

Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement

Balance Sheet

Dr (£’000) Cr (£’000) Dr (£’000) Cr (£’000)

4 Dr: Investment properties 269

Cr: Financing and investment income and expenditure -269

This represents an understatement of investment property valuations due to errors in the rental income used within the valuation calculations. The actual error was £139k, the above 
represents an extrapolated error across the population of investment properties.

5 Dr: Assets held for sale 40

Cr: Revaluation reserve -40

This represents an understatement of assets held for sale valuations due to underlying data held by the Council differing from the inputs in the valuation calculation.

Total unadjusted misstatements (gross) 253 -795 890 -348

Total unadjusted misstatements (net) -542 542

P
age 187



Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement

Balance Sheet

Dr (£’000) Cr (£’000) Dr (£’000) Cr (£’000)

1 Dr: Short term debtors 100

Cr: Short term creditors -100

To correct a mathematical error identified from the accounts compilation process

2 Dr: Provisions 533

Cr: Grants received in advance -533

To correct a misclassification of grant monies received in advance which was classified as a clawback provision in the draft financial statements.

3 Dr: Pension liability 1,809

Cr: Pensions reserve -1,809

The draft financial statements included a pension valuation based on estimated month 10 data. The Council obtained a revised report during the course of the audit based on month 12 
actual data. This decreased the overall liability by £1.8m.

Total adjusted misstatements -533 2,442 -1,909

6. Summary of misstatements

26

Adjusted misstatements

Executive summary Status of audit Audit approach Significant findings Internal control 
recommendations

Summary of
misstatements Value for Money Appendices

P
age 188



6. Summary of misstatements

27

Disclosure amendments
During our audit we identified several adjustments to the disclosures in the accounts. The following have been adjusted by management and include:

• Cash flow statement – a number of adjustments were processed to ensure the cash flow statement is consistent with other areas of the financial statements;

• Note 1: Expenditure and Funding Analysis – The analysis of expenditure by nature included £645k of non-enhancing capital expenditure within the total for depreciation, amortization and 
impairments. This has been separately disclosed;

• Note 13: Property, plant and equipment – our testing of capital commitments confirmed none of the disclosed items met the definition of being a contractual commitment. The Council has therefore 
removed the disclosure from the financial statements;

• Note 13: Property, plant and equipment – the revaluations table has been updated to reconcile valuation dates to the asset register;

• Note 33: External Audit Costs – The note has been updated to reflect the final fee for the 2019/20 audit, and to update the fee for the 2020/21 audit; 

• Note 35: Related Parties – Payments to Leisure in Hyndburn are overstated by £92k, and payments from Leisure in Hyndburn are understated by £31k; and

• Various typographical and grammatical errors have been updated through the accounts.

The following disclosures have not been updated as management believe the required adjustments are not material:

• Note 25: Unusable Reserves – Within the Capital Adjustment Account disclosure, £124k has been misclassified as capital grants when it should have been classified as capital expenditure charged 
against revenue accounts.

Executive summary Status of audit Audit approach Significant findings Internal control 
recommendations

Summary of
misstatements Value for Money Appendices

P
age 189



Section 07:
Value for Money

28

P
age 190



Approach to Value for Money
We are required to consider whether the Council has made proper arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. The NAO issues guidance to auditors
that underpins the work we are required to carry out and sets out the reporting criteria that we are
required to consider. The reporting criteria are:

• Financial sustainability - How the Council plans and manages its resources to ensure it can
continue to deliver its services

• Governance - How the Council ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages
its risks

• Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness - How the Council uses information about its
costs and performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its services

At the planning stage of the audit, we undertake work to understand the arrangements that the
Council has in place under each of the reporting criteria and we identify risks of significant
weaknesses in those arrangements. Although we describe this work as planning work, we keep our
understanding of arrangements under review and update our risk assessment throughout the audit to
reflect emerging issues that may suggest significant weaknesses in arrangements exist.

The table overleaf outlines the risks of significant weaknesses in arrangements that we have
identified, the risk-based procedures we have undertaken, and the results of our work.

Where our risk-based procedures identify actual significant weaknesses in arrangements we are
required to report these and make recommendations for improvement. Where such significant
weaknesses are identified, we report these in the audit report.

The primary output of our work on the Council's arrangements is the commentary on those
arrangements that forms part of the Auditor’s Annual Report. We intend to issue the Auditor's
Annual Report following completion of the financial statements audit early in 2023.

Status of our work 
We are yet to complete our work in respect of the Council's arrangements for the year ended 31 
March 2021.  Although our work in this area of the audit is ongoing, at the time of preparing this 
report, we have identified one risk of significant weakness in arrangements in relation to the 
Council’s financial reporting process. Our work on this risk will continue over the coming weeks and 
we will conclude this prior to issuing our audit report on the financial statements. 

As noted above, our commentary on the Council's arrangements will be provided in the Auditor’s 
Annual Report at the conclusion of the 2020/21 audit.

7. Value for Money

29

Executive summary Status of audit Audit approach Significant findings Internal control 
recommendations

Summary of
misstatements Value for Money Appendices

P
age 191



Risks of significant weaknesses in arrangements
In our Audit Strategy Memorandum we reported the risks of significant weaknesses in arrangements that we had identified as part of our planning procedures. Our responses to those identified risks is
outlined in the table below.

7. Value for Money

30

Risk of significant weakness in arrangements Financial
sustainability Governance Improving the 

3Es Work undertaken and conclusions reached

1 Financial Reporting
The prior year value for money conclusion was 
qualified due to delays in the Council producing 
draft accounts, and those accounts containing a 
material error. These matters indicate a risk of 
weaknesses in proper arrangements for reliable 
and timely financial  reporting that supports the 
delivery of strategic priorities.

Work undertaken
To address this risk we have:
• Reviewed the Council’s arrangements to produce its financial statements;
• Reviewed how management engages with, and challenges the information 

provided by its experts; and
• Drawn on conclusions from the accounts audit to determine whether these 

highlight any actual weaknesses in arrangements.

Progress
As our work on the Council’s financial statements audit nears completion, we are 
evaluating the conclusions arising from the audit. We expect to report our findings in 
relation to this risk in the coming weeks.

Executive summary Status of audit Audit approach Significant findings Internal control 
recommendations

Summary of
misstatements Value for Money Appendices

P
age 192



Appendices

A: Draft management representation letter

B: Draft audit report

C: Independence

D: Other communications

P
age 193



Appendix A: Draft management representation letter

To be provided to us on client headed note paper

[Date]

Dear Mark

Hyndburn Borough Council - audit for year ended 31 March 2021

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of Hyndburn Borough Council (‘the Council’) for the year ended 31 March 2021 for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21 (the Code) and 
applicable law.

I confirm that the following representations are made on the basis of enquiries of management and staff with relevant knowledge and experience (and, where appropriate, inspection of supporting 
documentation) sufficient to satisfy myself that I can properly make each of the following representations to you.

My responsibility for the financial statements and accounting information

I believe that I have fulfilled my responsibilities for the true and fair presentation and preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the Code and applicable law.

32

Executive summary Status of audit Audit approach Significant findings Internal control 
recommendations

Summary of
misstatements Value for Money Appendices

P
age 194



Appendix A: Draft management representation letter (continued)

My responsibility to provide and disclose relevant information

I have provided you with: 

• access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the financial statements such as records, documentation and other material;

• additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit; and

• unrestricted access to individuals within the Council you determined it was necessary to contact in order to obtain audit evidence.

I confirm as Deputy Chief Executive (Section 151 Officer) that I have taken all the necessary steps to make me aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that you, as auditors, are aware of this 
information.

As far as I am aware there is no relevant audit information of which you, as auditors, are unaware.

Accounting records

I confirm that all transactions that have a material effect on the financial statements have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial statements. All other records and related 
information, including minutes of all Council, Cabinet and committee meetings, have been made available to you. 

Accounting policies

I confirm that I have reviewed the accounting policies applied during the year in accordance with Code and International Accounting Standard 8 and consider these policies to faithfully represent the effects of 
transactions, other events or conditions on the Council’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows.

33

Executive summary Status of audit Audit approach Significant findings Internal control 
recommendations

Summary of
misstatements Value for Money Appendices

P
age 195



Appendix A: Draft management representation letter (continued)

Accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value

I confirm that any significant assumptions used by the Council in making accounting estimates, including those measured at current or fair value, are reasonable.

Contingencies

There are no material contingent losses including pending or potential litigation that should be accrued where:

• information presently available indicates that it is probable that an asset has been impaired or a liability had been incurred at the balance sheet date; and

• the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.

There are no material contingent losses that should be disclosed where, although either or both the conditions specified above are not met, there is a reasonable possibility that a loss, or a loss greater than 
that accrued, may have been incurred at the balance sheet date.

There are no undisclosed contingent gains which should be disclosed.

All material matters, including unasserted claims, that may result in litigation against the Council have been brought to your attention. All known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be 
considered when preparing the financial statements have been disclosed to you and accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the Code and applicable law.

34

Executive summary Status of audit Audit approach Significant findings Internal control 
recommendations

Summary of
misstatements Value for Money Appendices

P
age 196



Appendix A: Draft management representation letter (continued)

Laws and regulations

I confirm that I have disclosed to you all those events of which I am aware which involve known or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations, together with the actual or contingent consequences 
which may arise therefrom.

The Council has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have a material effect on the accounts in the event of non-compliance.

Fraud and error

I acknowledge my responsibility as Deputy Chief Executive (Section 151 Officer) for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control to prevent and detect fraud and error. 

I have disclosed to you:

• all the results of my assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud;

• all knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the Council involving:

• management and those charged with governance;

• employees who have significant roles in internal control; and

• others where fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

I have disclosed to you all information in relation to any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the Council’s financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, 
regulators or others.

35

Executive summary Status of audit Audit approach Significant findings Internal control 
recommendations

Summary of
misstatements Value for Money Appendices

P
age 197



Appendix A: Draft management representation letter (continued)

Related party transactions

I confirm that all related party relationships, transactions and balances, have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the requirements of the Code and applicable law.

I have disclosed to you the identity of the Council’s related parties and all related party relationships and transactions of which I am aware.

Future commitments

I am not aware of any plans, intentions or commitments that may materially affect the carrying value or classification of assets and liabilities or give rise to additional liabilities.

Subsequent events

I confirm all events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which the Code and applicable law, require adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.

Should further material events occur after the date of this letter which may necessitate revision of the figures included in the financial statements or inclusion of a note thereto, I will advise you accordingly.

Covid-19

I confirm that the Council has carried out an assessment of the potential impact of the Covid-19 Virus pandemic on the Council, including the impact of mitigation measures and uncertainties, and that the 
disclosures in the Narrative Report fairly reflects that assessment.

36

Executive summary Status of audit Audit approach Significant findings Internal control 
recommendations

Summary of
misstatements Value for Money Appendices

P
age 198



Appendix A: Draft management representation letter (continued)

Impacts of Russian Forces entering Ukraine

I confirm that I have carried out an assessment of the potential impact of Russian Forces entering Ukraine on the Council, including the impact of mitigation measures and uncertainties.

Going concern

To the best of my knowledge there is nothing to indicate that the Council will not continue as a going concern in the foreseeable future. The period to which I have paid particular attention in assessing the 
appropriateness of the going concern basis is not less than twelve months from the date of approval of the accounts.

Unadjusted misstatements 

I confirm that the effects of the uncorrected misstatements are immaterial, both individually and in aggregate, to the financial statements as a whole. All uncorrected misstatements are included in Appendix A.

Yours faithfully

Joe McIntyre

Deputy Chief Executive (Section 151 Officer)

37

Executive summary Status of audit Audit approach Significant findings Internal control 
recommendations

Summary of
misstatements Value for Money Appendices

P
age 199



Appendix B: Draft audit report

To follow on completion of our value for money work.

38

Executive summary Status of audit Audit approach Significant findings Internal control 
recommendations

Summary of
misstatements Value for Money Appendices

P
age 200



39

Appendix C: Independence

As part of our ongoing risk assessment we monitor our relationships with you to identify any new 
actual or perceived threats to our independence within the regulatory or professional requirements 
governing us as your auditors.

We can confirm that no new threats to independence have been identified since issuing the Audit 
Strategy Memorandum and therefore we remain independent.

Executive summary Status of audit Audit approach Significant findings Internal control 
recommendations

Summary of
misstatements Value for Money Appendices

P
age 201



Other 
communication Response

Compliance with 
Laws and 
Regulations

We have not identified any significant matters involving actual or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations.

We will obtain written representations from management that all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations whose 
effects should be considered when preparing financial statements have been disclosed.

External 
confirmations

We did not experience any issues with respect to obtaining external confirmations.

Related parties We did not identify any significant matters relating to the audit of related parties. 

We will obtain written representations from management confirming that:

a. they have disclosed to us the identity of related parties and all the related party relationships and transactions of which they are aware; and

b. they have appropriately accounted for and disclosed such relationships and transactions in accordance with the requirements of the applicable financial reporting 
framework.

Going Concern We have not identified any evidence to cause us to disagree with the Deputy Chief Executive (Section 151 Officer) that Hyndburn Borough Council will be a going concern, 
and therefore we consider that the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation of the financial statements.

We will obtain written representations from management, confirming that all relevant information covering a period of at least 12 months from the date of approval of the 
financial statements has been taken into account in assessing the appropriateness of the going concern basis of preparation of the financial statements.

40

Appendix D: Other communications

Executive summary Status of audit Audit approach Significant findings Internal control 
recommendations

Summary of
misstatements Value for Money Appendices

P
age 202



41

Appendix D: Other communications

Other 
communication Response

Subsequent 
events

We are required to obtain evidence about whether events occurring between the date of the financial statements and the date of the auditor’s report that require 
adjustment of, or disclosure in, the financial statements are appropriately reflected in those financial statements in accordance with the applicable financial reporting 
framework.

We will obtain written representations from management that all events occurring subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which the applicable financial 
reporting framework requires adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.

Matters related 
to fraud

We have designed our audit approach to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement due to fraud. In 
addition to the work performed by us, we will obtain written representations from management, and the Audit Committee, confirming that

a. they acknowledge their responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control to prevent and detect fraud;

b. they have disclosed to the auditor the results of management’s assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud;

c. they have disclosed to the auditor their knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity involving:

i. Management;

ii. Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or

iii. Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements; and

d. they have disclosed to the auditor their knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the entity’s financial statements communicated by 
employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or others. 

Executive summary Status of audit Audit approach Significant findings Internal control 
recommendations

Summary of
misstatements Value for Money Appendices

P
age 203



Mazars

Mazars is an internationally integrated partnership, specialising in audit, accountancy, advisory, tax 
and legal services*. Operating in over 90 countries and territories around the world, we draw on the 
expertise of 40,400 professionals – 24,400 in Mazars’ integrated partnership and 16,000 via the 
Mazars North America Alliance – to assist clients of all sizes at every stage in their development.

*where permitted under applicable country laws.

5th Floor
3 Wellington Place
Leeds
LS1 4AP

Tel: 0113 394 2000

Mark Dalton, Director – Public Services
mark.dalton@mazars.co.uk

P
age 204

mailto:mark.dalton@mazars.co.uk

	Agenda
	2. Minutes of the Last Meeting
	3. Risk Management Monitoring Report
	4. Internal Audit Plan 2022/23 Progress Report
	5. Audit Committee Self-Assessment 2022
	Audit Committee Self Assessment Questionnaire 2022 - Committee Response

	7. Statement of Accounts
	Appendix A
	Appendix B

	8. External Audit Completion Report - Year Ended 31st March 2021
	Slide Number 1
	Contents
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21
	Slide Number 22
	Slide Number 23
	Slide Number 24
	Slide Number 25
	Slide Number 26
	Slide Number 27
	Slide Number 28
	Slide Number 29
	Slide Number 30
	Slide Number 31
	Slide Number 32
	Slide Number 33
	Slide Number 34
	Slide Number 35
	Slide Number 36
	Slide Number 37
	Slide Number 38
	Slide Number 39
	Slide Number 40
	Slide Number 41
	Slide Number 42


